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Looking back on the year, I am filled with a deep sense of 
pride in how far we’ve come. Your company ’s 
performance has not only reaffirmed its commitment to 
opera�onal excellence but also demonstrated its ability to 
generate sustained value measured not just in financial 
terms, but through the impact we create for all 
stakeholders.

In FY2024-25, your company recorded a total income of 
₹140.47 crore and a profit a�er tax of ₹79.31 crore. This 
strong performance was primarily driven by robust 
growth in the consultancy segment, which accounted for 
89% of the opera�ng revenue.

This growth was underpinned by the facilita�on of new 
Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs) for Indian Railways 
and the seamless integra�on of newly commissioned 
Trac�on Substa�ons under the ‘open access’ policy. 
Through this policy, the company facilitated the 
procurement of 18.63 Billion Units (BUs) of energy during 
FY2024-25, up from 17.14 BUs in the previous year. In 
addi�on, your company supported Indian Railways 
through a smooth transi�on to the technically complex, 
newly introduced ‘General Network Access (GNA)’ 
regime.

Your company con�nues to play a pivotal role in Indian 
Railways’ journey towards becoming a Net Zero Carbon 
Emi�er by 2030. As part of this mission, we are facilita�ng 
Indian Railways in preparing its Greenhouse Gas (GHG) 
Inventory, verifica�on processes, and a comprehensive 
roadmap to achieve Net Zero for Scope 1 and Scope 2 
emissions. To strengthen this ini�a�ve, IIT-Delhi has been 

onboarded as our knowledge partner.

In a significant step towards sustainability, your company 
enabled the procurement of 2.08 Billion Units (BUs) of 
green energy this year. It also facilitated �e-ups for 2,892 
MW of renewable power sourced from standalone solar 
projects in Madhya Pradesh, U�ar Pradesh, Chha�sgarh, 
Karnataka, and Haryana, and wind power from 
Maharashtra, Rajasthan, and Karnataka. Notably, this 
includes the �e-up of 1,600 MW of renewable energy 
under the innova�ve Round-the-Clock (RTC) mode, 
ensuring uninterrupted 24x7 green power supply to the 
Railways - making it one of the first in the country to adopt 
such a model.

In recogni�on of the company’s performance, the Board 
of Directors has recommended a final dividend of ₹1.67 
per share, in addi�on to the interim dividends of ₹5.80 per 
share already paid. This brings the total dividend for 
FY2024-25 to ₹7.47 per share amoun�ng to ₹78.43 crore 
and reflec�ng an impressive payout ra�o of 98.9%.

Your company remains fully commi�ed to the principles of 
good Corporate Governance. We uphold the highest 
standards of transparency, accountability, and integrity in 
everything we do. As a responsible corporate ci�zen, the 
company spent ₹177.12 lakh on various CSR ac�vi�es in 
FY2024-25, reaffirming its dedica�on to social welfare and 
na�on-building.

None of these achievements would have been possible 
without the unwavering support and guidance of our 
parent ministry, the Ministry of Railways and the 
con�nued trust and coopera�on of our valued 
stakeholders. We remain truly grateful for your 
confidence in us.

As the power sector con�nues to evolve, every challenge 
we face has only fuelled our momentum and sharpened 
our edge. With agility, adaptability, and a focus on our core 
strengths, your company is poised to deliver consistent, 
inclusive, and sustainable growth. As we move forward, 
we do so with renewed confidence, unwavering 
commitment, and above all with ‘Boundless Energy’.

Chairman's Message

Dear Shareholders,

With Best Wishes,
(Rahul Mithal)
DIN: 07610499

Chairman
REMC LIMITED
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Decade at a Glance

B O U N D L E S S E N E R G Y

S No. Par�culars  2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25

A. Opera�ng Turnover  1,710.31 5,566.92   6,562.88   8,148.33   7,856.15 6,787.02 9,310.14  11,414.59 14,769.11   13,386.75 

B. Other Income  93.89   282.10 316.67 154.97 240.03   86.59   203.22   291.40   558.98   660.16 

C. Total Income (including Other Income) 1,804.20   5,849.02   6,879.55   8,303.30   8,096.18   6,873.61   9,513.36   11,705.99   15,328.09   14,046.91 

D. Opera�ng Expenditure  863.04   1,849.10   2,203.72   2,918.71   2,737.97   3,118.91   2,870.49   3,284.24   3,989.69   3,868.39 

 

E. Finance Cost   471.38   1,132.69   749.90   438.37   384.08   310.64   211.57   41.87   -     16.02  

F.  Deprecia�on & Amor�sa�on   281.43   613.54   614.73   620.87   634.39   705.87   712.70   730.36   921.98   917.65 

G Opera�ng Margin/EBIT   847.27   3,717.82   4,359.16   5,229.62   5,118.18   3,668.11   6,439.65   8,130.35   10,779.42   9,518.36 

H. Profit Before Tax  469.78   2,867.23   3,925.93   4,946.22   4,974.13   3,444.06   6,431.30   8,379.88   11,338.40   10,162.50 

I. Profit A�er Tax  313.51   1,836.24   3,027.98   4,134.06   3,501.55   2,413.37   4,532.08   5,903.65   8,122.35   7,931.09 

J. EPS (`)   1.04   3.67  2.88   3.94   3.33   2.30   4.32   5.62   7.74   7.55 

K. Dividend Paid excluding Dividend  -     -     368.00   909.00   1,241.00   1,050.00   900.00   3,990.00   8,820.00   8,505.00 

  Distribu�on Tax 

L. Share Capital    5,000.00   7,000.00   7,000.00   7,000.00   7,000.00   10,500.00   10,500.00   10,500.00   10,500.00   10,500.00 

M. General Reserve including    312.20   2,148.44   4,584.45   7,622.66   9,628.12   7,491.49   11,123.57   13,037.25   12,339.60   11,765.69 

 Retained Earning

N. Net Worth (L+M)  5,312.20   9,148.44   11,584.45   14,622.66   16,628.12   17,991.49   21,623.57   23,537.25   22,839.60   22,265.69 

O. Capital Employed  16,513.80   17,903.76   19,193.08   19,595.99   21,477.82   22,475.78   26,116.47   26,575.14   26,023.73   24,999.45 

P. Opera�ng Margin %(G/A) 49.54  66.78   66.42   64.18   65.15   54.05   69.17   71.23   72.99   71.10 

Q. EBIT to Capital employed %(G/O) 5.13  20.77   22.71   26.69   23.83   16.32   24.66   30.59   41.42   38.07 

R. PAT to Networth % (I/N)  5.90   20.07   26.14   28.27   21.06   13.41   20.96   25.08   35.56   35.62 

S. Current Ra�o (No. of �mes)  1.65   2.10   2.67   3.37   2.48   3.20   6.56   22.14   11.75   15.57 

* Earning per share has been Computed on the basis of post bonus issued during financial Year 2020-21.

(All figures are in ` Lakhs except Specified)

(including Deprecia�on and
excluding Finance Cost)
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Directors’ Report

Dis�nguished Shareholders

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present 
12th Annual Report of the company with Audited 
Financial Statements together with Auditor's Report for 
the year ended 31st March, 2025. 

Financial Highlights:

The financial performance of the Company is given 
below:

(`in Crore)

mounted solar projects and awarded 143 MW of wind 
power projects. 

Your Company is also facilita�ng IR in expanding its Green 
Por�olio by procuring renewable power from various 
market mechanisms available at Power Exchanges i.e., 
GDAM (Green Day Ahead Market) and trading of RECs 
(Renewable Energy Cer�ficates), thus helping Indian 
Railways in ensuring compliance to Renewable Purchase 
Obliga�on (RPO). It benefits IR in mee�ng its green 
energy requirement and encourages environmental 
sustainability. 

During financial year 2024-25, company facilitated 
procurement of approximately 1.05 BUs of Renewable 
Power from GDAM for Indian Railways.

Some of the major highlights for the FY 2024-25 are as 
under:

• REMCL is consistently working towards achieving 
the target of Mission Net Zero Carbon Emission of 
Indian Railways by 2030. Company has appointed a 
consultant to provide services in area of “Accoun�ng 
& Repor�ng of GHG emission data and to list out 
poten�al carbon offset projects for Indian Railways” 
and the ac�vity is being coordinated with Ministry of 
Railways and all Zonal Railway, Produc�on Units and 
Workshops. For monitoring present and future 
emission data. web-based applica�on is also being 
developed.

•  The NEMC receives real-�me informa�on from 
Open Access Generators and is opera�onal on 24x7 
basis. The real �me monitoring of genera�on and 
load helps in maximum u�liza�on of power, 
minimizing devia�on by availing power shortage (if 
any) from Energy Exchange and monitoring load 
pa�ern. 

•  Your company is closely working with IIT Kanpur in 
use of Ar�ficial Intelligence (AI) and Machine 
Learning (ML) tools for development of so�ware on 
�me-block wise load forecas�ng for each open 
access state and forecas�ng for genera�on profile of 
Renewable Generators to assist Railways in accurate 
scheduling of power.

• Facilitated Indian Railways in procurement of power 
from Power Exchange to the state of UP-STU, M.P, 
Rajasthan, Delhi, Haryana, UP-ISTS, Jharkhand, 

Par�culars FY FY  
 2024-25 2023-24
Total Income 140.47 153.28
Opera�ng Turnover 133.87 147.69
Opera�ng Expenditure 38.68 39.90
Profit Before Tax (PBT) 101.63 113.38
Taxes including deferred Tax  22.32 32.16
Profit A�er Tax (PAT) 79.31 81.22
Dividend Paid  85.05 88.20
Transfer to Retained Earnings (5.74) (6.98)
Net Worth 222.66 228.40

Business Performance

During the year FY2024-25, REMCL achieved total 
income of `140.47 crore as compared to FY 2023-24 of 
`153.28 crore and Profit before Tax of `101.63 crore as 
compared to FY23-24 of `113.38 crore, decrease in total 
income and profit before tax mainly due to reduced 
genera�on from Jaisalmer Wind Power Plant &non-
responsive RERTC bids on account of expected CTUIL 
Connec�vity period beyond the bid �melines for project 
execu�on. 

During FY 2024-25, company managed a power por�olio 
of about 2302 MW for Indian Railways in 14 states / 
en��es (including DVC Control Area, UP-ISTS and Bihar-
ISTS) under Open access. Besides the mandate for power 
procurement under Open Access, your company is also 
facilita�ng Indian Railways in achieving their Mission of 
Net Zero Carbon Emission (NZCE) by greening its power 
por�olio. The Company has facilitated in scaling IRs 
renewable energy por�olio to 7,263 MW, out of which 
883 MW is opera�onal, and remaining capaci�es shall 
start coming up by FY 2025-26, FY 2026-27 & FY 2027-28.

Your company so far has supported implementa�on of 65 
MW of solar roof top projects & 52.5 MW of ground 
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Gujarat, Maharashtra, DVC, Punjab and Karnataka to 
meet the peak power requirement and standby 
power in case of failure of open access generators 
through market mechanisms available at Exchanges 
viz., DAM (Day Ahead Market) and RTM (Real Time 
Market) 3.95 BUs of power was purchased through 
Energy Exchange during FY 2024-25, in which 1.05 
BUs of green energy was purchased.

• Successfully facilitated purchasing of renewable 
power from Green Day Ahead Market (GDAM) 
pla�orm of Energy Exchange to fulfill RPO 
compliance by IR. During FY-2024-25, company 
facilitated procurement of approximately 1.05 BUs 
of Green Power under GDAM for Indian Railways. 

•  SECI RE-RTC: Power up to 100 MW from part-
commissioned Wind & Solar plant of SECI-RE RTC is 
being availed by WCR & NR-UP. 

• RE-RTC I 900 MW RE-RTC Power was successfully 
�ed up under Long Term Open access (LTOA) 
through compe��ve bidding and PPA executed 
between RPD & Zonal Railways. Projects are likely to 
be commissioned in FY 2026-27.

• RE-RTC II: REMCL invited bids for procurement of 
750 MW RE power under RTC (Round the Clock) 
mode on 29.09.2023 which has been successfully 
concluded, and PPA for 600 MW quantum have been 
executed between RPD and Zonal Railway in 
November'2024 and December' 2024. The Projects 
are likely to be commissioned during FY 2026-27 & 
2027-28

• Nuclear Power: REMCL has facilitated Indian 
Railways in exploring all possibili�es for sourcing 
clean energy through nuclear power genera�on. A 
Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) between 
NPCIL & Indian Railways has been finalized and is 
scheduled to be signed shortly for exploring power 
through Nuclear Energy.

• Conven�onal Power: REMCL facilitated execu�on of 
350 MW and 250 MW PPA   between ER & DVC on 
20.12.2024 and 24.02.2025 respec�vely. Power flow 
of 350 MW DVC power has commenced from Jan' 
2025.

• In comparison to previous years, all �me high 
procurement of energy – 18.63 BUs (18,629 MUs) 
was carried out during FY 2024-25.

PERFORMANCE
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Conserva�on of Energy, Technology Absorp�on 
and Foreign Exchange Earning and Out Go

The details of conserva�on / genera�on of energy, 
technology absorp�on, foreign exchange earnings and 
outgoing are as follows:

Conserva�on of Energy/ Clean Energy
Indian Railways is firmly commi�ed to achieve Net Zero 
Carbon Emissions by 2030, a goal that is intrinsically 
linked to energy conserva�on and the adop�on of clean 
energy sources such as Nuclear Power. As one of the 
largest consumers of electricity in the country, Indian 
Railways recognizes that reducing dependence on fossil 
fuels and improving energy efficiency are essen�al to 
mee�ng this target.

REMCL is ac�vely suppor�ng this transforma�on by 
planning and implemen�ng a range of renewable energy 
projects for Indian Railways, including solar and wind 
power ini�a�ves. These efforts not only contribute to 
reducing carbon emissions but also help lower energy 
costs, making the railways more sustainable and 
economically efficient.

Net Zero Carbon Emission Strategy through Energy 
Conserva�on

To opera�onalize the Net Zero vision of IR, your company 
has engaged a specialized consultant to deliver services 
in “Accoun�ng and Repor�ng of GHG Emission Data and 
Iden�fica�on of Poten�al Carbon Offset Projects” for 
Indian Railways. This ini�a�ve directly supports both 
emissions reduc�on and energy conserva�on by 
adop�ng Energy Efficient technology to offset carbon 

Outlook

As part of this green transi�on, Indian Railways is ac�vely 
promo�ng the development of renewable energy 
infrastructure to reduce its dependence on fossil fuels 
and accelerate the decarboniza�on process.                                                                                                                                                                                                       

Capital Structure

The paid-up share capital of the company is `105.00 
crore as against its authorized share capital of `1000.00 
crore.

Dividend

Your directors have recommended a final dividend of 
`17.535 crore for FY 2024-25 (i.e., `1.67 per share on 
10.50 crore equity shares) which is 16.70% of paid-up 
capital of the company, subject to the approval of 
Shareholders in Annual General Mee�ng. 

During the FY 2024-25, the company has paid a final 
dividend of `24.15 crore for FY 24 and Interim Dividend 
of ̀ 60.90 crore for FY 2024-25.

Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the 
public during the year.

Reserves

Reserve as at 31st March, 2025 stood at ̀  117.66 crore as 
compared to ̀  123.39 crore as on 31st March, 2024.

2.5 MW Solar Ground Mounted along the railway track
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emissions, enabling data-driven planning and 
performance tracking.

The ini�a�ve is being coordinated with the Ministry of 
Railways, Zonal Railways, Produc�on Units, and 
Workshops. A web-based applica�on is also under 
development, which will allow for real-�me monitoring 
of energy use and GHG emissions across the railway 
network. This digital pla�orm will be a key tool in 
iden�fying conserva�on opportuni�es, op�mizing 
power procurement, and ensuring compliance with 
sustainability targets.

Together, these efforts reflect your company's 
commitment to clean energy, efficient resource use, and 
long-term environmental stewardship, reinforcing its 
central role in helping Indian Railways become the 
world's largest green transporter.

Clean Energy Source:

In a pioneering move, Indian Railways is set to diversify its 
clean energy por�olio by exploring nuclear power as a 
source of sustainable and carbon-free electricity. A 
Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) between Indian 
Railways and Nuclear Power Corpora�on of India Limited 
(NPCIL) has been finalized and is slated for signing 
shortly. This ini�a�ve marks a significant milestone in the 
Railways' commitment to clean energy.

Implementa�on of Renewable Energy Projects

Your company is con�nuously adding up to the capacity 
of renewable energy projects on a large scale thus 
expanding its por�olio mix to ensure economical cost of 

power for IR and long-term compe��veness, mi�ga�on 
of fuel risks and development of sustainable power 
sources. Your Company has facilitated IR in execu�ng 
PPAs for se�ng up renewable energy plants of 7263 MW, 
out of which 883 MW is opera�onal, and remaining 
capaci�es shall start coming up by FY 2025-26 & 2026-27.

i) Solar Power Projects

 Indian Railways is commi�ed to employ Renewable 
energy projects for mee�ng its trac�on power 
demand and become a complete 'green mode of 
transporta�on'. To achieve the above target, your 
company has taken up various projects. The status of 
the solar projects undertaken by your company is as 
follows:

ii) 50 MW solar ground mounted project

 The Company has set up a 50 MW Solar Power Plant 
at Bhilai. Power generated from this solar plant is 
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being used for trac�on purposes in states of UP (NCR) 
(25 MW) and Karnataka (SWR) (25 MW). Solar PV 
plant will generate approx. 102 MUs of solar power 
annually. ISTS Transmission Charges & Losses are 
waived off for Railways. Power flow to grid started on 
22.04.2023 & subsequently this solar plant was 
inaugurated by Hon'ble Prime Minister. In this 
project, REMCL has contributed through consultancy 
services from concept to commissioning.

iii) 400 MW solar ground mounted project

 The Company has facilitated signing of tripar�te PPA 
on 25.11.2021 between West Central Railways on 
behalf of IR, Rewa Ultra Mega Solar Ltd (RUMSL) and 
SPDs for 400 MW Solar power. It will be supplied to 
Indian Railways in the state of Gujarat, Maharashtra, 
UP-STU, Haryana, Jharkhand, DVC Area. Part 
capacity of 144 MW opera�onalized during FY: 2024-
25. 

iv) 500 MW Solar ground mounted project

 500 MW Solar power from IRCON Renewable Power 
Ltd. (IRPL) in CPSU scheme will be supplied to 
Maharashtra, Madhya Pradesh, UP-STU, Bihar-STU & 
Karnataka state. The Company has facilitated signing 
of PPA on 04.05.2022 by South Western Railways on 
behalf of IR, with SPD. Part capacity of 150 MW 
opera�onalized during FY 2024-25.

v) PMC Services, Solar Poten�al assessment & 
Feasibility study

 An assignment of assessment of solar poten�al / 
Prepara�on of Feasibility Study Report/Project 
Management Consultancy (PMC) at DFCCIL's 
corporate office, Noida and MRVC, Mumbai has been 
secured.

vi)  Exploring new avenues in Renewable projects and 
BESS

 New avenues are being explored for implemen�ng 
Solar Power Plant at various vacant land parcels of IR 
in different states and steps are taken for exploring 
Ba�ery Energy Storage / Pump Storage Power 
Solu�ons in solar/wind power projects. 

 Proposal of solar power plant at vacant Railway land 
of SECR and Pilot BESS project at vacant Railway land 
of Dahod of WR is under considera�on. 

Wind Power Projects

Consistently growing in wind energy space by 
implemen�ng various wind power projects for Indian 
Railways, company has implemented about 93 MW of 
wind projects for trac�on load�ll date detailed as under: 

(I) 26 MW Windmill Plant on CAPEX mode at 
Jaisalmer, Rajasthan. Your company has accounted 
for 25.56 MUs (Million Units) of energy generated 
from 26 MW Wind Power Plant during FY 2024-25. 

(ii) 10.5 MW wind power project on PMC mode has 
been set-up in Tamil Nadu and the energy is 
directly being u�lized by Southern Railway (SR), 
Tamil Nadu.

(iii) 56.4 MW wind power project  for  CR in 
Maharashtra on tariff based compe��ve bidding 
has been setup. 103 MUs (Million Units) of energy 
generated from the Power Plant has been u�lized 
by Central Railway in the state of Maharashtra 
during FY 2024-25.

Power Procurement

Indian Railways, as a bulk consumer of electricity, was 
paying tariff as determined by State Electricity 
Regulatory Commission (SERC), which has been replaced 
with tariff determined through compe��ve bidding / 
MoP alloca�on. Your company has assisted economic 
power under open access, thereby reducing the 
electricity bills of Indian Railways which have resulted 
into huge cost savings.

Open Access 

REMC's con�nuous efforts in the past several years have 
already brought in 14 states / en��es under open access 
(including DVC control area, UP-ISTS and Bihar-ISTS) for 
procurement of power.

Procurement of power under Open Access/General 
Network Access

Your Company has successfully facilitated the power 
procurement of about 2302 MW in the open access 
states during the FY 2024-25 in 14 states / en��es 
(Rajasthan, UP-STU, UP-ISTS, Maharashtra, Gujarat, MP, 
Karnataka, Jharkhand, DVC command area, Haryana, 
Delhi, Bihar-STU, Bihar-ISTS and Punjab). Your company 
has also assisted in the smooth transi�on to GNA from 
Open Access.

STA
TU

TO
R

Y
 R

EP
O

R
TS



10

B O U N D L E S S E N E R G Y

Compliance to Renewable Purchase Obliga�on (RPO)

One of the regulatory requirements for Railways for 
procurement of Power in Open Access is compliance with 
Renewable Purchase Obliga�on (RPO). REMC Ltd has 
assisted Railways in purchasing Renewable Energy 
Cer�ficates from Energy Exchange/ procurement of 
Power from RE sources.

Procurement through Energy Exchange

Indian Railways has also ini�ated procurement of energy 
through collec�ve transac�on by bidding of power 
through trader on energy exchange. Procurement of 
power through IEX (energy exchange) has also 
commenced in the state/en��es of UP-STU, UP-ISTS, 
Delhi, Haryana, M.P., Karnataka, Maharashtra, Gujarat, 
Jharkhand, DVC Command Area, Punjab and Rajasthan to 
meet the peak power requirement of Indian Railways 
and as an arrangement for back – up power in case of 
failure of open access generator. Tri-Par�te agreements 
have been executed between Nodal Railway, REMC & 
Trader Member. REMCL is regularly advising Railways on 
bidding guidelines. In the current financial year 2024-25, 
Railways have purchased about 3.954 BUs of Energy 
through Exchange. 

Energy Management of BRBCL plant

Your Company is coordina�ng the energy management 
of IR by providing all the required assistance pertaining to 
scheduling of power from Nabinagar Thermal Power 
Plant of BRBCL on daily basis with four units of 250 MW 
each in opera�on, surplus power from Railways 
alloca�on is being diverted to beneficiary ZRs requiring 
addi�onal power under Un-Requisi�oned Surplus (URS). 

Coordina�on with state authority

Your Company has been providing single window service 
to ZRs for interac�on with state and central u�li�es in 
obtaining NOCs and fulfilling other regulatory 
compliances. The company has also coordinated with 
CTU & RLDCs for revision and opera�onaliza�on of Long-
Term Open Access (LTA) for BRBCL power. With persistent 
efforts, long term NOC for addi�onal 70 MW quantum 
has been obtained from Bihar, 15 MW addi�onal long-
term NOC has been obtained in state of Punjab, 30 MW 
addi�onal long-term NOC in state of Karnataka and 240 
MW long term NOC obtained in the state of Maharashtra.  

The company has also coordinated with CTUIL for grant 
of addi�onal GNA in these states. Daily   monitoring for 
maximum u�liza�on of URS power is being carried out 
me�culously.

Technology Absorp�on & Upgrada�on

A New Paradigm Shi� in Railways

The demand for trac�on power is expected to rise 
significantly in alignment with Indian Railways' Mission 
100% Electrifica�on of its broad-gauge network. This 
surge in demand will propor�onately increase the overall 
power requirement and expand Indian Railways' energy 
por�olio. Consequently, op�mal power scheduling, 
accurate load forecas�ng, and strategic power planning 
will become increasingly cri�cal.

To address this, your company has established the 
Na�onal Energy Management Centre (NEMC) at its 
headquarters. The NEMC is tasked with overseeing and 
managing energy procurement for Indian Railways on a 
Pan-India basis.

Func�oning as a centralized hub, the NEMC coordinates 
with 17 State Energy Management Centres (SEMCs) 
opera�ng across the Railways network. It ensures 
seamless data collec�on and centralized monitoring, 
offering Indian Railways a single-window solu�on for 
energy management opera�onal 24x7.

Your company is also collabora�ng closely with IIT 
Kanpur to harness Ar�ficial Intelligence (AI) and Machine 
Learning (ML) for the development of so�ware that 
enables �me-block wise load forecas�ng for each open 
access state. In addi�on, another so�ware has been 
developed to ill forecast the genera�on profiles of 
renewable energy generators, suppor�ng Indian 
Railways in accurate and efficient power scheduling.

Together, these integrated ini�a�ves represent a bold, 
future-ready transforma�on. By combining large-scale 
electrifica�on, renewable energy integra�on, advanced 
digital technologies, and transparent emissions tracking, 
Indian Railways is establishing a global benchmark in its 
journey to become the world's largest green transporter.

New Technology Innova�on

In line with the Indian Railways' ambi�ous vision of 
achieving 100% electrifica�on and becoming the world's 
first Net Zero carbon transporter, your company is proud 
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to be driving several first-of-its-kind innova�ons in the 
power and sustainability ecosystem of IR.

One of the most significant challenges in scaling up 
renewable energy is its infirm and variable nature, which 
fluctuates across �me blocks and seasons. While 
renewable power is cost-effec�ve, its variability o�en 
leads to issues in grid integra�on, scheduling 
inefficiencies, and underu�liza�on of transmission 
corridors.

To overcome these challenges, and for the first �me in 
the history of Indian Railways, your company has 
introduced the concept of procuring renewable power 
under the Round-the-Clock (RTC) mode. In consulta�on 
with the Ministry of Railways, REMC Ltd. has ini�ated the 
procurement of solar and wind power complemented 
with firm sources—such as hydro, gas, and thermal 
ensuring availability of green power 24x7, including 
during non-solar hours and peak periods.

The RTC model represents a significant technological 
advancement where the aggregator/developer 
integrates energy from mul�ple sources, balancing the 
genera�on profile through IT-enabled forecas�ng and 
real-�me load matching. Procurement under RTC mode 
is tailored to meet Indian Railways' dynamic trac�on 
requirements through con�nuous, slot-wise, or real-�me 
demand scheduling.

With recent advancements in ba�ery energy storage 
systems (BESS) and pumped hydro technologies, it is now 
technically feasible for developers to supply 100% 
renewable energy under RTC mode. This marks a historic 
transi�on for IR for the first �me, enabling firm 
renewable power procurement on a large scale, aligned 
with its Net Zero goals.

Recognizing the transforma�ve poten�al of this 
approach, the Ministry of Railways entrusted REMC Ltd. 
to conduct the bidding process for RTC procurement. 
Accordingly, REMC Ltd. floated a tender on 29.09.2023 
for procurement of 750 MW renewable power in RTC 
mode. This bid was successfully concluded, and on 
29.02.2024, Le�ers of Award (LoAs) for 700 MW RTC 
projects were issued to five developers and PPA have 
been executed for 600 MW quantum between RPDs and 
Zonal Railways in November'2024 and December'2024 
These landmark projects  are expected to be 

commissioned in FY 2026–27 & 2027-28, ushering in a 
new era of green energy transi�on for IR.

In another first-�me innova�on for Indian Railways to 
become NZCE by 2030, your company has engaged a 
specialized consultant to provide services for 
“Accoun�ng and Repor�ng of Greenhouse Gas (GHG) 
Emission Data and Iden�fica�on of Poten�al Carbon 
Offset Projects.” This is being undertaken in coordina�on 
with the Ministry of Railways, Zonal Railways (ZRs), 
Produc�on Units (PUs), and Workshops.

As part of this ini�a�ve, a comprehensive web-based 
applica�on is being developed to monitor GHG emissions 
in real �me across the Indian Railways ecosystem. This 
pla�orm will enable automa�c data collec�on, 
transparent repor�ng, and deep analysis of emission 
profilesthe first such system being implemented for 
Indian Railways. It will play a cri�cal role in tracking 
progress toward achieving Net Zero Carbon Emissions.

Together, these pioneering innova�ons RTC-based RE 
procurement, energy storage integra�on, digital 
emissions tracking, and carbon offset planning 
demonstrate Indian Railways' readiness to lead the 
global transi�on to a low-carbon, technology-driven, and 
sustainable transport future. Your company remains at 
the forefront of enabling this bold transforma�on.

Regulatory Ma�ers

(I) Your company has empaneled Advocates to 
fac i l i tate Indian Rai lways in  contes�ng, 
prepara�on and filing of pe��ons at Hon'ble 
Supreme Court, APTEL, CERC and SERCs by hiring 
eminent legal counsels of power sector.

 Your company facilitated Indian Railways in 
prepara�on of appeal and �mely filing before the 
Hon'ble Supreme Court challenging the adverse 
APTEL order dated 12.02.2024 related to Deemed 
Licensee status of Indian Railways & levy of Cross 
Subsidy Surcharge (CSS) and Addi�onal Surcharge 
(ASC).  The Hon'ble Supreme Court vide its daily 
orders dated 06.05.24 & 08.11.24 directed that 
Railways shall not be required to pay CSS and ASC 
to the distribu�on licensees for availing open 
access, however, Indian Railways shall be liable to 
pay transmission and wheeling charges. In case 
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any of DISCOMs/ GENCOs refuses to grant open 
access to Indian Railways, the Hon'ble Supreme 
Court has granted liberty to Indian Railways to file 
an applica�on for contempt. The next date of 
hearing in the ma�er is awaited.

(ii)  With persistent efforts of your company, 
favourable order from CERC in ma�er related 
acceptance of Le�er of Mandate (LOM) in lieu of 
Connec�vity Bank Guarantee (Con. BG) for grant of 
connec�vity to the Inter State Transmission 
System (ISTS) obtained from CERC. 

(iii)  Due to unwavering commitment of your company, 
a favourable order from SERC pertaining to 
implementa�on of  Devia�on Se�lement 
Mechanism having financial implica�ons on 
Northern Railway, was successfully secured.

(iv)  Your company is facilita�ng IR in contes�ng the 
ongoing ma�ers from previous financial years 
before the Hon'ble Supreme Court, APTEL, CERC as 
well as SERCs.

Risks and Concerns: 

Your Company is facilita�ng IR in contes�ng cases before 
the Hon'ble Supreme Court/APTEL/CERC/ SERCS on 
various open access and contractual issues. The outcome 
of the ma�ers pertaining to open access issues may have 
impact on business area of the Company. In some states, 
IR has obtained NOC as a Deemed Distribu�on Licensee, 
whereas other states' u�li�es are not considering IR as a 
Deemed Distribu�on Licensee. Further, procuring of 
power may become uneconomical for IR if Cross Subsidy 
Surcharge (CSS) and Addi�onal Surcharge (ASC) are 
levied as a part of open access charges. However, the 
Hon'ble Supreme Court vide its daily orders dtd. 06.05.24 
& 08.11.24 has provide interim relief to Indian Railways 
from the liability for payment of CSS and ASC �ll the final 
disposal of the ma�er. Addi�onally, your Company is 
assis�ng IR to procure power through renewable energy 
in order to comply to its Renewable Purchase Obliga�on 
(RPO) under the provisions of the Electricity Act, 2003.

Appellate Tribunal for Electricity (APTEL)

Your company is facilita�ng IR in contes�ng the ongoing 
appeals from previous financial years in different ma�ers 
such as Contractual issues, surcharges, compensa�on 
etc. 

Central Electricity Regulatory Commission 
(CERC)

Your Company is facilita�ng IR in contes�ng the ongoing 
ma�ers before CERC from previous financial years on 
regulatory issues related to applicability of CERC DSM 
Regula�ons, genera�on tariff of BRBCL and contractual 
issues. 

State Electricity Regulatory Commission (SERC)

Your Company is facilita�ng IR in contes�ng pe��ons and 
favorable order was obtained for NR and CR related to 
RPO and grant of Connec�vity. Your Company is 
facilita�ng IR in contes�ng the ongoing pe��ons from 
previous financial years on various Open Access issues. 

Promo�on of Micro and Small Enterprises 
(MSEs)

REMC supports and encourages bidders registered under 
the category Micro and Small Enterprises by exemp�ng 
them from paying cost-of-tender and/or Earnest Money 
Deposit (EMD) in accordance with Government Policy.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Corporate Social Responsibility and Sustainability policy 
demonstrates our commitment to operate in 
economically, socially and environmentally sustainable 
manner that is transparent and ethical. It encourages 
engagement with the stakeholders including employees, 
shareholders, investors, customers, clients, business 
associates, civil society groups, Centre/State/ local 
government, communi�es, at large in determining their 
needs and expecta�ons towards be�erment of 
environment and society at large. A total amount of 
₹177.12 Lakh as per the mandatory requirement has 
been spent under CSR plan of your company for various 
projects undertaken during the year.

As per Sec�on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, and 
Guidelines on CSR issued by DPE, Board level commi�ee 
has been cons�tuted to oversee the implementa�on of 
CSR ac�vi�es and to assist the Board of Directors to 
formulate strategies in this regard.

During the year, three (3) mee�ngs of the CSR Commi�ee 
were held on (14.05.2024, 24.07.2024 and 28.10.2024)
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As on 31.03.2025, CSR Commi�ee comprised the 
following Directors: 

Name Posi�on in the
Commi�ee

Designa�on

Shri Prem Singh Meena
DIN: 10855590
(From: 01.01.2025)
Shri Gajendra Kumar
DIN:10652448
(From: 11.07.2024)
Shri Krishna Gopal 
Agarwal
DIN: 10239667
Smt. Tarini Baswal
DIN 10476023
(up to:30.11.2024)
Shri Manish Gupta
DIN: 07327439
(Up to 28.05. 2024)

Chairman

Member

Member

Chairperson

Member

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

II. Financial support for Swasthya Saheli: Promo�ng 
Women Empowerment through Menstrual 
Hygiene Awareness and Healthcare camps in 
Churu, Rajasthan. Amount – ̀ 10.50 Lakh.

III. Financial Assistance for Divyajyo� Eye Checkup 
Camps and workshops in Ajeetgarh, Sikar 
RajasthanAmount – ̀  10.50 Lakh.

IV. Financial assistance for 'Suposhit Maa Abhiyan' by 
distribu�on of Ra�on Kits to pregnant womens in 
Kota - Bundi, Rajasthan.  Amount – ̀  31.50 Lakh. 

V. Financial support for Procurement of Ultra Sound 
Machine along with related items, for Northern 
Railway Divisional Hospital Delhi Amount – `40.00 
Lakh.

The CSR projects / ac�vi�es taken up by the company are 
in the area/sectors as defined in the Schedule VII of 
Companies Act 2013. Sector wise brief of CSR Projects/ 
Ac�vi�es taken up by the Company during the year is as 
under: 

SECTOR: Eradica�ng hunger, poverty and malnutri�on 
and promo�ng health care including preven�ve health 
care and sanita�on including contribu�on to the 
Swachh Bharat Kosh set-up by the Central Government 
for the promo�on of sanita�on andmaking available 
safe drinking water.

I. Financial support for Healing Li�le Hearts Suffering 
from Congenital Heart Disease by Sri Sathya Sai 
Health & Educa�on Trust in Chha�sgarh, Haryana 
& Maharashtra. Amount – ̀  31.24 Lakh.

STA
TU

TO
R

Y
 R

EP
O

R
TS



14

B O U N D L E S S E N E R G Y

VI. Financial assistance for Organizing Health Checkup 
Camps in District Karauli Rajasthan. Amount – 
`25.00 Lakh.

SECTOR: Promo�ng educa�on, including special 
educa�on and employment enhancing voca�on skills 
especially among children, women, elderly, and the 
differently abled and livelihood enhancement projects.

VII. Financial support for s�tching & tailoring program 
for deprived woman at skill development center, 
Ralawata, Ajmer, Rajasthan. Amount – ̀  12.86 Lakh.

VIII. Financial Assistance for promo�ng educa�on to 
under privileged & marginalised children by 
providing support to their School Fees, Books, 
transporta�on etc. in Gurugram, Haryana- Amount 
– ̀  10.73 Lakh.

IX. Financial assistance for Se�ng up Computer 
Training Centre for skilling the youth in digital 
technology in Dhahrahra Middle School of Silao 
Block of Nalanda District Bihar under REMC Ltd CSR 
Plan 2024-25. Amount – ̀  10.49 Lakh.

Detailed report on CSR has been placed at Annexure-IV.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

There were no foreign exchange earnings and outgo 
during the FY 2024-25.

Presiden�al Direc�ve

No Presiden�al Direc�ve was received during the year.

Corporate Governance & Management 
Discussion and Analysis Report:

“Corporate Governance Report” and “Management 
Discussion and Analysis Report” form integral part of this 
Directors' Report and have been placed as Annexure – “I” 
& “II” respec�vely.

Contracts or Arrangements with Related 
Par�es under Sec�on 188 (1) of the Companies 
Act, 2013:

All contracts / arrangements / transac�ons entered by 
the Company during the financial year with related 

par�es were in the ordinary course of business and on an 
arm's length basis. 

Your directors draw a�en�on of the members to Note 
2.29 to the financial statements which contain our 
related party disclosures. (The detail of contracts entered 
into with related par�es in prescribed format AOC-2 is 
placed at Annexure – III). 

Pursuant to the amendments to Sec�on 134(3)(a) and 
Sec�on 92(3) of the Act read with Rule 12 of the 
Companies (Management and Administra�on) Rules, 
2014, the Annual Return (Form MGT-7) for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2025, is available on the 
C o m p a ny ' s  webs i te  a n d  ca n  b e  a cces s ed  at 
h�ps://www.remcltd.com/Index.

Pa r � c u l a r s  o f  L o a n s ,  G u a ra n t e e s  o r 
Investments under Sec�on 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013

During the year the company has not given any loans, 
guarantees or investment under sec�on 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Formal Annual Evalua�on of Directors under 
Sec�on 134(3)(p) of the Companies Act, 2013

Formal Annual Evalua�on of the Directors is being done 
by Administra�ve Ministry. (As per no�fica�on issued by 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs dt 05.06.2015 the 
provisions of this sec�on shall not apply to a Government 
Company, in case the directors are evaluated by the 
Ministry or Department of the Central Government etc.) 

Risk Management under Sec�on 134(3)(n) of 
Companies Act, 2013

There are no known technological risks associated with 
the renewable energy wind power project of 26 MW 
installed in Rajasthan. A long-term power purchase 
agreement with Railways for 25 years is in place ensuring 
flow of income from the sale of wind energy.

Company does not foresee business risk in providing 
consultancy for procurement of power for Indian 
Railways through bilateral agreement arrangement with 
power producers at economical terms & tariff. Company 
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has a robust internal control system and procedure in line 
with holding company. 

During the year mee�ng of Risk Management Commi�ee 
was held on 14.05.2024

As on 31.03.2025, the Risk Management Commi�ee 
comprised the following Directors: 

Re�rement of Directors by Rota�on

As per the Companies Act, 2013, the provision rela�ng to 
re�rement of Directors by rota�on is applicable. In view 
of this, all the directors except Independent Directors, if 
any, will be liable to re�re by rota�on. Accordingly, one 
third of all directors will re�re by rota�on. Therefore, Shri 
Anurag Kapil (DIN:06640383) Director of the company 
with longest term in the office will re�re by rota�on and 
being eligible to offer himself for reappointment.

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) (Sec�on 203 
of the Companies Act, 2013)

Name Posi�on in the
Commi�ee

Designa�on

Shri Gajendra Kumar
DIN: 10652448
(From 11.07.2024)
Shri Anurag Kapil
DIN: 06640383
(From 11.07.2024)
Shri Krishna Gopal 
Agarwal
DIN: 10239667
Shri Manish Gupta
DIN: 07327439
(up to 28.05.2024)
Smt. Tarini Baswal
DIN 10476023
(up to 11.07.2024)

Chairman

Member

Member

Chairman

Member

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Board of Directors & Number of Mee�ngs of 
the Board

The Board of Directors consists of Five (5) Directors, two 
(2) Directors nominated by Ministry of Railways and 
three (3) Directors nominated by RITES Limited including 
Chairman. The Board met Six (6) �mes during the year for 
transac�ng businesses.

The following Directors held office during the Financial 
Year 2024-25:

Name Designa�on

Shri Rahul Mithal
DIN: 07610499
Shri Anurag Kapil 
DIN: 06640383
(From: 24.04.2024)
Shri Krishna Gopal Agarwal
DIN: 10239667

Chairman

Director

Director

Shri Gajendra Kumar 
DIN:10652448
(From: 03.06.2024)
Shri Prem Singh Meena
DIN: 10855590
(From: 01.12.2024)
Smt. Tarini Baswal
DIN: 10476023
(Up to 30.11.2024)
Shri Manish Gupta
DIN: 07327439
(Up to 28.05.2024)
Shri Ajeet Kumar Srivastava 
DIN: 08187918
(Up to 04.04.2024)

Name Designa�on

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Name Designa�on

Smt. Veena Sinha
(up to 31.12.2024)
Shri Sanjay Singh
(From 01.01.2025 to 
11.03.2025)
Shri Rizwan Ahmad Jamali 
(From 11.03.2025 to 
15.04.2025)
Shri Anjeev Kumar Jain
(up to 28.10.2024)
Shri Rakesh Kumar Gupta
(From: 28.10.2024)
Shri Ranjan Kumar Tiwary

Chief Execu�ve Officer

Chief Execu�ve Officer

Chief Execu�ve Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary
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Name Posi�on in the
Commi�ee

Designa�on

Shri Anurag Kapil
DIN: 06640383
(From 11.07.2024)
Shri Gajendra Kumar 
DIN:10652448
(From 11.07.2024)
Shri Prem Singh Meena
DIN: 10855590
(From 01.01.2025)
Shri Manish Gupta
DIN: 07327439
(Up to 28.05.2024)
Shri Krishna Gopal Agarwal

DIN: 10239667)
(Up to 11.07.2024)
Smt. Tarini Baswal
DIN: 10476023
(Up to 30.11.2024)

Chairman

Member

Member

Chairman

Member

Member

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Dates of the mee�ng and a�endance sheet of the Board 
of Directors mee�ng during the year 2024-25 are placed 
at Annexure-A.

Audit Commi�ee

The company has cons�tuted Audit commi�ee in line 
with sec�on 177 of the companies Act, 2013. As on 31st 
March, 2025 Audit Commi�ee comprised the following 
Directors:

As  on 31st  March 2025 the Nomina�on and 
Remunera�on Commi�ee comprised the following 
Directors:

Name Posi�on in the
Commi�ee

Designa�on

Shri Krishna Gopal Agarwal
DIN: 10239667
Shri Anurag Kapil 
DIN: 06640383
(From: 11.07.2024)
Shri Prem Singh Meena 
DIN: 10855590
(From: 01.01.2025)
Smt. Tarini Baswal
DIN: 10476023
(Up 30.11.2024)
Shri Manish Gupta
DIN: 07327439
(Up to 28.05.2024)

Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Member

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

During the year four (4) mee�ngs of Audit Commi�ee 
were held (22.05.2024, 24.07.2024, 28.10.2024 and 
27.01.2025)

Par�culars of  Employees and Related 
Disclosures

There is no employee in the Company falling under the 
category of employee required to be reported under the 
provisions of Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Declara�on by an Independent Director(s) 
(Sec�on 149(6) of Companies Act, 2013)

During the year Independent Director(s) was not in 
posi�on.

Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee 
(Sec�on 178 of the Companies Act 2013)

The company has cons�tuted the Nomina�on and 
Remunera�on Commi�ee in line with the requirements 
of Sec�on 178 of the companies Act, 2013.

During the year Three (3) mee�ngs of the Nomina�on 
and Remunera�on Commi�ee were held (28.10.2024, 
01.01.2025 and 11.03.2025) 

Performance and Financial Posi�on of each of 
Subsidiaries, Associate and Joint Venture 
Companies

The Company has no Subsidiary, Associate and Joint 
Venture Company.

Directors' Responsibility Statement under the 
Companies Act, 2013

In pursuance of Sec�on 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 
2013, The Directors hereby confirm that:

a) In the prepara�on of the annual accounts the 
applicable accoun�ng standards have been followed 
along with proper explana�on rela�ng to material 
departure.

b) The directors have selected such accoun�ng policies 
and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and es�mates that are reasonable and prudent so as 
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to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the company at the end of the financial year and of 
the profit of the company for that period.

c) The directors have taken proper and sufficient care 
for the maintenance of adequate accoun�ng records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the company and for 
preven�ng and detec�ng fraud and other 
irregulari�es.

d) The directors have prepared the annual accounts on 
a going concern basis; and

e) The directors have devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 
and that such systems are adequate and opera�ng 
effec�vely.

Human Resources and Industrial Rela�ons

All the manpower including CEO, CFO & Company 
Secretary have been deputed by the holding company to 
conduct day to day opera�ons. All its projects under 
progress are being executed by deployment of 
experienced expert manpower from the holding 
company i.e., RITES Ltd.

Scheduled Caste, Scheduled Tribes, and other 
Backward Classes

Your company has u�lized the human resources 
deployed by the parent company, i.e., RITES Limited. 
RITES has adopted the best prac�ces for providing equal 
opportuni�es and harmonious environment for 
advancement of SC, ST, OBC, Minori�es and woman 
employees.

Organizing Business Meets, Seminars & 
Conferences

Your Company con�nues to play a pivotal role in building 
awareness and technical understanding among Zonal 
Railways and Produc�on Units (PUs) on emerging 
themes such as power procurement, renewable energy 
integra�on, energy efficiency, and the Net Zero Carbon 
Emission roadmap of Indian Railways. To this end, 
capacity building programs are regularly organized to 
foster ins�tu�onal knowledge and develop domain 
exper�se in these cri�cal areas.

In a first-of-its-kind ini�a�ve, your Company onboarded 
M/s Carbon Market Associa�on of India (CMAI) during FY 

2 0 2 4 – 2 5  t o  s u p p o r t  t h e  d e v e l o p m e n t  o f  a 
comprehensive GHG accoun�ng framework and 
tendering process for Indian Railways. This marks a major 
step forward in ins�tu�onalizing carbon accoun�ng 
prac�ces within the IR ecosystem. In collabora�on with 
the associa�on, your Company has also conducted a 
series of targeted webinars and knowledge sessions to 
educate and familiarize stakeholders across REMCL on 
carbon markets, offset mechanisms, and climate 
disclosures.

To further enhance visibility and brand posi�oning in the 
energy sector, your Company has been ac�vely 
par�cipa�ng in na�onal-level conferences, exhibi�ons, 
and technical seminars. These pla�orms provide 
valuable opportuni�es to showcase REMC Ltd.'s 
achievements, engage with industry leaders, and stay 
abreast of latest innova�ons and market trends. During 
the year, your Company successfully par�cipated in 
various industry training programs, exhibi�ons, and 
conferences, reinforcing its image as a thought leader in 
the domain of sustainable energy for the transport 
sector.

Awards & Recogni�ons

Your company con�nues to be instrumental in achieving 
pres�gious accolades. REMC Ltd has showcased 
excep�onal dedica�on to transforming Indian Railways 
(IR) into a sustainable, energy-efficient, and carbon-
neutral transporta�on system. Through pioneering 
ini�a�ves such as the GHG Accoun�ng Framework, 
renewable energy integra�on, and passenger awareness 
campaigns REMC Ltd has made significant contribu�ons 
toward advancing India's climate goals.
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In recogni�on of these impac�ul efforts, REMC Ltd was 
honored with the esteemed “India Climate Samman 
Award 2025” in the India Net Zero Leadership category at 
Indian Climate Week 2025, organized by the Carbon 
Market Associa�on of India.

This recogni�on not only underscores REMCL's 
leadership in sustainability and innova�on within the 
transport sector both na�onally and globally but also 
reaffirms our unwavering commitment to clean energy, 
climate ac�on, and driving India toward a Net Zero 
future.

Auditors

The Comptroller & Auditor General of India appointed 
M/s Dinesh Mehta & Co., Chartered Accountants, New 
Delhi, as Company's Statutory Auditors, to audit the 
accounts of the company for the year 2024-25. The 
Auditors' Report for the financial year 2024-25 does not 
contain any qualifica�on, reserva�on or adverse remark. 
The Report is enclosed with the financial statements in 
this Annual Report. The Board would like to place on 
record their sincere thanks for the valuable services 
rendered by Statutory Auditors.

Comptroller and Auditor General's Comments

The Company received comments dated 01st July, 2025 
from the C&AG under Sec�on 143(6)(b) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 on Independent Auditors Report of 
the Company for FY 2024-25. The C&AG observed that 
the Statutory Auditor's statement in Para 3(g)(i) 
regarding "no pending li�ga�on" in requirement of Rule 
11 of Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014 is 
deficient to the extent that the Company had a long-
standing dispute with RRVPNL/JVVNL for realisa�on of 
revenue from wind energy for the period from 10 January 
2017 to 26 April 2017, as disclosed in Note 2.32 of the 
financial statements of the Company. 

Management clarified that it does not have any impact 
on the func�oning and going concern status of the 
Company. The Board values the CAG's oversight func�on 
and confirms al l  mater ia l  l i�ga�on has been 
transparently disclosed in compliance with regulatory 
requirements. Statutory Auditors have also assured to 
CAG that the relevant por�on of audit report would be 
made more elabora�ve and explanatory in nature in 

future audit reports. The comments of the C&AG forms 
part of Directors Report.

Secretarial Auditor

The Board has appointed M/s Akhil Rohatgi & Co., 
Company Secretaries to conduct Secretarial Audit for the 
financial year 2024-25. The Secretarial Audit Report for 
the financial year ended 31st March 2025 has been 
placed at Annexure – V. 

The Secretarial Auditor in its report men�oned that there 
was no Women Director on the Board of the Company 
w.e.f. 01.12.2024 and in response to which it was clarified 
that pursuant to Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company, 
the appointment of all the directors including woman 
director is done by promoters of the Company.

Cost Records and Cost Audit

Pursuant to the requirements of Sec�on 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost 
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Company 
commenced maintenance of cost records during the 
financial year 2024-25. In this regard, the Company has 
formulated a cost accoun�ng policy with the assistance 
of a Prac�cing Cost Accountant, which has been duly 
approved by the Board of Directors.

During the year under review, although the Company has 
started maintaining cost records as prescribed under 
Sec�on 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
requirement of cost audit as s�pulated under the said 
sec�on and applicable rules is not a�racted to the 
business ac�vi�es of the Company for the financial year 
2024-25.

General

Your directors state that no disclosure or repor�ng is 
required in respect of the following items as there were 
no transac�ons on these items during the year under 
review: 

• Details Rela�ng to Deposits Covered Under Chapter 
V of the Companies Act. 

•  Issue of Equity Shares with Differen�al Rights as to 
Dividend, Vo�ng or Otherwise. 

•  Issue of Shares (Including Sweat Equity Shares) to 
Employees of the Company Under any Scheme Save 
and except ESOPreferred to in this report. 
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•  Neither the Chairman nor the Directors of the 
Company receive any remunera�on or commission 
from any of Its Subsidiaries. – Not Applicable 

Significant and Material Orders Passed by the 
Regulators/Courts/Tribunals impac�ng the 
Going Concern Status and Company's 
Opera�ons in Future

No significant or material order has been passed by the 
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impac�ng the going 
concern status of the Company and its opera�ons in 
future.

Applica�on / Proceeding Pending Under 
Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016

There are no proceedings ini�ated / pending against your 
company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 
2016 which materially impact the business of the 
company.

Disclosure  in  Rela�on  to  the  Sexual 
Harassment  of  Women at  Workplace 
(Preven�on, Prohibi�on and Redressal Act, 
2013)

The company has complied with the provisions rela�ng 
to the cons�tu�on of Internal Complaints Commi�ee 
under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Preven�on, Prohibi�on and Redressal) Act, 2013. During 

the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant 
to the Sexual Harassment of women at workplace 
(Preven�on, Prohibi�on and Redressal) Act, 2013.
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Chairman 
DIN: 07610499
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Report on Corporate Governance
ANNEXURE -I

Company's Philosophy on Corporate Governance

The philosophy of the Company in rela�on to Corporate Governance is to ensure transparency in all its opera�ons, make 
disclosures and repor�ng that conforms fully to laws, rules, regula�ons and guidelines and to promote ethical conduct 
throughout the organiza�on with the primary objec�ve of enhancing shareholders value.

Incorpora�on

REMC Limited (Formerly known as Railway Energy Management Company Limited) was incorporated on 16th August 2013 
as a Joint Venture Company of Ministry of Railways and RITES Limited with equity par�cipa�on in the ra�o of Indian 
Railways (49%) & RITES Ltd. (51%). Authorised Share Capital of the company is `1000 crore and Paid-up Share Capital is 
`105 crore. 

Board of Directors 

The Board of Directors of the company comprises of five (5) Directors viz. three (3) Nominee Directors of RITES Ltd including 
Chairman and two (2) Nominee Directors of Ministry of Railways.

Composi�on of the Board of Directors

The names and categories of Directors on the Board, number of Directorships and Commi�ee Chairmanship/Membership 
held by them in other companies are as under:

Shri Rahul Mithal Chairman 1 Nil Nil
DIN: 07610499 
Shri Anurag Kapil  Director 2 3 3
DIN: 06640383
(From: 24.04.2024) 
Shri Krishna Gopal Agarwal Director 3 Nil 3
DIN: 10239667 
Shri Gajendra Kumar Director 1 Nil 3
DIN:10652448
(From: 03.06.2024)
Shri Prem Singh Meena Director Nil Nil Nil
DIN: 10855590
(From: 01.12.2024) 
Smt. Tarini Baswal Director NA NA NA
DIN: 10476023
(Up to 30.11.2024) 
Shri Manish Gupta Director NA NA NA
DIN: 07327439
(Up to 28.05.2024) 
Shri Ajeet Kumar Srivastava  Director NA NA NA
DIN: 08187918
(Up to 04.04.2024) 

Directors Category of Directors
(Part Time) /
Independent 

No. of other
Directorship*

No. of Commi�ee
Membership**

As Chairman As Member

Notes: 
* Does not include Directorship in Private Companies, Sec�on 8 Companies and Foreign Companies
** Includes Chairmanship / Membership in the Board of Commi�ees of Audit Commi�ee, CSR Commi�ee, Nomina�on & 

Remunera�on Commi�ee and Risk Management Commi�ee, Share Transfer Commi�ee and Stakeholder Rela�onship Commi�ee.
None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 commi�ees or chairman of more than 5 commi�ees across all the 
companies in which he is a director. 

S. 
No.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8
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Brief Resume of Director who joined the Board as Whole - �me / Part �me/ Independent Director 
during the year 2024-25

Shri Anurag Kapil has joined as Ministry of Railways nominee on the Board of REMC Ltd. on 24/04/2024. He is an 
IRAS officer of 1998 Civil Services Examina�on batch. He holds a graduate degree of Chemistry Honours from Hans Raj 
College, Delhi University, Masters in Public Affairs from University of Minnesota, USA and MBA from FMS Delhi.  He 
has served the Government of India for more than 26 years. In the Ministry of Railways he has worked in field, 
Vigilance, HQ and is presently working in Railway Board as Execu�ve Director Finance (Expenditure). He has been 
conferred with Hon'ble Minister of Railways Award in 2009 for Outstanding Services. He has been on Central Staffing 
Scheme deputa�on as Director in Ministry of Coal. He represented India/Ministry at various bilateral/Mul�lateral 
pla�orms in India and abroad. He hold the Addi�onal Charge of Director Finance at Container Corpora�on of India Ltd.

Shri Gajendra Kumar has joined as Ministry of Railways nominee on the Board of REMC Ltd. on 03/06/2024. He is 
presently working as Execu�ve Director, Electrical Energy (Management) in Railway Board, Ministry of Railways. He is 
handling various important assignments like Trac�on Distribu�on, General Electrical Systems, Open Access for IR and 
Passenger ameni�es Electrical works including prolifera�on of Renewable Energy and Energy Conserva�on works 
over Indian Railways (IR).  He is an IRSEE (Indian Railway Service of Electrical Engineers) officer and has more than 25 
years of experience in the Government of India including Ministry of Power.  He holds gradua�on in Electronics Power 
Engineering from NIT, Nagpur and MBA from MDI, Gurgaon. He a�ended execu�ve programs at Sciences Po (Paris), 
Her�e School of Governance (Berlin), Southwest Jiaotong University (China) and INSEAD (Singapore).

Shri Prem Singh Meena has joined as Director on the Board of REMC Ltd. on 01/12/2024. Presently, He is working as 
Execu�ve Director (Project Coordinator, Rail Infra and Metro) in RITES Limited. He is handling various important 
assignments like Railway Electrifica�on projects, new Railway siding works, Signaling works, PMCs of Metro Rail 
projects and Business Development for RITES Ltd. He is an IRSEE (Indian Railway Service of Electrical Engineers) officer 
of 1990 batch and has more than 33 years of experience in Trac�on Distribu�on, Trac�on Rolling Stocks, General 
Electrical Services under Ministry of Railways.  He holds gradua�on degree in Electrical Engineering from NIT, Jaipur. 
He a�ended Advanced Management Program at INSEAD, Singapore and ICLIF, Malaysia. He also a�ended Heavy Haul 
training at Southwest Jiao tong University, Beijing (China).

Number of Board Mee�ngs

The Board of Directors met six (6) �mes during the year 2024-25 to review the working of the company and discuss the 
future business ac�vi�es/ plans etc. of the Company.

Shri Rahul Mithal  6 6 Present
DIN: 07610499 
Shri Anurag Kapil  6 6 Present
DIN: 06640383
(From: 24.04.2024) 
Shri Krishna Gopal Agarwal  6 6 Present
DIN: 10239667 
Shri Gajendra Kumar  5 5 Present
DIN:10652448
(From 03.06.2024) 
Shri Prem Singh Meena  3 3 NA
DIN: 10855590
(From: 01.12.2024)

Directors Board of Directors Mee�ngs During the Year
Held During their
tenure

S. 
No. A�ended A�endance at the AGM held on

6th September, 2024
1

2

3

4

5
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Smt. Tarini Baswal  3 3 Present
DIN:10476023
(up to 30.11.2024) 
Shri Manish Gupta  1 Absent NA
DIN: 07327439
(up to 28.05.2024) 
Shri Ajeet Kumar Srivastava  NA NA NA
DIN: 08187918
(Up to 04.04.2024)

Directors Board of Directors Mee�ngs During the Year
Held During their
tenure

S. 
No. A�ended A�endance at the AGM held on

6th September, 2024
6

7

8

Note: - Dates of the mee�ng and a�endance sheet of the Board of Directors mee�ng during the year 2024-25 is placed 
at Annexure-A.

Remunera�on of Directors

Directors, nominated on the Board of REMC LIMITED (Railway Energy Management Company Limited) by the 
respec�ve organiza�on i.e., Ministry of Railways and RITES Limited, do not draw any remunera�on from the Company.

No si�ng fee is paid to Nominee Directors of Ministry of Railways and RITES Limited for a�ending Board and 
Commi�ee Mee�ng of the Company. 

However, si�ng fee was paid to Non-Official Independent Director for a�ending Board and Commi�ee mee�ngs of 
the Company.

Code of Conduct

All Board members and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct for the 
year ended 31st March 2025.

Commi�ees of the Board of Directors

Audit Commi�ee

As on 31st March 2025, Audit Commi�ee comprised the following Directors:

Name Posi�on in the Commi�ee Designa�on

Shri Krishna Gopal Agarwal  Chairman Director
DIN: 10239667  
Shri Anurag Kapil   Member Director   
DIN: 06640383
(From:  11.07.2024)
Shri Prem Singh Meena   Member Director
DIN: 10855590
 (From: 01.01.2025)
Smt. Tarini Baswal  Member Director
DIN: 10476023
(Up to 30.11.2024)
Shri Manish Gupta  Member Director
DIN: 07327439
(Up to 28.05.2024)
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 During the year four (4) mee�ngs of Audit Commi�ee were held (22.05.2024, 24.07.2024, 28.10.2024 and 
27.01.2025)

The Terms of Reference:

(a) Oversight of the Company's financial repor�ng process and the disclosures of its financial informa�on to 
ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient, and credible.

(b) Recommending to the Board regarding the fixa�on of audit fees.

(c) Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by them.

(d) Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the Board for 
approval, with par�cular reference to.

 (i) Ma�ers required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board's 
report in terms of clause(c) of sub- sec�on (3) of Sec�on 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

 (ii) Changes, if any, in accoun�ng policies and prac�ces and reasons for the same.

 (iii) Major accoun�ng entries involving es�mates based on the exercise of judgment by management.

 (iv) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.

 (v) Compliance with the legal requirements rela�ng to financial statements.

 (vi) Disclosures of any related party transac�ons; and 

 (vii) Qualifica�ons in the dra� audit report.

(e) Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for 
approval.

(f) Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/ applica�on of funds raised through an issue (public 
issue, rights issue, preferen�al issues etc.), the statement of funds u�lized for the purposes other than those 
stated in the offer document/prospectus/no�ce and the report submi�ed by the monitoring agency 
monitoring the u�liza�on of proceeds of public or right issue and making appropriate recommenda�ons to the 
Board to take up steps in this ma�er;

(g) Reviewing, with the management, performance of internal auditors and adequacy of the internal control 
system.

(h) Reviewing the adequacy of the internal audit func�on, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 
department, staffing and seniority of the officials heading the department, repor�ng structure coverage and 
frequency of internal audit.

(i) Discussion with Internal Auditors on any significant findings and follow-up thereon.

(j) Reviewing the findings of any internal inves�ga�ons by the internal auditors into ma�ers where there is 
suspected fraud or irregularity or failure of internal control systems of a material nature and repor�ng the 
ma�er to the Board.

(k) Discussion with the statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as 
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any areas of concern.

(l) To look into the reasons for substan�al defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 
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shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

(m) To review the func�oning of the whistle blower mechanism, in case the same is exis�ng.

(n)  To review the follow up ac�on on the audit observa�ons of the C&AG audit.

(o) To review the follow up ac�on taken on the recommenda�on of commi�ee on public Undertakings ('COPU') of 
the Parliament.

(p) Provide an open avenue of communica�on between the independent auditor, internal auditor and the Board 
of Directors.

(q) Review of all related party transac�ons in the Company. For this purpose, the Audit Commi�ee may designate a 
member who shall be responsible for pre-approving related party transac�ons.

(r) Reviewing with the independent auditor the co-ordina�on of audit efforts to assure completeness of coverage, 
reduc�on of redundant efforts, and the effec�ve use of all audit resources.

(s) Consider and review the following with the independent auditor and the management:

 (i) The adequacy of the internal controls including computerized informa�on system controls and security, 
and 

 (ii) Related findings and recommenda�ons of the independent auditor and internal auditor, together with 
the management responses.

(t) Consider and review the following with the management, internal auditor and the independent auditor:

 (i) Significant findings during the year, including the status of previous audit recommenda�ons.

 (ii) Any difficul�es encountered during audit work including any restric�ons on the scope of ac�vi�es or 
access to required informa�on.

(u) Carrying out any other func�on as is men�oned in the terms of reference of the Audit Commi�ee.

Powers of Audit Commi�ee

a) To inves�gate any ac�vity within its terms of reference

b) To seek informa�on from any employee

c) To obtain outside legal or other professional advice

d) To secure a�endance of outsiders with relevant exper�se, if it considers necessary.

e) To mi�gate conflicts of interest by strengthening auditor independence.

Investment Commi�ee

The Investment Commi�ee will be cons�tuted as and when need arises.

Risk Management Commi�ee

As on 31st March 2025 the Risk Management Commi�ee comprised the following Directors:

During the year mee�ng of Risk Management Commi�ee was held on 14.05.2024
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Name Posi�on in the Commi�ee Designa�on

Shri Gajendra Kumar  Chairman Director
DIN: 10652448
(From 11.07.2024)  
Shri Anurag Kapil  Member Director
DIN: 06640383
(From 11.07.2024)  
Shri Krishna Gopal Agarwal  Member Director
DIN: 10239667  
Shri Manish Gupta  Chairman Director
DIN: 07327439
(up to 28.05.2024)  
Smt. Tarini Baswal  Member Director
DIN 10476023)
(up to 11.07.2024)  

Nomina�on and Remunera�on commi�ee
As on 31st March 2025 the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee comprised the following Directors:

Name Posi�on in the Commi�ee Designa�on

Shri Anurag Kapil  Chairman Director
DIN: 06640383
(From 11.07.2024)
Shri Gajendra Kumar  Member Director
DIN:10652448
(From 11.07.2024)
Shri Prem Singh Meena  Member Director
DIN: 10855590
(From 01.01.2025)
Shri Manish Gupta  Chairman Director
DIN: 07327439
(Up to 28.05.2024)
Shri Krishna Gopal Agarwal  Member Director
DIN: 10239667
(Up to 11.07.2024)
Smt. Tarini Baswal  Member Director
DIN: 10476023
(Up to 30.11.2024)

During the year Three (3) mee�ngs of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee were held (28.10.2024, 
01.01.2025 and 11.03.2025) 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Commi�ee

Corporate Social Responsibility and Sustainability policy demonstrates our commitment to operate in economically, 
socially and environmentally sustainable manner that is transparent and ethical. It encourages engagement with the 
stakeholders including employees, shareholders, investors, customers, clients, business associates, civil society 
groups, Centre/State/ local government, communi�es, at large in determining their needs and expecta�ons towards 
be�erment of environment and society at large. A total amount of `177.12 Lakh as per the mandatory requirement 
has been spent under CSR plan of your company for various projects undertaken during the year.
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As per Sec�on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, and Guidelines on CSR issued by DPE, Board level commi�ee has been 
cons�tuted to oversee the implementa�on of CSR ac�vi�es and to assist the Board of Directors to formulate 
strategies in this regard.

During the year, three (3) mee�ng of the CSR Commi�ee were held on (14.05.2024, 24.07.2024 and 28.10.2024)

As on 31.03.2025, CSR Commi�ee comprised the following Directors: 

Name Posi�on in the Commi�ee Designa�on

Shri Prem Singh Meena  Chairman Director
DIN: 10855590
(From: 01.01.2025) 
Shri Gajendra Kumar  Member Director
DIN:10652448
(From: 11.07.2024) 
Shri Krishna Gopal Agarwal  Member Director
DIN: 10239667 
Smt. Tarini Baswal  Chairperson Director
DIN 10476023)
(up to:30.11.2024) 
Shri Manish Gupta  Member Director
DIN: 07327439
(Up to 28.05. 2024)

The CSR projects / ac�vi�es taken up by the company are in the area/sectors as defined in the Schedule VII of 
Companies Act 2013. Sector wise brief of CSR Projects/ Ac�vi�es taken up by the Company during the year is as under: 

SECTOR: Eradica�ng hunger, poverty and malnutri�on and promo�ng health care including preven�ve health care 
and sanita�on including contribu�on to the Swachh Bharat Kosh set-up by the Central Government for the 
promo�on of sanita�on and making available safe drinking water.

I. Financial support for Healing Li�le Hearts Suffering from Congenital Heart Disease by Sri Sathya Sai Health & 
Educa�on Trust in Chha�sgarh, Haryana & Maharashtra. Amount – ̀  31.24 Lakh.

II. Financial support for Swasthya Saheli: Promo�ng Women Empowerment through Menstrual Hygiene 
Awareness and Healthcare camps in Churu, Rajasthan. Amount – ̀  10.50 Lakh.

III. Financial Assistance for Divyajyo� Eye Checkup Camps and workshops in Ajeetgarh, Sikar Rajasthan Amount -  ̀  
10.50 Lakh.

IV. Financial assistance for 'Suposhit Maa Abhiyan' by distribu�on of Ra�on Kits to pregnant womens in Kota - 
Bundi, Rajasthan.  Amount – ̀ 31.50 Lakh. 

V. Financial support for Procurement of Ultra Sound Machine along with related items, for Northern Railway 
Divisional Hospital Delhi Amount – ̀ 40.00 Lakh.

VI. Financial assistance for Organizing Health Checkup Camps in District Karauli Rajasthan. Amount – ̀ 25.00 Lakh.

SECTOR: Promo�ng educa�on, including special educa�on and employment enhancing voca�on skills especially 
among children, women, elderly, and the differently abled and livelihood enhancement projects.

VII. Financial support for s�tching & tailoring program for deprived woman at skill development center, Ralawata, 
Ajmer, Rajasthan. Amount –`12.86 Lakh.

VIII. Financial Assistance for promo�ng educa�on to under privileged & marginalised children by providing support 
to their School Fees, Books, transporta�on etc. in Gurugram, Haryana- Amount – ̀  10.73 Lakh.
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IX. Financial assistance for Se�ng up Computer Training Centre for skilling the youth in digital technology in 
Dhahrahra Middle School of Silao Block of Nalanda District Bihar under REMC Ltd CSR Plan 2024-25. Amount  -  
` 10.49 Lakh.

Detailed report on CSR has been placed at Annexure-IV.

General Body Mee�ngs

The details of the last three Annual General Mee�ng of the Company and Extra Ordinary General Mee�ng are as 
under:

AGM/EGM Year Date of holding
Mee�ng

Time Venue
(Registered Office)

Special Resolu�on

11th AGM 2023-24 06.09.2024 16:00 HRS 8th Floor, 7 Bhikaji Nil
    Cama Place,
    New Delhi- 110066 
10th AGM 2022-23 11.09.2023 16:00 HRS 8th Floor, 7 Bhikaji Nil
    Cama Place,
    New Delhi- 110066
9th AGM 2021-22 13.09.2022 16:30 HRS 8th Floor, 7 Bhikaji Nil
    Cama Place,
    New Delhi- 110066

Disclosures

•  During the year, there has been no materially significant related party transac�on with the Directors, 
Management or their rela�ves that have a poten�al conflict with the interest of the company.

•    Transac�ons with related par�es as per the requirements of Ind-AS 24 'Related Party Disclosures' are disclosed.

•    The company has followed the Ind-AS in the prepara�on of financial Statements.

•    No penal�es imposed or strictures passed against the company by any statutory authori�es on any ma�ers 
related to any guidelines issued by the Government during the year.

•    There were no instances of non-compliance by the Company.

Means of Communica�on

All important informa�on pertaining to the Company has been men�oned in the Annual Report of the Company 
containing inter-alia Audited Financial Statements, Directors' Report, Report on Corporate Governance which is being 
circulated to the members and others en�tled thereto. All other communica�ons shall be sent to the members 
through electronic mail and/or by surface Post.

Compliance

Cer�ficate obtained from a Prac�cing Company Secretary regarding the condi�ons of Corporate Governance as 
s�pulated in the Guidelines is placed as Annexure - B to this report. 
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DATE OF THE MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE SHEET OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MEETING DURING THE YEAR 2024-25

ANNEXURE-A

Sl.
No.

Name of Directors 55th BODM
22.05.2024

56th BODM
24.07.2024

57th BODM
28.10.2024

58th BODM
01.01.2025

59th BODM
27.01.2025

60th BODM
11.03.2025

Total 
6 (Six)

Mee�ngs

1. Shri Rahul Mithal ü ü ü ü ü ü All

2. Shri Krishna Gopal Agarwal ü ü ü ü ü ü All

3. Shri Anurag Kapil ü ü ü ü ü ü All
 (From 24.04.2024) 

4. Shri Gajendra Kumar  NA ü ü ü ü ü All
 (From 03.06.2024) 

5. Shri Prem Singh Meena  NA NA NA ü ü ü All
 (From 01.12.2024) 

6. Shri Manish Gupta • NA NA NA NA NA •
 (Up to 28.05.2024) 

7. Smt. Tarini Baswal ü ü ü NA NA NA All
 (Up to 30.11.2024)

Note:

ü -   Mee�ng a�ended.

NA -  Not applicable (Not in posi�on)

• -  Mee�ng not a�ended
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CERTIFICATE

ANNEXURE - B

To 
The Members of
REMC LIMITED
Regd off: 8th Floor, 7 Bhikaji Cama Place, Delhi-110066

We have examined the compliance of condi�ons of Corporate Governance by REMC LIMITED (CIN: 
U93000DL2013GOI256661) for the period ended on 31st March, 2025 as s�pulated in the DPE guidelines on 
Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises issued by the 'Department of Public Enterprises', Ministry 
of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises, Government of India.

The compliance of condi�ons of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examina�on, 
carried out is in accordance with the Corporate Governance (Models of Best prac�ces) issued by the Ins�tute of 
Company Secretaries of India, was limited to the procedures and implementa�on thereof, adopted by the Company 
for ensuring the compliance of the condi�ons of Corporate Governance.  It is neither an audit nor an expression of 
opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

We have obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary 
for the purposes of cer�fica�on and have been provided with such records, documents, cer�fica�on, etc. as had been 
required by us. 

In our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, we 
cer�fy that the Company has complied with the condi�ons of Corporate Governance as s�pulated in the guidelines on 
corporate governance issued by the 'Department of Public Enterprises'.

We further state such compliance is neither an assurance as to further viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 
effec�veness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

                                                                      For Akhil Rohatgi & Co.
Company Secretaries

Reg. no. P1995DE072900

Sd/-
CS Deepak Kumar, 

Partner,
M No.: F10189, CP No:11372,

UDIN: F010189G000820341
Date: 19.07.2025
Place: New Delhi   
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ANNEXURE-II

This analysis report provides a concise overview of the 
Company's business outlook and highlights its poten�al 
to leverage emerging opportuni�es in areas such as 
renewable energy, power management, opera�onal 
efficiency, and other related domains. The Management 
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) aims to offer deeper 
insight into the business dynamics of the Company and to 
explain the key factors influencing its financial 
performance.

About the company:

The Company was incorporated in the year 2013 as a 
Joint Venture company of RITES Ltd & Indian Railways 
with equity par�cipa�on in the ra�o of RITES Ltd (51%) & 
Indian Railways (49%) respec�vely. The main objec�ves 
of the Company are: -

(a) E xploring the business opportuni�es in Green 
Energy, in the field of wind and solar for Indian 
Railways.

(b) Facilita�ng cost efficiencies in the energy 
management for Railways by power procurement 
through open bidding as well as power trading 
though power exchanges.

(c) I m p l e m e n t a � o n  a g e n c y  fo r  t h e  e n e r g y 
conserva�on projects owned by Indian Railways.

(d) Iden�fica�on and implementa�on of energy 
efficient technologies in both electric trac�on and 
non-trac�on avenues of Indian Railways

(e) Coordina�on with regulatory authori�es on 
regulatory ma�ers to obtain relief in electricity 
tariff processing.

(f) Exploring the business opportuni�es in PMC and 
associated consultancy services in solar & wind 
power projects, solar poten�al assessment & 
prepara�on of Feasibility Study Report for 
Government PSUs.

Outlook and Opportuni�es

The Indian Railways (IR) is opera�ng in mission mode to 
become the world's largest “Green Railway”, with a firm 
commitment to achieve Net Zero Carbon Emissions by 

2030, in line with the Government of India's pledge at 
COP26 in Glasgow.

To meet this ambi�ous target, Indian Railways has 
adopted a mul�-pronged strategy focused on increasing 
its renewable energy (RE) share, accelera�ng the 
electrifica�on of its trac�on network, and minimizing the 
use of conven�onal energy sources. Given its status as 
one of the largest consumers of energy in the country, IR 
is ac�vely exploring cost-effec�ve and environmentally 
sustainable energy solu�ons to reduce its dependence 
on fossil fuels and significantly cut CO₂ emissions.

As a dedicated arm of Indian Railways for energy 
management and sustainability, REMC Ltd. has 
undertaken several strategic ini�a�ves to harness green 
e n e r g y  a n d  s u p p o r t  I n d i a n  R a i l w a y s  i n  i t s 
decarboniza�on efforts. The company so far has 
supported implementa�on of 65 MW of solar roof top 
projects & 52.5 MW of ground mounted solar projects 
and awarded 143 MW of wind power projects. These 
projects contribute directly to building a cleaner and 
more resilient energy ecosystem for Indian Railways.

Beyond renewable energy genera�on, REMC Ltd. is 
playing a crucial role in managing the electrical energy 
por�olio of IR by ensuring cost-effec�ve procurement of 
power through long-term and medium-term Power 
Purchase Agreements (PPAs) and collec�ve transac�ons 
on energy exchanges.

A major turning point in this journey was the recogni�on 
and opera�onaliza�on of Indian Railways' “deemed 
licensee” status, which enabled it to transi�on from a 
bulk consumer to a licensee, thereby reversing the 
previously rising trend in electric trac�on bills. REMC Ltd. 
is at the forefront of facilita�ng this transforma�on, 
ensuring the progressive migra�on of Railways to the 
deemed licensee mode across various states—resul�ng 
in substan�al savings on trac�on energy costs.

Addi�onally, the Company has ini�ated power 
procurement through collec�ve transac�ons by 
engaging traders on energy exchanges and has ensured 
full compliance with Renewable Purchase Obliga�ons 
(RPO). During FY 2024–25, REMC Ltd. facilitated the 
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procurement of approximately 3954 MUs of energy 
through Indian Energy Exchange (IEX) in key states 
including U�ar Pradesh, Madhya Pradesh, Rajasthan, 
Delhi, Haryana, Jharkhand, Gujarat, Maharashtra, Bihar, 
Punjab, Karnataka, and the DVC region. This energy 
sourcing not only met incremental power requirements 
but also served as standby power during genera�on 
shor�alls from DISCOMs/GENCOs.

In another first-�me innova�on for Indian Railways to 
become Net Zero Carbon Emi�er by 2030, your company 
has engaged a specialized consultant to provide services 
for “Accoun�ng and Repor�ng of Greenhouse Gas (GHG) 
Emission Data and Iden�fica�on of Poten�al Carbon 
Offset Projects.” This is being undertaken in coordina�on 
with the Ministry of Railways, Zonal Railways (ZRs), 
Produc�on Units (PUs), and Workshops.

In summary, through a combina�on of renewable energy 
integra�on, intelligent power procurement, and 
regulatory leverage, REMC Ltd. is playing a vital role in 
driving Indian Railways' transforma�on into a net zero 
and energy-efficient transporter, se�ng a global 
benchmark in sustainable mobility.

Power Planning in Indian Railways:

Indian Railways has undertaken a focused strategy to 
reduce its opera�ng expenses by exploring alterna�ve 
approaches, including procurement of energy at 
compe��ve rates. In alignment with this objec�ve, REMC 
Ltd. played a pivotal role in securing the Deemed 
Licensee status for Railways. This strategic move has 
enabled Indian Railways to directly procure power from 
generators at discovered tariffs, while paying only the 
applicable regulatory charges to central and state u�li�es 
under the open access framework.

To diversify into emerging segments across the power 
value chain, the company has also ini�ated energy 
procurement through collec�ve transac�ons by bidding 
via traders on the power exchange, while ensuring full 
compliance with Renewable Purchase Obliga�ons (RPO) 
for Indian Railways.

As the nodal en�ty entrusted with handling the en�re 
power procurement under open access for Indian 
Ra i lways ,  REMC Ltd .  successfu l ly  fac i l i tated 
approximately 2302 MW of power capacity during the 
current financial year.

Harnessing Renewable Energy

Indian Railways has set an ambi�ous goal to achieve Net 
Zero Carbon Emissions by 2030 and is steadily reducing 
its reliance on fossil fuels by increasing the share of 
renewable energy in its power mix. Genera�on of power 
from renewable sources is a key pillar in mi�ga�ng CO₂ 
emissions, and in line with this, your company is ac�vely 
expanding the renewable energy genera�on por�olio for 
Indian Railways.

Several progressive policy measuressuch as (i) guidelines 
for tariff-based compe��ve bidding for solar and wind 
power, (ii) a solar-wind hybrid policy to a�ract 
investment, and (iii) waiver of transmission charges for 
renewable projects along with historically low solar and 
wind tariffs, have significantly transformed the 
renewable energy landscape.

Addi�onally, the Renewable Purchase Obliga�on (RPO) 
trajectories set by the Government of India and the 
recently no�fied Carbon Credit Trading Scheme (CCTS) 
are expected to further accelerate clean energy 
deployment for IR. 

In alignment with these developments, REMC Ltd. has 
taken the lead in implemen�ng wind and solar energy 
projects for Indian Railways. As the nodal agency, REMC 
Ltd. is responsible for the planning, bid process 
management, and execu�on of renewable energy 
projects across the Railway network.

(i) Solar roof-top projects

 Your company has supported implementa�on of 65 
MW of solar roof top projects on behalf of various 
Zonal Railways, both with and without Central 
Financial Assistance (CFA), marking a significant step 
toward harnessing decentralized renewable energy 
for Indian Railways.

(ii) 50 MW solar ground mounted project

 The Company has setup up a 50 MW Solar Power 
Plant at Bhilai. Power generated from this solar 
plant is being used for trac�on purpose in states of 
UP (NCR) (25 MW) and Karnataka (SWR) (25 MW). 
Solar PV plant will generate approx. 102 MUs of 
solar power annually. ISTS Transmission Charges & 
Losses are waived off for Railways. Power flow to 
grid started on 22.04.2023 & subsequently this solar 
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plant was inaugurated by Hon'ble Prime Minister. In 
this project, REMCL has contributed through 
c o n s u l t a n c y  s e r v i c e s  f r o m  c o n c e p t  t o 
commissioning.

(iii) 400 MW solar ground mounted project

 The Company has facilitated signing of tripar�te PPA 
on 25.11.2021 between West Central Railways on 
behalf of IR, Rewa Ultra Mega Solar Ltd (RUMSL) and 
SPDs for 400 MW Solar power. It will be supplied to 
Indian Railways in the state of Gujarat, Maharashtra, 
UP-STU, Haryana, Jharkhand, DVC Area. Part 
capacity of 144 MW opera�onalized during FY 2024-
25. 

(iv) 500 MW Solar ground mounted project

 500 MW Solar power from IRCON Renewable Power 
Ltd. (IRPL) in CPSU scheme will be supplied to 
Maharashtra, Madhya Pradesh, UP-STU, Bihar-STU 
& Karnataka state. The Company has facilitated 
signing of PPA on 04.05.2022 by South Western 
Railways on behalf of IR, with SPD. Part capacity of 
150 MW opera�onalized during FY 2024-25. 

(v) PMC Services, Solar Poten�al assessment & 
Feasibility study

 An assignment of assessment of solar poten�al / 
Prepara�on of Feasibility Study Report/Project 
Management Consultancy (PMC) at DFCCIL's 
corporate office, Noida and MRVC, Mumbai has 
been secured.

(vi) Exploring new avenues in Renewable projects and 
BESS

 New avenues are being explored for implemen�ng 
Solar Power Plant at various vacant land parcels of IR 
in different states and steps are taken for exploring 
Ba�ery Energy Storage / Pump Storage Power 
Solu�ons in solar/wind power projects. 

 Proposal of solar power plant at vacant Railway land 
of SECR and Pilot BESS project at vacant Railway land 
of Dahod of WR is under considera�on.

Wind Power Projects:

Consistently expanding its footprint in the wind energy 
sector, your company has successfully implemented 
approximately 93 MW of wind power projects dedicated 

to mee�ng Indian Railways' trac�on load requirements. 
These projects, commissioned at various loca�ons, 
reflect your company's sustained efforts to harness clean 
energy for railway opera�ons: 

(I) 26 MW Windmill Plant on CAPEX mode at Jaisalmer, 
Rajasthan. Your company has accounted for 25.56 
MUs (Million Units) of energy generated from 26 
MW Wind Power Plant during FY 2024-25. 

(ii) 10.5 MW wind power project on PMC mode has 
been setup in Tamil Nadu and the energy is directly 
being u�lized by Southern Railway (SR), Tamil 
Nadu.

(iii) 56.4 MW wind power project for CR in Maharashtra 
on tariff based compe��ve bidding has been setup. 
103 MUs (Million Units) of energy generated from 
the Power Plant has been u�lized by Central 
Railway in the state of Maharashtra during FY 2024-
25.

Business Performance:

During the year, your Company has made notable strides 
in the Renewable Energy and Electricity sectors. Power 
flow of approximately 2,302 MW was successfully 
facilitated under Open Access across 14 states/en��es 
for Indian Railways. Addi�onally, your Company enabled 
the procurement of 600 MW of power from DVC at CERC 
determined tariff for a dura�on of 15 years, out of which 
a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) for 350 MW has 
already been executed between Eastern Railway and 
DVC. Power supply under this PPA commenced on 
01.01.2025.

In alignment with Indian Railways' na�onal vision of 
achieving Net Zero Carbon Emissions by 2030 and 
transi�oning into a “Green Railway”, several renewable 
energy ini�a�ves have been undertaken through REMC 
Ltd. So far, your Company has successfully implemented 
approximately 65 MW of solar roo�op projects, 52.5 MW 
of ground-mounted solar projects, and 93 MW of wind 
energy projects, contribu�ng significantly to the 
reduc�on of Indian Railways' carbon footprint.

Further, your Company played a key role in facilita�ng 
East Central Railway to secure Exchange NOC from DVC 
and enhance Open Access quantum in Bihar by 70 MW. 
Northern Railway has secured a NOC for an addi�onal 15 
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MW long-term power in Punjab. Similarly, South Western 
Railway obtained a 30 MW addi�onal long-term NOC in 
Karnataka, and Central Railway received a 240 MW long-
term NOC in Maharashtra

To strengthen power management capabili�es and 
effec�ve scheduling & forecas�ng, REMC Ltd also 
established a Na�onal Energy Management Centre 
(NEMC), which operates 24x7 and enables op�mal 
scheduling of BRBCL power under Un-Requisi�oned 
Surplus (URS), resul�ng in enhanced BRBCL u�liza�on 
and cost savings for Indian Railways.

Moreover, your Company has successfully integrated 
power from both conven�onal and renewable sources in 
line with the Railways' Renewable Purchase Obliga�ons 
(RPOs), considering op�mal load requirements for the 
current year and projec�ons up to FY 2029-30.

As part of the Mission Net Zero ini�a�ve, your Company 
has appointed a consultant for accoun�ng and repor�ng 
of GHG emissions and iden�fica�on of poten�al carbon 
offset projects across Indian Railways. This work is being 
carried out in close coordina�on with the Ministry of 
Railways, Zonal Railways, Produc�on Units, and 
Workshops. A web-based applica�on is also under 
development to track and monitor both current and 
future emissions.

Through these mul�faceted ini�a�ves, your Company 
has not only enabled Indian Railways to achieve 
significant savings in energy costs, but also played a 
pivotal role in managing its sustainability agenda by 
driving the shi� to clean, renewable energy sources and 
suppor�ng its journey toward a net-zero future.

Future Projects

Planning to fulfil Railways RPO by purchasing power 
under Green Day Ahead Market (GDAM) through Power 
Exchange and procurement of RE RTC power blended 
with other power source. Your company shall coordinate 
with BSUL (Bundelkhand Saur Urja Ltd.) for procurement 
of 800 MW solar powers for IR.

Your company has awarded LOA and PPA signed on 
31.03.2023 between CR and WPD for se�ng up of 50 
MW wind power plant in Karnataka. Power generated 
from this wind plant shall be u�lized for trac�on purpose 
in the state of Maharashtra. The Project is likely to be 

commissioned during FY 2025-26. 

Further your company invited bids for procurement of 
750 MW RE power under RTC (Round the Clock) mode on 
29.09.2023 which has been successfully concluded and, 
LoAs for execu�on of 700 MW RE RTC Projects have been 
issued to five (05) renewable power developers on 
29.02.2024 and PPA's of 600 MW have been successfully 
signed between RPD's and Nodal Railways during Nov & 
Dec' 24. The Projects are likely to be commissioned 
during FY 2027-28.

Your company has recently started efforts of ge�ng 
technical services assignment in the field of energy value 
chain. Ini�al efforts have resulted into securing two 
assignments of “PMC Services, Solar Poten�al 
assessment & Feasibility study at DFCCIL, New Corporate 
Office Complex at Noida (U.P.) and MRVC, Mumbai.  

Efforts are ongoing for securing more such assignments 
from Na�onal High Speed Rail Corpora�on Limited 
(NHSRCL) and Container Corpora�on of India Limited 
(CONCOR) etc.

Net Zero Por�olio

All of these forward-looking ini�a�ves form a cri�cal part 
of your Company's evolving Net Zero Por�olio, aligned 
with Indian Railways' mission of achieving Net Zero 
Carbon Emissions by 2030. As part of this transforma�ve 
journey, your Company has appointed a specialized 
consultant to undertake a comprehensive Greenhouse 
Gas (GHG) Accoun�ng and Repor�ng Study for Indian 
Railways. This study includes the iden�fica�on of 
poten�al  carbon offset projects and is  being 
implemented in close coordina�on with the Ministry of 
Railways, Zonal Railways, Produc�on Units, and 
Workshops.

To support ongoing and future GHG monitoring, a 
dedicated web-based applica�on is also being developed 
under this project, enabling real-�me tracking and 
management of emissions data across Indian Railways. 
These are first-of-their-kind ini�a�ves in the history of 
Indian Railways and represent a pioneering step toward 
ins�tu�onal i z ing  c l imate  accountab i l i ty  and 
sustainability across the en�re railway ecosystem.

By  fac i l i ta�ng  large-sca le  renewable  energy 
procurement, enabling advanced emissions tracking, 
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and offering strategic technical advisory, your Company 
is playing a central role in delivering a greener, more 
energy-efficient future for Indian Railways.

Regulatory Ma�ers
Your company has empaneled Advocates to facilitate 
Indian Railways in contes�ng, prepara�on and filing of 
pe��ons at Supreme Court, APTEL, CERC and SERCs. 
Senior Advocates are also being hired based on the 
merits of the case. 

(I) Your company facilitated Indian Railways in 
prepara�on of appeal and �mely filing before the 
Hon'ble Supreme Court challenging the adverse 
APTEL order dated 12.02.2024 related to Deemed 
Licensee status of Indian Railways & levy of Cross 
Subsidy Surcharge (CSS) and Addi�onal Surcharge 
(ASC).  The Hon'ble Supreme Court vide its daily 
orders dated 06.05.24 & 08.11.24 directed that 
Railways shall not be liable to pay CSS and ASC to the 
distribu�on licensees for availing open access but 
they shall be liable to pay transmission and wheeling 
charges. In case any of DISCOMs/ GENCOs refuses to 
grant open access to Indian Railways, the Supreme 
Court has granted liberty to Indian Railways to file an 
applica�on for contempt. The next date of hearing in 
the ma�er is awaited. 

(ii) With persistent efforts of your company, favourable 
order from CERC in ma�er related to acceptance of 
Le�er of Mandate (LOM) in lieu of Connec�vity Bank 
Guarantee (Con. BG) for grant of connec�vity to the 
Inter State Transmission System (ISTS) obtained from 
CERC.

(iii) Your company facilitated Indian Railways in securing, 
a favourable order from SERC pertaining to 
i m p l e m e n ta� o n  o f  D e v i a� o n  S e � l e m e n t 
Mechanism having financial implica�ons on 
Northern Railway.

(iv) Your company is facilita�ng IR in contes�ng the 
ongoing ma�ers from previous financial years before 
the Supreme Court, APTEL, CERC as well as SERCs. 

Opera�onal Performance:

Indian Railways is ac�vely promo�ng the adop�on of 
renewable energy across its infrastructure to achieve Net 
Zero Carbon Emissions (NZCE) by 2030 and reduce its 
reliance on fossil fuels. Your Company, REMC Ltd, is 

playing a pivotal role in suppor�ng Indian Railways in this 
decarboniza�on journey by efficiently managing its 
power por�olio, which includes trac�on power, 
renewable energy (wind and solar), transmission 
planning, as well as legal and regulatory support.

Some of the key highlights for the financial year 
2024–25 are as follows:
•  Mission Net Zero: Your Company is working diligently 

towards Indian Railways' NZCE goal. A consultant has 
been appointed to undertake the study on 
Accoun�ng and Repor�ng of GHG Emissions and 
Iden�fica�on of Poten�al Carbon Offset Projects. 
This ac�vity is being coordinated with the Ministry of 
Railways and all Zonal Railways, Produc�on Units, 
and Workshops. A web-based applica�on is also 
under development to enable real-�me monitoring 
of both current and future emissions data.

•  Na�onal Energy Management Centre (NEMC): A 
state-of-the-art NEMC has been established, which is 
interconnected in real-�me through leased lines with 
17 State Energy Management Centres (SEMCs) 
across various zones of Indian Railways. It operates 
24x7 and provides real-�me data from Open Access 
generators, enabling op�mal power u�liza�on, 
devia�on minimiza�on, and effec�ve load pa�ern 
analysis through power exchange par�cipa�on.

•  AI/ML Collabora�on with IIT Kanpur: Your Company 
is working closely with IIT Kanpur to develop AI/ML-
based so�ware for �me-block wise load forecas�ng 
in Open Access states, as well as forecas�ng 
genera�on from Renewable Energy sources. This tool 
is crucial for accurate power scheduling.

•   Energy Exchange Procurement: Your Company 
facilitated Indian Railways' par�cipa�on in power 
markets across U.P., M.P., Rajasthan, Delhi, Haryana, 
Jharkhand, Gujarat, Maharashtra, Bihar, DVC, 
Punjab, and Karnataka. During FY 2024–25, a total of 
3,954 MUs of electricity were procured through the 
Energy Exchange (DAM and RTM) to meet peak and 
backup power needs. 

•   Green Day Ahead Market (GDAM): Successfully 
enabled the procurement of 1,052 MUs of green 
power through GDAM to support Renewable 
Purchase Obliga�on (RPO) compliance by Indian 
Railways.
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• Renewable Energy – Round the Clock (RE-RTC) 
Procurement: Tied up 1600 MW of RE-RTC power 
under Long-Term Open Access. Power from a 
par�ally commissioned SECI wind & Solar project is 
being availed by WCR & NR-UP , and 50 MW of Bhilai 
solar power has been flowing since April 2023.

• Thermal Power Supply: Commenced 350 MW of 
thermal power supply from DVC–RTPS in January 
2025.

• Upcoming Thermal Projects: In-principle approvals 
have been obtained from the Railway Board for the 
procurement of:

 o 400 MW from BRBCL Phase-II (2x250 MW)

 o 680 MW from NSPCL Bhilai-II (1x800 MW)

• Nuclear Power Integra�on: In-principal approval has 
also been secured for sourcing 980 MW of trac�on 
power from the Mahi–Banswara Nuclear Power 
Plant (4x700 MW).

• Hydro Power- REMCL has facilitated Indian Railways 
in tying up 400 MW hydro power from Kalai-II project 
being set up by THDC. 

• Solar Project Execu�on:

 o  144 MW (out of 195 MW) of solar power from 
RUMSL has commenced during FY 2024–25.

 o  150 MW (out of 500 MW) of solar power from 
IRPL has also been commissioned in the same 
period.

• Consultancy Assignments: Secured two technical 
consultancy assignments:

 o PMC services, solar poten�al assessment, and 
feasibility study for DFCCIL's new corporate office 
complex in Noida, U.P.

 o Feasibility and assessment study for Mumbai 
Railway Vikas Corpora�on (MRVC).

Key Financial Ra�os:

S. No. Par�culars 2024-25 2023-24

I) Debtor Turnover 26.37 32.86

 (No of Days)

ii) Interest Coverage NA NA

 Ra�o (Times) 

iii) Current Ra�o 15.57 11.75

  (Times)

S. No. Par�culars 2024-25 2023-24

iv) Opera�ng Profit  71.11 72.99

 Margin (%)

v) Net Profit Margin (%) 56.46 52.99

  (PAT / Total Revenue)

vi) Return on Net Worth  35.17 35.03

 (PAT/ Avg Net worth)

Strength:

The Company con�nues to maintain a compe��ve edge 
in the power sector, leveraging its core strengths, 
technical exper�se, and deep sectoral experience. With 
the progressive electrifica�on of railway tracks across the 
country, the power por�olio of Indian Railways is rapidly 
expanding, opening up numerous opportuni�es for 
op�miza�on, innova�on, and growth.

Backed by its vast domain knowledge, the Company has 
emerged as a trusted brand in the power sector, 
par�cularly in the niche domain of trac�on power 
management for Indian Railways. By adop�ng state-of-
the-art technologies and data-driven strategies, the 
Company is enabling Indian Railways to significantly 
reduce opera�ng expenses by procuring power at 
economical tariffs. A comprehensive pan-India power 
procurement plan has been developed to address the 
growing energy needs arising from enhanced 
electrifica�on.

As more railway lines are electrified over �me, cost-
effec�ve and reliable power procurement will play a 
crucial role in managing the overall energy expenditure. 
In this context, accurate load forecas�ng and op�mal 
scheduling of power—close to real-�me demand—is 
cri�cal. The establishment of the Na�onal Energy 
Management Centre (NEMC) has significantly enhanced 
the Company's capability to monitor, schedule, and 
manage power efficiently, thereby reinforcing its 
compe��ve posi�oning.

To further support Indian Railways in its Mission Net Zero 
Carbon Emission (NZCE) by 2030, your Company has 
appointed a consultant to undertake a first ever 
comprehensive study on GHG Accoun�ng and Repor�ng, 
including iden�fica�on of poten�al carbon offset 
projects. As part of this ini�a�ve, a web-based 
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applica�on is being developed that will present detailed 
emissions data and offset poten�al for each Zonal 
Railway, Produc�on Unit, Division, and Workshop. This 
tool will play a pivotal role in providing a transparent and 
structured mechanism to track emissions and formulate 
a robust roadmap for carbon offse�ng across Indian 
Railways.

With strong policy impetus from the Government 
towards clean and renewable energy, the Company is 
ac�vely exploring and execu�ng opportuni�es in wind, 
solar, and Round-the-Clock (RTC) blended power. It is 
commi�ed to scaling up renewable energy adop�on by 
implemen�ng cu�ng-edge renewable projects across 
the country. These ini�a�ves not only support the 
na�on's sustainability goals but also strengthen Indian 
Railways' transi�on toward a Net Zero Carbon Emissions 
future.

Risk and Concerns:

 • Your Company is facilita�ng Indian Railways in 
contes�ng various open access and contractual 
issues before the Hon'ble Supreme Court, 
APTEL, CERC, and SERCs. Although the Hon'ble 
Supreme Court, through daily orders dated 
06.05.2024 and 08.11.2024, has directed that 
Indian Railways is not liable to pay Cross 
Subsidy Surcharge and Addi�onal Surcharge to 
distribu�on licensees for power availed under 
open access, the ma�er remains sub judice. 
The final judgment regarding the deemed 
licensee status could have a significant impact 
on the Company's business opera�ons.

 • The growing renewable energy sector has 
a � r a c t e d  n u m e r o u s  d o m e s � c  a n d 
interna�onal players, increasing market 
compe��on. Enhanced foreign investments, 
joint ventures, and improved access to 
financing by large conglomerates have 
contributed to aggressive tariff reduc�ons. 
Your Company foresees business risks in this 
evolving landscape and is accordingly 
ex p a n d i n g  i t s  re s o u rc e  b a s e  to  stay 
compe��ve.

 • The Indian power sector is witnessing a rapid 
transi�on from conven�onal to renewable 

energy sources. This transi�on is driving 
constant technological innova�on, resul�ng in 
the rapid introduc�on of more efficient 
solu�ons that are replacing earlier systems. 
However, the high upfront capital cost at the 
project's incep�on, coupled with the challenge 
of locking in tariffs over the lifecycle of the 
project, poses a financial risk, par�cularly as 
newer technologies may render exis�ng 
infrastructure obsolete.

• Accurate es�ma�on of the Capacity U�liza�on 
Factor (CUF) for solar, wind, and hybrid projects 
remains a cri�cal and challenging task. CUF is 
vital for projec�ng revenue flows and 
determining levelized tariffs. However, it 
depends  on  numerous  technica l  and 
environmental variables, making it inherently 
unpredictable and a poten�al business risk.

 • Another challenge is the availability of 
adequate transmission infrastructure. Issues 
such as connec�vity of the project to the grid 
and lack of sufficient transmission capacity to 
evacuate generated power to drawl points 
con�nue to pose opera�onal hurdles.

 • To support Indian Railways in its ambi�ous goal 
of achieving Net Zero Carbon Emissions by 
2030, your Company has ini�ated a first-of-its-
kind project for GHG emission accoun�ng and 
offset iden�fica�on across the Indian Railways 
network. A web-based pla�orm is being 
developed to monitor and map emissions and 
offsets at the level of Zonal Railways, 
Produc�on Units, Divisions, and Workshops. 
While the ini�a�ve may face challenges related 
to data accuracy, standardiza�on, integra�on 
with mul�ple systems, and evolving carbon 
market regula�ons, it will play a pivotal role in 
developing a structured and effec�ve 
decarboniza�on roadmap for Indian Railways.

Contribu�on to Govt. Ini�a�ves

The Company has always been proac�vely suppor�ng 
ini�a�ves of the Government of India such as Azadi Ka 
Amrit Mahotsav, Skill India, Swachh Bharat Mission, 
Startup India, make in India, including MSMEs, Digital 
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India, promo�on of solar ecosystem by formula�ng its 
business or governance objec�ves in line with the 
government plans.

During the year, the company procured goods worth Rs 
0.82 crore from Micro and Small Enterprises, including 
those belonging to SC/ST and Women categories, out of 

the total procurement of Rs 1.34 crore. (Sambandh 
Portal)

Internal Control System:

REMC has adequate internal control and audit systems 
for enhancement of efficiency in opera�ons and to 
ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules and 

regula�ons. REMC internal audit is conducted by 
experienced firmed of Chartered Accountants. The 
internal control and audit systems are also reviewed 
periodically. Correc�ve and preven�ve measures, 
whenever necessary are taken up from �me to �me for 
con�nuous improvement. Effec�ve control and audit 
systems are implemented on the lines of the parent 
company i.e., RITES Ltd.

Human Resources and Industrial Rela�ons:

All the manpower including CEO, CFO & Company 
Secretary have been deputed by the holding company to 
conduct day to day opera�ons. 
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ANNEXURE -III

Form for Disclosure of par�culars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related par�es 
referred to in sub sec�on (1) of sec�on 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length transac�on 
under third proviso thereto.

FORM NO. AOC - 2
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2025

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-sec�on (3) of sec�on 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) 
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

S. No. Par�culars Details

a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of rela�onship Nil

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transac�on Nil

c) Dura�on of the contracts/arrangements/transac�on Nil

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transac�on including the value, if any Nil

e) Jus�fica�on for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transac�ons’ Nil

f) Date of approval by the Board Nil

g) Amount paid as advances, if any Nil

h) Date on which the special resolu�on was passed in General mee�ng as required under Nil
 first proviso to sec�on 188

1.       Details of contracts or arrangements or transac�ons not at Arm's length basis.

2.       Details of contracts or arrangements or transac�ons at Arm's length basis.

S. No. Par�culars  Details

a) Name (s) of the related party RITES Limited – Holding Company (51%) and Ministry of Railways
 & nature of rela�onship (49%) shareholder of the Company

b) Nature of contracts /
 arrangements / transac�on

RITES Limited: - 

Par�culars 

- Fee for services obtained

- Man-Month Expenses of KMP

- Reimbursable Expenses & Taxes

- Dividend Paid

- Capital Advance

- Rental Income

Ministry of Railways:-

Par�culars

- Revenue

- Consultancy

- Power Genera�on

- Recoverable

- Dividend Paid

(` in Lakhs)

Year Ended 31.03.2025

1188.42

248.71

9.45

4337.55

-

24.00

(` in Lakhs)

Year Ended 31.03.2025

11885.09

1453.77

271.35

4167.45
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S. No. Par�culars Details

CEO, CFO and Company Secretary are the employee of holding company 
i.e., RITES Ltd and they have been deputed in the subsidiary company. The 
salary & other benefits viz. PF, pensions etc. of CEO, CFO and Company 
Secretary are being paid directly by RITES Ltd. (holding company) a�er 
deduc�on of TDS as per provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961. For rendering 
service to subsidiary company, fees are charged at man-month rate basis.

Par�culars Year Ended 31.03.2025

Man- Month Charges (` in Lakhs)

Smt. Veena Sinha, CEO
(up to 31.12.2024)
Shri Sanjay Singh, CEO
(from 01.01.2025 to 11.03.2025)
Shri Rizwan Ahmad Jamali, CEO
(from 11.03.2025 to 15.04.2025)
Shri Anjeev Kumar Jain, CFO
(up to 28.10.2024)
Shri Rakesh Kumar Gupta, CFO
(From 28.10.2024)
Shri Ranjan Kumar Tiwary, CS

Total 

86.34

17.82

4.62

75.47

24.44

40.02

                   248.71

RITES Ltd. – Services of experts from holding company is obtained as and when 
required.
Ministry of Railways –
(i) Services for Economic Power Procurement at professional charges of 07 paisa 

per unit

Dura�on of the 
contracts/
arrangements/
transac�on.

c)

a)  West Central Railway (JPL-120MW)
b) Central Railway (DIL-210MW) 
c) Western Railway (JPL90MW) 
d) South-Eastern Railway (JPL-70MW) 
e) North-Central Railway (JPL-60MW) 
f) Central Railway (Nalco – 50.40 MW Wind) 
g) Power from Indian energy exchange (IEX) to
 Zonal railways on various open access State.
h) BRBCL- (819 MW) 
i) MOUDA I & II (1MW+1.32MW)
j) Northern Railways – UP (DVC-RTPS-50MW)
k) Northern Railways – UP (DVC-RTPS-100 MW)
l) Western Railways – (DVC-RTPS-30 MW)
m) North Western Railways – (DVC-RTPS-40 MW)
n) North Central Railways – (DVC-RTPS-30 MW)
o) DVC-DTPS/KTPS (50 MW thermal)
p) Shri Pawan Energy (6 MW Wind)
q) DVC-RTPS (350MW)
r) IRPL-Solar-Part (150MW)

24.11.2022 to 30.09.2025
01.04.2022 to 30.03.2025
21.12.2022 to 30.09.2025
01.10.2022 to 30.09.2025
24.11.2022 to 30.09.2025

25 years PPA from  June, 2019
-

25 years from November, 2021
25 years from December, 2021

03.06.2022 to 01.12.2024
07.12.2022 to 06.06.2025
08.06.2022 to 30.11.2024
08.06.2022 to 07.12.2024
08.06.2022 to 07.12.2024

Jan-2024 to Dec-2025
May-2018 to April-2043

Jan-2025 to Dec-2039
25 Year from COD of

Complete Plant of 500MW
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(iii)  Sale of Renewable Power genera�on from 26 MW windmill plant situated 
at Jaisalmer, Rajasthan

 North-west Railway: PPA Up to 15.10.2040.

 Railways Zone Period

a) SECR (50 MW Bhilai Solar Plant) April, 2023 to March-2048

b) RUMSL (Part)-144MW 29MW- Apr’24 to Mar’49

  51MW-Apr’24 to Mar’49

  13MW-Mar’25 to Feb’50

  19MW-Nov’24 to Dec’49

  20MW-Nov’24 to Dec’49

(ii) Services for Economic Power Procurement at professional charges of 05 
paisa per unit

RITES LTD. – Experts of holding Company render technical services to the company. 
Holding Company charges for their experts on the same basis as being charged to 
other clients. Fees will depend upon the quantum of expert's services u�lized by the 
company.
Transac�on Value for fees for services obtained `1188.42 Lakh (excluding applicable 
taxes).
Man-month expenses of KMPs ̀ 248.71 Lakh (excluding applicable taxes).
Ministry of Railways –
Services for Economic Power Procurement at professional charges of 07 paisa per 
unit.
Professional charges of 07 paisa per Kwh (unit) of energy purchased for Zonal 
Railways through Bi-lateral arrangements, Alloca�on through MoP and Open 
Compe��ve Bidding route against services for effec�ve commencement and 
opera�onaliza�on of economic power procurement by holding company experts.
Total Value of transac�on:  ̀ 11885.09 Lakh
Sale of Renewal Power Genera�on from 26 MW Windmill plant situated at Jaisalmer, 
Rajasthan
Energy produced from windmill plant is being billed based on levelized tariff derived 
on the basis of PPA entered into with respec�ve zonal railway. Your company also 
installed a separate ABT compliant energy meter for direct accoun�ng of energy 
generated by 26 MW Wind Power Plant.  
Total value of transac�on: ̀ 1453.77Lakh

06.05.2025

Nil

d) Salient terms of 
the contracts or 
arrangements or 
transac�on 
including the 
value, if any

e) Date of approval
by the Board

f) Amount paid as 
advances, if any

Sd/-
(Rahul Mithal)

Chairman
DIN: 07610499Date : 28-07-2025

Place : Delhi

s) SECI-RE-RTC-Part  25 Year from COD of complete Plant
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Annual Report on CSR ac�vi�es for FY 2024-25
ANNEXURE-IV

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

 The policy on CSR & Sustainability as adopted by RITES Ltd. (i.e. Holding Company) has been followed by REMC 
Ltd. for implementa�on of CSR projects �ll forma�on of its own CSR Policy.

 Brief outline of the Policy is men�oned below:

 Corporate Social Responsibility and Sustainability policy is our commitment to operate in economically, socially 
and environmentally sustainable manner that is transparent and ethical. It encourages engagement with the 
stakeholders in determining their needs and expecta�ons. The stakeholders include employees, shareholders, 
investors, customers, clients, business associates, civil society groups, Central/State/local government, 
communi�es, environment and society at large. 

 REMC shall strive to integrate social and environmental concerns in its business processes and work towards 
providing the best possible solu�ons for sustainable developmental needs of the society by: 

 (i) Spreading awareness amongst employees about the company's CSR & Sustainability policy, programmes 
& ini�a�ves, importance of adop�ng ethical business prac�ces and implementa�on of CSR & Sustainability 
agenda of the company. 

 (ii) Promo�ng the cause of Sustainable Development and giving due a�en�on to social and environmental 
aspects and their impacts in all its ac�vi�es including the feasibility studies, inves�ga�ons, detailed designs 
& DPRs for various developmental projects in transporta�on & infrastructure sector. 

 (iii) Encouraging use of renewable energy resources such as solar, wind, BESS & others and reduce its carbon, 
water, and waste footprints. 

 (iv) Engaging stakeholders in undertaking CSR & Sustainability projects in and around the areas of company's 
offices/projects and other backward regions/areas with focus on crea�ng the necessary infrastructure 
which will promote educa�on, health, sanita�on and provide connec�vity/mobility, skills and preserve 
natural habitat, water resources, flora and fauna, greenery, environment, heritage and culture. 

 (v) Regular repor�ng of CSR & Sustainability performance of the company. 

 (vi) Crea�ng and enhancing the brand value of the company by adop�on of the highest standards of Corporate 
Governance and best management prac�ces and applica�on of its business exper�se for the good of the 
community and society at large. This policy flows from the Corporate Mission of the company. 

 CSR Policy relates to the ac�vi�es to be undertaken as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 Government guidelines or circulars, issued �me to �me, shall also be adhered to in addi�on to the exis�ng policy.
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3. Provide the web-link(s) where Composi�on of CSR Commi�ee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects approved by the 
board are disclosed on the website of the company.

 i. composi�on of CSR Commi�ee can be accessed through the link: 

  h�ps://www.remcltd.com/Upload/MediaGallery/PDF/sa/New_Doc_01-23-2025_17_42_pdf-2025-Jan-24-
10-32-37.pdf

 ii. web-link(s) of CSR Policy can be accessed through the link: 
h�ps://rites.com/Upload/MediaGallery/PDF/3/RITES_CSR_&_Sustainabilty_Policy_-_August_2024_pdf-
2024-Aug-20-19-30-12.pdf

 iii.  web-link(s) of CSR Projects approved by the board can be accessed through the link: 
h�ps://www.remcltd.com/Index

4. Provide the execu�ve summary along with web-link(s) of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in 
pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable. Not applicable

5. a. Average net profit of the company for the last 3 years as per sub-sec�on (5) of sec�on 135: 
` 8821.81 Lakh 

 b. Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-sec�on (5) of sec�on 135:
` 176.44 Lakh

 c. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or ac�vi�es of the previous financial years. Nil

 d. Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

 e. Total CSR obliga�on for the financial year (b+c-d): ` 176.44 Lakh

6.   a. Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): `168.69 Lakh

 b. Amount spent in Administra�ve Overheads: ` 8.43 Lakh

 c. Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil

 d. Total amount spent for the Financial Year (a+b+c): ` 177.12 Lakh

2.      Composi�on of CSR Commi�ee

S l .
No.

Name of Director Designa�on/Nature
of Directorship

Number of mee�ngs of
CSR Commi�ee held

during the year

Number of mee�ngs of
CSR Commi�ee a�ended

during the year

1. Shri Prem Singh Meena
 DIN: 10855590  

2 Shri Gajendra Kumar
 DIN:10652448

3 Shri Krishna Gopal Agarwal
 DIN: 10239667
4 Smt. Tarini Baswal
 DIN:10476023

5 Shri Manish Gupta
 DIN: 07327439

Addi�onal Director
& Chairman w.e.f.
01.01.2025
Nominee Director &
Member w.e.f.
11.07.2024
Nominee Director
& Member
Nominee Director & 
Chairperson 
upto 30.11.2024
Nominee Director
& Member
upto 28.05.2024

 NA NA
 

 2 2

   
 3 3

 3 3
 

 1 Absent
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Total Amount Spent for the
Financial Year (` in Lakh)

Total Amount transferred to Unspent
CSR Account as per sub-sec�on (6)
of sec�on 135

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VII
as per second proviso to sub-sec�on (5) of sec�on 135

 Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer

 Nil Nil NA Nil NA

(f)   Excess amount for set off, if any:

Sl. No. Par�cular Amount 

(1) (2) (3)

(I) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-sec�on (5) 176.44
 of sec�on 135

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 177.12

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [ii-I] 0.68

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or ac�vi�es of the Nil
 previous financial years, if any

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] Nil

7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sl.
No.

Preceding 
Financial 
Year(s)

Amount
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 
Account 
under sub-
sec�on (6) of 
sec�on 135 
(₹ in Lakhs)

Balance 
Amount in 
unspent CSR 
Account 
under sub-
sec�on (6) of 
sec�on 135 
(₹ in Lakhs)

Amount 
spent in the 
Financial Year 
(₹ in Lakhs)

Amount 
transferred to a 
fund as specified 
under Schedule 
VII as per second 
proviso to sub-
sec�on (5) of 
sec�on 135, if 
any.

Amount 
remaining 
to be spent 
in 
succeeding
Financial 
years
(₹ in Lakhs)

Deficiency, 
if any 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

1. 2023-24 Nil Nil Nil  Nil

2. 2022-23 Nil Nil Nil Not Applicable Nil 

3. 2021-22 10.04 Nil 10.04   Nil 

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount 
spent in the financial Years: Yes

 If yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/acquired

 Furnish the details related to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility 
amount spent in the financial year:

2
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177.12

e.   CSR amount spent and unspent for the financial year 2024-25

(` In Lakhs)

Amount
(` in Lakhs)

 Date of 
transfer
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Short Par�cular of the 
property or asset(s) 
[including complete 
address and loca�on of 
the property]

Sl.
No.

Pin code 
of the 
property 
or 
asset(s)

Date of 
crea�on 

Amount of 
CSR 
amount 
spent.
(` in Lakhs)

Details of En�ty/Authority/beneficiary 
of the registered owner

Financial support for 
Procurement of Ultra Sound 
Machine along with related 
items, for Northern Railway 
Divisional Hospital Delhi 
Save the Life Founda�on 
Northern Railway Divisional 
Hospital, Mukherjee Marg, 
Delhi, PIN:110006

Financial assistance for 
Se�ng up Computer 
Training Centre for skilling 
the youth in digital 
technology in Dhahrahra 
Middle School of Silao Block 
of Nalanda District Bihar 
under REMC Ltd CSR Plan 
2024-25
Society for Ac�on Research 
for Accelerated Livelihood 
Services (SARAL Services)

Dhahrahra Middle School of 
Silao Block of Nalanda 
District Bihar

PIN: 803111

Save the Life 
Founda�on 

Society for 
Ac�on 
Research for 
Accelerated 
Livelihood 
Services 
(SARAL 
Services)

Northern 
Railway 
Divisional 
Hospital,Muk
herjee Marg, 
Delhi, 
PIN:110006

Dhahrahra 
Middle School 
of Silao Block 
of Nalanda 
District Bihar
PIN: 803111

I

ii

110006 28.11.2024 34.47 CSR00080269

803111 28.11.2024 8.20 CSR00012878

 (All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, House no, Municipal 
Office/Municipal Corpora�on/ Gram Panchayat are to be specified and the area of the immovable property 
as well as boundaries)

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per sub-
sec�on (5) of sec�on 135: Not Applicable.

Sd/-
(Bhupender Singh Bodh)
Chief Execu�ve Officer

Sd/-
(Prem Singh Meena)

DIN: 10855590
Chairman,

CSR, Commi�ee

Sd/-
(Rahul Mithal)
DIN: 07610499

Chairman

Date : 28-07-2025
Place : Delhi

CSR Registra�on
Number, if
applicable

Name Registered 
Address
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ANNEXURE-V

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st March 2025
[Pursuant to sec�on 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

REMC Limited 

Regd Off: 8th Floor, 7 Bhikaji Cama Place, Delhi -110 066

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate prac�ces by REMC Limited (hereina�er called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided us a reasonable basis for evalua�ng the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verifica�on of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the company and also the informa�on provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representa�ves during the 
conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial 
year ended on 31st March, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper 
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the repor�ng made hereina�er:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by REMC Limited for 
the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 according to the provisions of:

(I) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regula�ons made there under not applicable.

(iii) The Securi�es Contracts (Regula�ons) Act, 1956 and the rules made thereunder are not applicable as the shares of Company 
are not listed with any of the Stock Exchanges

(iv) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regula�ons and Bye-laws framed thereunder are not applicable as the shares of 
Company are not registered with any of the depository men�oned under the said Act.

(v) The Regula�ons and Guidelines prescribed under the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act') are not 
applicable as the shares of Company are not listed with any of the Stock Exchanges.

(vi) Other applicable Laws, rules and Guidelines as men�oned here-in-below: 

 a. DPE guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises issued by the 'Department of Public 
Enterprises', Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises, Government of India.

 b. Right to Informa�on Act, 2005, checklist and other documents for 
 c. Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006
 d. Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and Redressal) Act, 2013
 e. Environment Laws as applicable
 f. Labour Laws as applicable

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by the Ins�tute of Company 
Secretaries of India. 

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regula�ons, Guidelines, etc. 
however as required under sec�on 149 (1) of the Companies Act 2013, there was No Woman Director in the Company w.e.f. 
01.12.2024.

During the period under review, there were only Non-Execu�ve Directors on the Board of the Company. The changes in the Board 
of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.  

Adequate no�ce is given to all Directors to schedule the Board and Commi�ee Mee�ngs as per the statutory provisions, and 
agenda and detailed notes on agenda which were sent at shorter no�ce were taken up a�er obtaining the requisite permission as 
required under the Secretarial Standard -1 of ICSI. Further a system exists for seeking and obtaining further informa�on and 
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clarifica�ons on the agenda items before the mee�ng and for meaningful par�cipa�on at the mee�ng.

All decisions at Board Mee�ngs and Commi�ee Mee�ngs, as informed by the management, are carried out unanimously as 
recorded in the Minutes of the Mee�ngs of the Board of Directors or Commi�ees of the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and opera�ons of 
the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regula�ons and guidelines.  

                                                                 For Akhil Rohatgi & Co.
Company Secretaries

Reg. no. P1995DE072900

Sd/-
Deepak Kumar

Partner
M. No.: F10189

                                                                            CP No:11372 
UDIN: F010189G000819998

To,
The Members,
REMC Limited 
Regd Off: 8th Floor, 7 Bhikaji Cama Place, Delhi -110066

Our report of even date is to be read along with this le�er.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company.  Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit prac�ces and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the secretarial records.  The verifica�on was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are 
reflected in the secretarial records.  We believe that the processes and prac�ces, we follow provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company. 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representa�on about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regula�ons and happening of the events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable law, rules, regula�ons, standards is the responsibility of 
management.  Our examina�on was limited to the verifica�on of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 
effec�veness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

                                                                  For Akhil Rohatgi & Co.
                                                                 Company Secretaries

Reg. no. P1995DE072900

Sd/-
Deepak Kumar

Partner
M. No.: F10189

                                                                            CP No:11372 
UDIN: F010189G000819998

Date: 19.07.2025
Place: New Delhi

Date: 19.07.2025
Place: New Delhi



Report on the Audit of the Standalone IND-AS
Financial Statements

Independent Auditors' Report

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone IND-AS 
Financial Statements of REMC Limited (“the Company”), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 
2025, the statement of Profit and Loss (including other 
comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in 
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then 
ended on that date and Notes to the Standalone IND-AS 
Financial Statements, including a summary of material 
accoun�ng policies and other explanatory informa�on 
(hereina�er referred to as “Standalone IND-AS Financial 
Statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and 
according to the explana�ons given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the informa�on 
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the Indian Accoun�ng Standards 
prescribed under sec�on 133 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Rules, 2015, 
as amended, (“IND-AS”) and other accoun�ng principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2025 and its profit, total 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash 
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone IND-AS 
Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards 
on Audi�ng (“SAs”) specified under Sec�on 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibili�es under 
those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
sec�on of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by 
the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the financial statements under the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibili�es in accordance with these requirements 
and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 

To the Members of REMC Limited

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion on the Standalone IND-
AS Financial Statements.

Key Audit Ma�ers

Key audit ma�ers are those ma�ers that in our 
professional judgement, were of most significance in our 
audit of the financial statements of the current period. 
These ma�ers were addressed in the context of our audit 
of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these ma�ers. We have not determined any 
key audit ma�ers to communicate in our report.

Informa�on  other  than  the  financial 
statements and auditors' report thereon.

The Company's board of directors is responsible for the 
prepara�on of the other informa�on. The other 
informa�on comprises the informa�on included in the 
Board's report including Annexures to Board's Report but 
does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does 
not cover the other informa�on and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connec�on with our audit of the standalone financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
informa�on and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
informa�on is materially inconsistent with the 
standalone financial statements, or our knowledge 
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of this other 
informa�on; we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and those 
Charged with Governance for the Standalone 
IND-AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the 
ma�ers stated in Sec�on 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
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2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the prepara�on of these 
Standalone  IND-AS Financial Statements that give a true 
and fair view of the financial posi�on, financial 
performance including other comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the accoun�ng principles generally 
accepted in India, including the Indian Accoun�ng 
Standards (IND-AS) specified under Sec�on 133 of the 
Act read with relevant rules issued there under. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accoun�ng records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preven�ng and detec�ng frauds and other 
irregulari�es; selec�on and applica�on of appropriate 
accoun�ng policies; making judgments and es�mates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were opera�ng effec�vely for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accoun�ng records, relevant to the prepara�on and 
presenta�on of the financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone IND-AS Financial 
Statements, management is responsible for assessing 
the Company's ability to con�nue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accoun�ng, 
unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease opera�ons, or has no realis�c 
alterna�ve but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for 
overseeing the Company's financial repor�ng process.

Auditors' Responsibili�es for the Audit of the 
Standalone IND-AS Financial Statements

Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the Standalone IND-AS Financial Statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 

arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these Standalone IND-AS Financial 
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional 
scep�cism throughout the audit. We also: -

• Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detec�ng a material 
misstatement resul�ng from fraud is higher than for 
one resul�ng from error, as fraud may involve 
co l lu s io n ,  fo rger y,  inten� o n a l  o m is s io n s , 
misrepresenta�ons, or the override of internal 
control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under sec�on 
143(3)(I) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 
the company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the opera�ng effec�veness of 
such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies 
used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng es�mates 
and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's 
use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material uncertainty exists related to events or 
condi�ons that may cast significant doubt on the 
en�ty's ability to con�nue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw a�en�on in our auditor's report to 
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, 
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or condi�ons may 
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cause the en�ty to cease to con�nue as a going 
concern.

•  Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure, and 
content of the standalone Ind-AS Financial 
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether 
the standalone IND-AS Financial Statements 
represent the underlying transac�ons and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presenta�on.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 
standalone financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic 
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
standalone financial statements may be influenced. We 
consider quan�ta�ve materiality and qualita�ve factors 
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in 
evalua�ng the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the 
effect of any iden�fied misstatements in the standalone 
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned scope and 
�ming of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we iden�fy during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a 
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all rela�onships and other 
ma�ers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable,  related 
safeguards.

From the ma�ers communicated with those charged 
with governance, we determine those ma�ers that were 
of most significance in the audit of the financial 
statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit ma�ers. We describe these ma�ers in our audit 
report unless law or regula�on precludes public 
disclosure about the ma�er or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a ma�er should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected 
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communica�on.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) 
Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-sec�on (11) of 
Sec�on 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure- 'I', a 
statement on the ma�ers specified in paragraphs 3 
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2.   In terms of sec�on 143(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013, we give in the Annexure- 'II' a statement on the 
direc�ons issued under the aforesaid sec�on by the 
Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

3. As required by Sec�on 143 (3) of the Act, we report 
that:

 a)  We have sought and obtained al l  the 
informa�on and explana�ons which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for 
the purposes of our audit.

 b) In our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examina�on of 
those books.

 c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss (including other comprehensive income), 
Statement of changes in equity and the Cash 
Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of accounts.

 d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone IND-AS 
Financial  Statements comply with the 
Accoun�ng Standards specified under Sec�on 
133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 as amended 
from �me to �me.

 e) In view of exemp�on given vide no�fica�on no 
G.S.R. 463 (E) dated 5th June 2015, issued by 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, provisions of 
s e c � o n  1 6 4  ( 2 )  o f  t h e  A c t  re ga rd i n g 
disqualifica�on of Directors, are not applicable 
to the Company.

 f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to standalone 
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financial statements of the Company and the 
opera�ng effec�veness of such controls, refer to 
our separate Report in Annexure “III”. Our 
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the 
adequacy and opera�ng effec�veness of the 
Company's internal financial controls with 
reference to standalone financial statements; 
and

 g) With respect to the other ma�ers to be included 
in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the 
best of our informa�on and according to the 
explana�ons given to us: 

  i) The Company does not have any pending 
li�ga�on as at 31st March 2025.

  ii) The Company did not have any long-term 
contracts including deriva�ve contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable 
losses; and

  iii) There was no amount, which were required 
to be transferred to the Investor Educa�on 
and Protec�on Fund by the Company.

  iv) The Management has represented that, to 
the best of its knowledge and belief, other 
than those disclosed in notes to accounts: -

   a) The management of the company has 
represented to us that, to the best of its 
knowledge and belief, no funds (which 
are material either individually or in the 
aggregate) have been advanced or 
loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or 
any other sources or kind of funds) by 
the Company to or in any other person 
or en�ty, including foreign en�ty 
( “ I n t e r m e d i a r i e s ” ) ,  w i t h  t h e 
understanding, whether recorded in 
w r i � n g  o r  o t h e r w i s e ,  t h at  t h e 
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons 
or en��es iden�fied in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Company (“Ul�mate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the 
l i ke  o n  b e h a l f  o f  t h e  U l � m ate 
Beneficiaries; 

   b) The Management has represented, 
that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, no funds (which are material 
either individually or in the aggregate) 
have been received by the Company 
from any person or en�ty, including 
foreign en�ty (“Funding Par�es”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded 
in wri�ng or otherwise, that the 
Company shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or en��es iden�fied in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
t h e  F u n d i n g  P a r t y  ( “ U l � m a t e 
B e n e fi c i a r i e s ” )  o r  p ro v i d e  a ny 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries;

   c) Based on the audit procedures that 
have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, 
nothing has come to our no�ce that has 
c a u s e d  u s  t o  b e l i e v e  t h a t  t h e 
representa�ons under sub-clause (i) 
and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under 
(a) and (b) above, contain any material 
misstatement.

 v) As stated in Note 2.12.2 and 2.26 (a) to the 
standalone financial statements.

  a) The final dividend proposed in the previous 
year, declared and paid by the Company 
during the year is in accordance with 
Sec�on 123 of the Act, as applicable. 

  b)  The interim dividend declared and paid by 
the Company during the year and un�l the 
date of this report is in compliance with 
Sec�on 123 of the Act.

  (c)  The Board of Directors of the Company have 
proposed final dividend for the year which is 
subject to the approval of the members at 
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the ensuing Annual General Mee�ng. The 
amount of dividend proposed is in 
accordance with sec�on 123 of the Act, as 
applicable.

 vi) Based on our examina�on, which included test 
checks, the Company has used accoun�ng 
so�ware systems (Tally-Prime Edit log) for 
maintaining its books of account for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2025, which have the 
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility 
and the same has operated throughout the year 
for all relevant transac�ons recorded in the 
so�ware systems. Further, during the course of 
our audit we did not come across any instance of 
the audit trail feature being tampered with and 
the audit trail has been preserved by the 
Company as per the statutory requirements for 
record reten�on.

  h) In our opinion and to the best of our 
i n fo r m a� o n  a n d  a c co rd i n g  to  t h e 
explana�ons given to us, provisions of 
Sec�on 197 of the Act are not applicable to 
the company with respect to the managerial 
remunera�on paid/provided during the 
year ended March 31, 2025.

Place: New Delhi      
Date: 06-05-2025

For Dinesh Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registra�on No.000220N             

Sd/-
(Deepak Malhotra)

Partner       
Membership No.502386

    UDIN:25502386BMOUJA6363
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To the best of our informa�on and according to the 
explana�ons provided to us by the Company and the 
books of account and records examined by us in the 
normal course of audit, we state that: -

I) I n respect of the Company's Property, Plant and 
Equipment (PPE), right of use and Intangible Assets:

 a) I) The Company has maintained proper records 
s h o w i n g  f u l l  p a r � c u l a r s ,  i n c l u d i n g 
quan�ta�ve details and situa�on of Property, 
Plant and Equipment and relevant details of 
right-of-use assets.

  ii)   The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full par�culars of intangible assets.

b) The Company has a program of physical verifica�on 
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use 
assets so to cover all the assets once every year 
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to 
the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. 
Pursuant to the program, certain property, plant and 
equipment and right-of-use assets were due for 
verifica�on during the year and were physically 
verified by the Management during the year. 
According to the informa�on and explana�ons given 
to us, no material discrepancies were no�ced on such 
verifica�on.

c) Based on our examina�on of the property tax 
receipts and lease agreement for land on which 
building is constructed, registered sale deed/transfer 
deed/conveyance deed provided to us, we report 
that, the �tle in respect of all immovable proper�es 
(other than proper�es where the company is the 
lessee and lease agreement are duly executed in 
favour of the lessee), disclosed in the financial 
statements included under  Property, Plant and 
Equipment  are held in the name of the company as 
at the balance sheet date.

d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, 
plant and equipment (including right- of-use assets) 
and intangible assets during the year.

e) No proceedings have been ini�ated during the year 

or are pending against the Company as at March 
31,2025 for holding any Benami property under the 
Benami Transac�ons (Prohibi�on) Act, 1988 (as 
amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

ii) a) T he nature of business of the Company does not 
require it to have any inventory. Accordingly, 
repor�ng under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

  b) The Company has not been sanc�oned working 
capital limits in excess of ₹ 5 Crore, in aggregate, 
at any points of �me during the year, from banks 
or financial ins�tu�ons on the basis of security of 
current assets and hence repor�ng under clause 
3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

iii) The Company has not made investments in 
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships and 
has not provided any guarantee or security or 
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, 
secured or unsecured. As such repor�ng under sub 
clause (a) to (f) of clause 3(iii) of the order is not 
applicable to the Company.

 iv) The Company has not granted any loans, guarantee 
or provide security to Directors or any other person 
in whom Director is interested covered under 
provisions of Sec�ons 185 and 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Therefore, the paragraph 3(iv) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.

v) The Company has not accepted any deposit or 
amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence, 
repor�ng under clause 3(v) of the Order is not 
applicable.

 vi) We have broadly reviewed the cost records 
maintained by the company as specified by the 
Central Government under sub-sec�on (1) of sec�on 
148 of the Companies Act and are of the opinion that, 
prima facie, such accounts and records have been 
made and maintained. We have not, however, made 
a detailed examina�on of the accounts and records 
maintained as aforesaid.

vii) In respect of statutory dues: -

ANNEXURE – 'I' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” sec�on
of our report to the members of REMC Limited of even date)
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 a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been 
regular in deposi�ng undisputed statutory dues, 
including Goods and Services tax, Income Tax, 
Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Excise, and other 
material statutory dues applicable to it with the 
appropriate authori�es.

  There were no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of Goods and Service tax, Income Tax, 
and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 
March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable.

 b) According to informa�on and explana�ons given 
to us, there are no disputed dues of Income Tax, 
Service Tax, Value added Tax, Goods and Service 
tax (GST) and other statutory dues which have 
not been deposited as on 31, March 2025.

viii) There were no transac�ons rela�ng to previously 
unrecorded income that have been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax 
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 
1961). As such, repor�ng under clause (viii) of 
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company.

ix) a) A ccording to the records of the company 
examined by us and as per the informa�on and 
explana�ons given to us, the company has not 
defaulted in repayment of term loan and 
payment of interest thereon.

 b) The Company has not been declared wilful 
defaulter by any bank or financial ins�tu�on or 
government or any government authority.

 c) The Company has not taken any term loan during 
the year.

 d) On an overall examina�on of the financial 
statements of the Company, no funds raised on 
short-term basis have been used during the year 
for long-term purpose by the Company.

 e) On an overall examina�on of the financial 
statements of the Company, the Company has 
not taken any funds from any en�ty or person on 
account of or to meet the obliga�ons of its 
subsidiaries.

 f) The Company has not raised any loans during the 
year and hence repor�ng on clause 3(ix)(f) of the 
Order is not applicable. 

x) a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of 
ini�al public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) during the year and 
hence repor�ng under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order 
is not applicable.

 b) During the year, the Company has not made any 
preferen�al allotment or private placement of 
shares or conver�ble debentures (fully or partly 
or op�onally) and hence repor�ng under clause 
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xi) a) According to the informa�on and explana�on 
given to us, no fraud by the Company or any 
fraud on the Company by its officers/employees 
has been no�ced or reported during the year.

 b) No report under sub-sec�on (12) of sec�on 143 
of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-
4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 
Government, during the year and up to the date 
of this report.

 c) According to the informa�on and explana�ons 
given to us including the representa�on made to 
us by the management of the Company, there 
are no whistle-blower complaint received by the 
company during the year.

xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence 
repor�ng under clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the 
Order is not applicable.

xiii) According to the informa�on and explana�on given 
to us and based on our examina�on of the records of 
the Company, transac�ons with the related par�es 
are in compliance with Sec�on 177 and 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 wherever applicable and 
details of such transac�ons have been disclosed in 
the standalone Ind AS financial statements as 
required by the applicable Indian accoun�ng 
standards.

xiv) a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate 
internal audit system commensurate with the 
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size and the nature of its business.

 b)  We have considered, the internal audit reports 
for the year under audit, issued to the Company 
during the year and �ll date, in determining the 
nature, �ming and extent of our audit 
procedures.

xv) In our opinion during the year the Company has not 
entered into any non-cash transac�ons with its 
Directors or persons connected with its directors 
and hence provisions of sec�on 192 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the 
Company. 

xvi) a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be 
registered under sec�on 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, repor�ng under 
clause 3(xvi) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

 b) In our opinion, there is no core investment 
company within the Group (as defined in the 
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) 
Direc�ons, 2016) and accordingly repor�ng 
under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not 
applicable Company.

xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during 
the financial year covered by our audit and the 
immediately preceding financial year.

xviii) There has been no resigna�on of the statutory 
auditors of the Company during the year.

xix) On the basis of the financial ra�os, ageing and 
expected dates of realiza�on of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabili�es, other informa�on 
accompanying the financial statements and our 
knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
Management plans and based on our examina�on 
of the evidence suppor�ng the assump�ons, 
nothing has come to our a�en�on, which causes us 
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on 
the date of the audit report indica�ng that 
Company is not capable of mee�ng its liabili�es 
exis�ng at the date of balance sheet as and when 
fall due within a period of one year from the 

balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is 
not an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company. We further state that our repor�ng is 
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report 
and we neither give any guarantee nor any 
assurance that all liabili�es falling due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will 
get discharged by the Company as and when they 
fall due.

xx) (a)  There are no unspent amounts towards 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other 
than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a 
fund specified in Schedule VII  to the 
Companies Act in compliance with second 
proviso to sub-sec�on (5) of sec�on 135 of the 
said Act. Accordingly, repor�ng under clause 
3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the 
year. 

 (b) In respect of ongoing projects, the Company 
transfers the unspent CSR amount as at the 
end of the previous financial year, to a Special 
account within a period of 30 days from the 
end of the said financial year in compliance 
with the provision of sec�on 135(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. In our opinion and 
according to the informa�on and explana�ons 
given to us, there is no unspent amount under 
sub-sec�on (6) of Sec�on 135 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to any ongoing 
project. Hence, clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company

For Dinesh Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registra�on No.000220N

Sd/-
(Deepak Malhotra)

Partner       
Membership No.502386

    UDIN:25502386BMOUJA6363
Place: New Delhi      
Date: 06-05-2025
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ANNEXURE – 'II' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under the heading 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements'
of our report of even date on the standalone financial statements of REMC limited)

Report under Sec�on 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 of Financial Statement of REMC Ltd. For the Year ended
March 31, 2025.

Whether the company has system in place to process all 
the accoun�ng transac�ons through IT system? If yes, the 
implica�ons of processing of accoun�ng transac�ons 
outside IT system on the Integrity of the accounts along 
with the financial implica�ons, if any, may be stated.

S. No. Direc�ons Auditor's Comments

Yes, the Company is using Tally prime (Edit 
log features) so�ware to process all its 
accoun�ng transac�ons. There is no 
a c c o u n� n g  t ra n s a c � o n  w h i c h  i s 
processed outside Tally Prime so�ware.

Whether there is any restructuring of an exis�ng loan or 
cases of waiver/write-off of debts/loans/interest etc. 
made by a lender to the company due to the company's 
inability to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact may 
be stated. Whether such cases are properly accounted 
for? (In case, lender is a government company, then this 
direc�on is also applicable for statutory auditor of lender 
company).

There are no cases of restructuring of 
exis�ng loan, waiver/write-off of debts, 
loans/ interest etc. during the year. 

Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.) received/receivable 
for specific schemes from Central/State Government or 
its agencies were properly accounted for/u�lized as per 
its term and condi�ons? List the cases of devia�on,

As per informa�on and explana�ons 
given to us the Company has not received 
a n y  f u n d s  f r o m  C e n t r a l / s t a t e 
Government or its agencies.

1

2

3

For Dinesh Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registra�on No.000220N

Sd/-
(Deepak Malhotra)

Partner
  Membership No.502386

    UDIN:25502386BMOUJA6363

Place: New Delhi      
Date: 06-05-2025
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We have audited the internal financial controls over 
financial repor�ng of REMC Limited (“the Company”) as 
of March 31, 2025, in conjunc�on with our audit of the 
Standalone IND-AS Financial Statements of the Company 
for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls

The Company's management is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial repor�ng 
criteria established by the Company considering the 
essen�al components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Repor�ng issued by the Ins�tute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.  These responsibili�es 
include the design, implementa�on and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were opera�ng 
effec�vely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 
of its business, including adherence to company's 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the preven�on 
and detec�on of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accoun�ng records, and the �mely 
prepara�on of reliable financial informa�on, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Company's internal financial controls over financial 
repor�ng based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng (the 
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Audi�ng, issued 
by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under sec�on 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, 
both issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial repor�ng was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effec�vely in all material 
respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial repor�ng and their 
opera�ng effec�veness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial repor�ng included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial 
repor�ng, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and tes�ng and evalua�ng the design and 
opera�ng effec�veness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 
reference to standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to 
standalone financial statement

A Company's internal financial control over financial 
repor�ng is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial repor�ng 
and the prepara�on of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accoun�ng principles. A company's internal financial 
control over financial repor�ng includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transac�ons and disposi�ons of the assets of 
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transac�ons are recorded as necessary to permit 
prepara�on of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accoun�ng principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorisa�ons of 

ANNEXURE – 'III' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in Paragraph 3 (f) under the heading 'Report on other legal and regulatory 
requirements' of our report of even date on the standalone financial statements of REMC limited) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-sec�on 3 of Sec�on 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
('the Act')
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management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding preven�on or 
�mely detec�on of unauthorised acquisi�on, use, or 
disposi�on of the company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limita�ons of Internal Financial Controls with 
reference to standalone financial statement

Because of the inherent limita�ons of internal financial 
controls over financial repor�ng, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud 
may occur and not be detected. Also, projec�ons of any 
evalua�on of the internal financial controls over financial 
repor�ng to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial repor�ng may 
become inadequate because of changes in condi�ons, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

According to the informa�on and explana�on given to us, 
in our opinion, the  Company has, in all material aspects, 

an adequate internal financial control system over 
financial repor�ng and such internal financial controls 
were opera�ng effec�vely as at March 31, 2025, based 
on the internal control over financial repor�ng criteria 
established by the Company considering the essen�al 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Repor�ng issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered 
Accountants of India.

For Dinesh Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registra�on No.000220N

Sd/-
(Deepak Malhotra)

Partner
Membership No.502386

    UDIN:25502386BMOUJA6363

Place: New Delhi      
Date: 06-05-2025
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Par�culars  Note No.  As At 31.03.2025   As At 31.03.2024 

Balance Sheet As at 31st March, 2025

(` in Lakhs)

Assets
Non Current Assets
 Property, Plant And Equipment 2.01  14,372.80   15,179.90 
 Capital Work In Progress 2.01.1  -     -   
 Right of Use Assets 2.02  65.42   69.63 
 Investment Property 2.03  587.68   601.20 
 Intangible Assets 2.04  141.44   219.46 
 Intangible Assets Under Development 2.04.1  -     -   
 Financial Assets   
  Other Financial Assets 2.05  -     -   
 Other Non Current Assets 2.06  339.48   176.47 
     15,506.82   16,246.66 
Current Assets   
 Financial Assets   
  Trade Receivables 2.07  943.19   1,536.64 
  Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.08.1  2,332.79   952.13 
  Other Bank Balances 2.08.2  5,357.42   6,964.48 
  Other Financial Assets 2.09  1,505.19   1,220.51 
 Other Current Assets 2.10  5.41   12.54 
     10,144.00   10,686.30 
Total Assets   25,650.82   26,932.96 
  
Equity And Liabili�es   
Equity   
 Equity Share Capital 2.11  10,500.00   10,500.00 
 Other Equity 2.12  11,765.69   12,339.60 
    22,265.69   22,839.60 
Liabili�es   
Non Current Liabili�es   
 Financial Liabili�es   
 Deferred Tax Liabi�es(Net) 2.13  2,733.76   3,184.13 
     2,733.76   3,184.13 
Current Liabili�es   
 Financial Liabili�es   
  Trade Payables   
  - Total Outstanding Dues of Micro  2.14 0.07   -   
   Enterprise and Small Enterprises   
  - Total Outstanding Dues Other than    2.14  432.66   339.69 
   Micro  Enterprise and Small Enterprises   
   Other Financial Liabili�es 2.15  53.81   306.22 
 Provisions    -     -   
 Other Current Liabili�es 2.16  164.83   263.32 
     651.37   909.23 
Total Equity and Liabili�es   25,650.82   26,932.96 
"Material Accoun�ng Policies and Notes to Accounts 
Form an Integral Part of Standalone Financial Statement" 1 & 2  
      For and on behalf of the Board of Directors   

Sd/-
RAHUL MITHAL

Chairman
DIN 07610499

Sd/-
KRISHNA GOPAL AGARWAL

Director
DIN 10239667

Sd/-
BHUPENDER SINGH BODH

Chief Execu�ve Officer

Sd/-
RAKESH KUMAR GUPTA
Chief Financial Officer

M.No.: FCA99030

Sd/-
RANJAN KUMAR TIWARY

Company Secretary 
M.No.: ACS 28116

As per our report of even date a�ached    

For Dinesh Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 000220N

Sd/-
(DEEPAK MALHOTRA)

PARTNER
M.No.: 502386  

UDIN: 25502386BMOUJA6363 

 Place : New Delhi
Dated : 06/05/2025 

      For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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 Par�culars Note No. Year Ended   Year Ended 
   31.03.2025  31.03.2024
Revenue 
 Revenue From Opera�ons  2.17  13,386.75   14,769.11 
       Other Income  2.18  660.16   558.98 
Total Income    14,046.91   15,328.09 
Expenditure   
 Fee For Service Obtained  2.19  1,371.63   1,162.48 
 Salary Reimbursement  2.29 248.71   224.03 
 Finance Costs  2.20  16.02   -   
 Genera�on Expenses    2.21  854.75   992.47 
 Deprecia�on & Amor�sa�on Expenses 2.22  917.65   921.98 
 Other Expenses  2.23  475.65   688.73 
Total Expenditure    3,884.41   3,989.69 
Profit Before Tax    10,162.50   11,338.40 
Tax Expenses   
 -  Current Tax   2.25 (2681.75) (3069.80)
 -  Deferred Tax (Net)  2.25 450.34  (146.25)
   
Profit A�er Tax    7,931.09   8,122.35 
Other Comprehensive Income    -     -   
   
Total Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax)   -     -   
Total Comprehensive Income For The Year   7,931.09   8,122.35 
   
Earning Per Share (Equity Share of ` 10/- Each) - Basic & Diluted (`) 2.30  7.55   7.74 
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Used in Compu�ng Earning   10,50,00,000   10,50,00,000 
Per Share

 Place : New Delhi
Dated : 06/05/2025 

Statement of Prof it And Loss for the year ended  31st March, 2025   
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Sd/-
RAHUL MITHAL

Chairman
DIN 07610499

Sd/-
KRISHNA GOPAL AGARWAL

Director
DIN 10239667

Sd/-
BHUPENDER SINGH BODH

Chief Execu�ve Officer

Sd/-
RAKESH KUMAR GUPTA
Chief Financial Officer

M.No.: FCA99030

Sd/-
RANJAN KUMAR TIWARY

Company Secretary 
M.No.: ACS 28116

As per our report of even date a�ached    

For Dinesh Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 000220N

Sd/-
(DEEPAK MALHOTRA)

PARTNER
M.No.: 502386  

UDIN: 25502386BMOUJA6363 

(` in Lakhs)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors



Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended
31st March, 2025
A. Equity Share Capital - (Refer Note No 2.11)

 Balance as at 01.04.2024 Changes in Equity Share Capital during the Year  Balance as at
    31.03.2025
  10,500.00  -   10500.00
    
 Balance as at 01.04.2023 Changes in Equity Share Capital during the Year  Balance as at
     31.03.2024
  10,500.00  -   10500.00

B. Other Equity- (Refer Note No 2.12)-31.03.2025    (` in Lakhs) 

  Par�culars Reserve and Surplus O ther Comprehensive Total
   General Reserve     Retained              Income
     Earnings
Balance as at 01.04.2024   5078.12  7,261.48   -     12,339.60 
Restated Balance At The Beginning of the Repor�ng Year  5,078.12   7,261.48   -     12,339.60 
Profit For The Year     -     7,931.09   -     7,931.09 
Interim Dividend for F.Y. 2024-25  -    (6090.00)  -    (6090.00)
Final Dividend for F.Y. 2023-24    -    (2415.00)  -    (2415.00)
Balance as at 31.03.2025    5,078.12   6,687.57   -     11,765.69 
Final Dividend Per Share For  FY 2023-24 (`) 2.30  No. of Share Used 10,50,00,000
    in Compu�ng Dividend Per
     Share    

     (` in Lakhs) 
  Par�culars Reserve and Surplus O ther Comprehensive Total
   General Reserve     Retained              Income
     Earnings  
Balance as at 01.04.2023  5078.12  7,959.13   -     13,037.25 
Restated Balance at the Beginning of the Repor�ng Year 5,078.12   7,959.13   -     13,037.25 
Profit For the Year    -    8,122.35   -     8,122.35 
Interim Dividend for F.Y. 2023-24 -    (5670.00)  -    (5670.00)
Final Dividend for F.Y. 2022-23  -    (3150.00)  -    (3150.00)
Balance as at 31.03.2024   5,078.12   7,261.48   -     12,339.60 
Final Dividend Per Share For  FY 2022-23 (`) 3.00 No. of Share Used in 10,50,00,000
     Compu�ng Dividend  Per
     Share
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(` in Lakhs)

 Place : New Delhi
Dated : 06/05/2025 

Sd/-
RAHUL MITHAL

Chairman
DIN 07610499

Sd/-
KRISHNA GOPAL AGARWAL

Director
DIN 10239667

Sd/-
BHUPENDER SINGH BODH

Chief Execu�ve Officer

Sd/-
RAKESH KUMAR GUPTA
Chief Financial Officer

M.No.: FCA99030

Sd/-
RANJAN KUMAR TIWARY

Company Secretary 
M.No.: ACS 28116

As per our report of even date a�ached    

For Dinesh Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 000220N

Sd/-
(DEEPAK MALHOTRA)

PARTNER
M.No.: 502386  

UDIN: 25502386BMOUJA6363 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors



Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2025

    (` in Lakhs) 
 Par�culars  Year Ended    Year Ended 
   31.03.2025  31.03.2024
Cash Flow From Opera�ng Ac�vi�es   
Net Profit Before Tax     10,162.50   11,338.40 
Adjustments For:   
-  Deprecia�on and Amor�za�on   917.65   921.98 
-  Loss/( Profit) on Sale of Assets ( Net)   -     (0.04)
-  Interest Income    (544.35)  (346.30)
- Income from Investment Proper�es   (24.00)  (16.00)
-  Finance Cost    16.02   -   
-  Provision and Impairment Expenses (Net)   24.28   226.91 
Opera�ng Profit Before Changes In Assets And Liabili�es   10,552.10   12,124.95 
Change in Assets and Liabili�es:   
Adjustments For (Increase)/Decrease in Opera�ng Assets:   
-  Trade Receivables    569.17   2,076.05 
-  Other Financial Assets and other Assets   (252.77)  (20.25)
Adjustments For Increase/(Decrease) in Opera�ng Liabili�es:   
-  Trade Payables    93.04   15.58 
-  Statutory Dues    (110.29)  183.77 
-  Other Financial Liabili�es, other Liabili�es and Provisions   22.12   5.58 
Cash Generated From Opera�ons   10,873.37   14,385.68 
-  Income Tax Paid (Net of Refund)   (2,845.99)  (2,837.66)
 Net Cash From Opera�ng Ac�vi�es   8,027.38   11,548.02 
Cash Flows From Inves�ng Ac�vi�es   
-  Property Plant & Equipment/Intangible Assets/ Intangible Assets  (277.53)  (82.53)
 under-development/CWIP/Capital Advance    
-  Proceeds From Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment   -     0.04 
-  Deposit Placed with Bank    (6,761.11)  (9,800.69)
-  Redemp�on of Deposit with Bank   8,368.17   4,831.22 
-  Income from Investment Proper�es   24.00   16.00 
-  Interest Income    520.77   351.65 
Net Cash From Inves�ng Ac�vi�es   1,874.30   (4,684.31)
Cash Flow From Financing Ac�vi�es   
- Repayment of Term Loan    -     -   
-Finance Cost other than on Borrowings   (16.02)  -   
- Finance Cost on Borrowing    -     -   
- Dividend Paid (Including Interim Dividend)   (8,505.00)  (8,820.00)
Net Cash From Financing Ac�vi�es   (8,521.02)  (8,820.00)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents   1,380.66   (1,956.29)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year     952.13   2,908.42 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year   2,332.79   952.13 
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Reconcilia�on of Cash and Cash Equivalents    (`in Lakhs) 
 Par�culars Note No.  Year Ended Year Ended 
   31.03.2025  31.03.2024
Cash and Cash Equivalents:-  2.08.1  2,332.79   952.13 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Year   2,332.79   952.13 
   
Supplementary Informa�on:   
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents ( Refer Note 2.08.1)   2,332.79   952.13 
Note: 
1.  Cash and Cash Equivalents Consist of Cash and Bank Balances including FDRs having maturity within 3 months from the 

date of acquisi�on.

2.  The Above Statement of Cash Flows have been prepared under Indirect Method as set out in Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash 
Flows No�fied U/s 133 of The Companies Act,2013) (''Act"") Read with Rule 4 of The Companies Act (Indian Accoun�ng 
Standards) Rules 2015 and the Relevant Provisions of the Act.

3.  Figures in bracket indicate Cash Ou�low. 

4.  Refer Note 2.39 (c) w.r.t. amount spent on CSR ac�vi�es.

5.  Reconcilia�on between the opening and closing balances in the Balance Sheet for liabili�es arising from Financing 
Ac�vi�es:   

    (` in Lakhs) 
Par�culars Note No.   Year Ended Year Ended 
   31.03.2025  31.03.2024
Long Term Borrowing at the Beginning of the Year   -     -   
-  Cash Flows (Repayment)    -     -   
-  Non Cash Changes    -     -   
Closing Long Term Borrowing    -     -   
Interest Payable on Borrowing at the Beginning of the Year   -     -   
-  Cash Ou�lows (Interest)    -     -   
-  Non Cash Changes  2.20   -     -   
Interest Payable on Borrowing at the end of the Year   -     -

 Place : New Delhi
Dated : 06/05/2025 
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Sd/-
RAHUL MITHAL

Chairman
DIN 07610499

Sd/-
KRISHNA GOPAL AGARWAL

Director
DIN 10239667

Sd/-
BHUPENDER SINGH BODH

Chief Execu�ve Officer

Sd/-
RAKESH KUMAR GUPTA
Chief Financial Officer

M.No.: FCA99030

Sd/-
RANJAN KUMAR TIWARY

Company Secretary 
M.No.: ACS 28116

As per our report of even date a�ached    

For Dinesh Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 000220N

Sd/-
(DEEPAK MALHOTRA)

PARTNER
M.No.: 502386  

UDIN: 25502386BMOUJA6363 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors



REMC limited is incorporated and domiciled in India. The address of its registered office is Plot No.7, 8th Floor, PNB 
Building, Bhikaji Cama Place, New Delhi-110066 (India) having its corporate office at “Shikhar”, Plot No. 1, Sector -29, 
Gurugram, Haryana-122001 (India). RITES Ltd (Holding Company) holds 51% of the shares of the company along with 
their nominees and 49% shares are held by the Ministry of Railway and their nominees.

REMC limited provides consultancy in green energy having focus on wind and solar projects, genera�ng and selling 
renewable energy for railway consump�on by installing windmills and solar plants. Procuring power for Indian 
railways, facilita�ng open access, bilateral purchases and purchases of exchange traded power, coordina�on with 
regulatory authori�es to obtain relief on the deemed licensee status of railways. Iden�fica�on and implementa�on of 
energy efficient technologies for non-trac�on avenues of Indian Railways, arranging finances for such projects.

The repor�ng and func�onal currency of the company is Indian Rupees (INR).  Figures in financial statements are 
presented in ₹ Lakhs, by rounding off up to two decimals except for per share data and as otherwise stated. Previous 
period figures have been regrouped/re-casted/rearranged, wherever necessary.

The standalone financial statements are approved by the company's Board of Directors on 06.05.2025.

1. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1 General 

 (a) Statement of Compliance

  The financial statements of the Company are being prepared in accordance with Indian Accoun�ng 
Standards (Ind-AS) no�fied under sec�on 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read with Companies (Indian 
Accoun�ng Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from �me to �me.

    Accoun�ng policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accoun�ng standard is 
ini�ally adopted or a revision to an exis�ng accoun�ng standard requires a change in the accoun�ng 
policy hitherto in use.

  On March 31, 2023, MCA no�fied the Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 
thereby manda�ng the companies to disclose only material accoun�ng policies. Accordingly erstwhile 
significant accoun�ng policies have been reviewed and the same have been replaced with material 
accoun�ng policies. There is no financial Implica�on on this replacement.

 (b) Basis of prepara�on

  The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis at historical cost, except for the following 
assets and liabili�es which have been measured at fair value/ amor�zed cost:

  • Deriva�ve financial instruments,

  • Which are specifically indicated in the concerned accoun�ng policy.

 (c) Use of es�mates and judgments

  The prepara�on of the financial statements requires management to make es�mates and assump�ons 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabili�es and disclosure of con�ngent liabili�es and 
con�ngent assets as at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses for the year. Actual results could differ from these es�mates. Future results could differ due to 
changes in these es�mates and the difference between the actual result and the es�mates are recognized 
in the period in which the results are known/materialize.

Company Overview, Material Accoun�ng Policies and Notes to Accounts form an integral part of
the Standalone Financial Statements

Company Overview
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1.2 Revenue recogni�on

1.2.1 Revenue from contracts with customers

 Opera�ng revenue is from various streams viz. consultancy fee and Power Genera�on.

1.2.1.1 Consultancy Fee

 Revenue from consultancy services is recognized based on performance obliga�on sa�sfied either over �me 
or at a point in �me.

 In case performance obliga�on is sa�sfied over �me, revenue is recognized based on the actual service 
provided to the end of the repor�ng period as a propor�on of the total services to be provided. This is 
determined based on physical progress, efforts, cost incurred to date bear to the total es�mated cost of the 
transac�on, �me spent, percentage of the value of work done/built-up cost or service performed.

 In other cases where performance obliga�on is not sa�sfied over �me, revenue is recognized at a point in 
�me.

 In case of contracts, where customer pays fixed amount based on a payment schedule, if services rendered by 
the Company exceed the payment, a contract asset is recognized. If payments exceed services rendered, a 
contract liability is recognized.

 Mobiliza�on fee is considered as customer advance un�l recognized as revenue based on the stage of 
comple�on of ac�vi�es/transac�ons as per the terms of contract/work order. 

 Reimbursable and supplies are accounted for on accrual basis.

1.2.1.2 Windmill Projects (Power Genera�on)

 Revenue from sale of power through wind-mill projects is recognized based on cer�ficate from concerned 
State Electricity Authority for energy fed in kwh (units) in authority's system and as per terms and condi�ons 
of the contract with the beneficiary.

1.2.2 Other Income

1.2.2.1 Others

 Other income is accounted for on accrual basis except claims (including insurance claims)/supplementary 
claims / counter claims/interest on delayed payments / awards in favour of the Company/ sale of tenders/ 
premium on sale of licenses etc. which are accounted for on final se�lement / realiza�on.

1.3 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

 Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost net of accumulated deprecia�on and impairment losses, if 
any.

1.3.1 Deprecia�on

 (a) Deprecia�on on property, plant and equipment are provided on straight line method over their es�mated 
useful life determined by management. Deprecia�on method, useful lives and residual values are 
reviewed at the end of each financial year. The useful lives of assets are as prescribed in part C of schedule 
II of the Companies Act, 2013 except assets indicated in sub-paragraphs (c) to (g) below.

B O U N D L E S S E N E R G Y

64



 (b)  The es�mated useful lives of the various assets, are as under: - 

  Assets Useful Life (Years)

  Furniture 10

  Fixture 5

  Office Equipment 5

  Mobile Handset 3

  Coolers & Air Condi�oners 7

  Air Condi�oning Plant 15

  Computer Hardware 3

  Server & Networks 6

  Vehicles 8

  Buildings on Freehold Land 60

  Windmill Plant 25

 (c)  As per the company's technical assessment, Fixtures, Coolers & Air Condi�oners have lower useful lives 
than prescribed in part C of schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, deprecia�on is charged 
considering lower useful life than prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

 (d) Lease hold land is amor�zed over the lease term, or the useful life of asset built/installed on such land, 
whichever is shorter.

 (e)  As per the company's technical assessment, windmill plants have a higher useful life of 25 years than 
prescribed in part C of schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 of 22 Years, Therefore, deprecia�on is 
charged considering higher useful life prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

 (f) In respect of buildings on lease hold land, deprecia�on is charged over the period of lease of land, or the 
useful life stated above for buildings on freehold land, whichever is lower.

 (g) Individual low-cost assets of value less than ₹ 5,000/- are fully depreciated in the year of acquisi�on.

1.3.2 Capital Work in progress.

 Assets which are not ready for the intended use are carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental 
expenses, and a�ributable interest.

1.3.3 Capital Advances

 Advances paid towards the acquisi�on of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet 
date are classified as capital advances under other non-current assets.

1.4 Intangible Assets

 Intangible assets acquired/ developed are measured on recogni�on at cost less accumulated amor�za�on and 
impairment losses, if any. 

1.4.1 Amor�za�on

 Es�mated useful life of the so�ware is 4 years and amor�zed on a straight-line basis over the period. However, 
So�ware of value less than ̀  100,000/-is fully amor�zed in the year of acquisi�on.

1.5 Investment Property

 Investment proper�es are measured at cost, including transac�on costs less accumulated deprecia�on and 
impairment loss, if any.
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 The Company depreciates building component of investment property over the es�mated useful lives of the 
assets as prescribed in property, plant and equipment.

 Investment proper�es are de-recognized either on disposal or on permanent withdrawal from use. The 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of de-recogni�on.

1.6 Income Taxes

1.6.1 Current Income Tax

 Current income tax assets and liabili�es are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to 
the taxa�on authori�es. The tax rate applicable at the repor�ng date as per Income Tax Act, 1961 is used to 
compute the amount of Current Income Taxes. 

 Management periodically evaluates posi�ons taken in the tax assessments with respect to situa�ons in which 
applicable tax regula�ons are subject to interpreta�on and establishes provisions where appropriate.

 Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabili�es.

 Addi�onal taxes, interest and/or penal�es levied/ imposed by the tax authori�es/ Appellate authori�es on 
finality are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 Current tax rela�ng to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other 
comprehensive income or in equity).

1.6.2 Deferred tax

 Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deduc�ble temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused 
tax credits. Minimum Alterna�ve Tax (MAT) is recognized as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet as the asset 
can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be 
realized.

 Deferred tax liabili�es are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

 Deferred tax assets and liabili�es are measured at the rate expected to apply in the year when the asset is 
realized or the liability is se�led, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substan�vely 
enacted at the repor�ng date as per Income Tax Act, 1961.

 Deferred tax rela�ng to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in 
other comprehensive income or in equity).

 Deferred tax assets are offset against deferred tax liabili�es.

1.7 Prepaid Expense 

1.7.1 Prepaid Expenses

 Prepaid expenses up to ̀ 5,00,000/- in each case are treated as expenditure/income of the year and accounted 
for to the natural head of accounts.

1.8 Statement Of Cash Flows 

 Statement of Cash Flows is made using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the 
effects of transac�ons of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or 
payments and item of income or expenses associated with inves�ng or financing cash flows. The cash flows 
from opera�ng, financing and inves�ng ac�vi�es of the Company are segregated.

1.9 Impairment of Financial Assets (Other than at fair value)

 In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and 
recogni�on of impairment loss for financial assets.
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 ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the 
contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive. When es�ma�ng the cash flows, the 
Company consider the following: 

  All contractual terms of the financial assets (including extension) over the expected life of the assets.•

  Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual •
terms.

 Trade receivables: In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, 
which requires measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal to life�me expected credit losses. Life�me 
expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the 
expected life of a financial instrument.

 Other financial assets: In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those 
financial assets has increased significantly since ini�al recogni�on. If the credit risk has not increased 
significantly since ini�al recogni�on, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-
month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to the life�me expected credit losses.

1.10 Leases: -Company as a Lessee

 The Company's leased asset primarily consists of leases for land and buildings. 

 At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a 
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 
twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the 
Company recognizes the lease payments as an opera�ng expense on a straight-line basis over lease term. 

 The right-of-use assets are ini�ally recognized at cost. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost 
less any accumulated deprecia�on, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any 
remeasurement of the lease liability.

 The right-of-use assets are depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the 
shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The es�mated useful lives of right-of- use assets are 
determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. 

 The lease liability is ini�ally measured at amor�zed cost at the present value of the future lease payments. 
Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have 
been classified as financing cash flows.

1.11 LEASES: -COMPANY AS A LESSOR 

 Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or opera�ng lease. Whenever the terms of 
the lease transfer substan�ally all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as 
a finance lease. All other leases are classified as opera�ng leases.

 For opera�ng leases, rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis/systema�c basis over the lease term. 
However, reimbursable under the contract are accounted for on accrual basis. Ini�al direct costs are added to 
the carrying amount of the leased assets and recognized as an expense over the lease term.

1.12 Financial Instruments

1.12.1 Ini�al Recogni�on

 The company recognizes financial assets and financial liabili�es when it becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and financial liabili�es are recognized at fair value on ini�al 
recogni�on except for trade receivables/ trade payables which are ini�ally measured at transac�on price. 
Transac�on costs that are directly a�ributable to the acquisi�on or issue of financial assets and financial 
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liabili�es that are not at fair value through profit and loss are added or deducted to/from the fair value on ini�al 
recogni�on.

1.12.2 Subsequent Measurement

 (a)  Financial assets are subsequently measured at amor�sed cost if these are held within a business model 
whose objec�ve is to hold the assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms 
of the financial assets give rise on specific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding using the Effec�ve Interest Rate (EIR) method. The EIR 
amor�za�on is included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from 
impairment are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 (b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

  The financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is classified at amor�sed 
cost.

 (c) Financial liabili�es

  Financial liabili�es at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabili�es held for trading and 
financial liabili�es designated upon ini�al recogni�on as at fair value through profit or loss. 

  All other financial liabili�es are subsequently measured at amor�sed cost using EIR method. Gains and 
losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabili�es are de-recognized as well as 
through the EIR amor�za�on process. 

1.12.3 De-recogni�on of Financial Instruments

 A financial asset is de-recognized when:

  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or•

  the Company has transferred substan�ally all the risks and rewards of the asset, or the Company has •
neither transferred nor retained substan�ally all the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred 
control of the asset.

 A financial liability or a part of financial liability is de-recognized from the Balance Sheet when the obliga�on 
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. When an exis�ng financial liability is replaced by 
another from the same lender on substan�ally different terms, or the terms of an exis�ng liability are 
substan�ally modified, such an exchange or modifica�on is treated as the de-recogni�on of the original 
liability and the recogni�on of a new liability. The difference in the respec�ve carrying amounts is recognized in 
the statement of profit or loss.
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2.05  Other Non Current Financial Assets   (` in Lakhs)

 Par�culars Note No As at  As at  
    31.03.2025 31.03.2024

 Bank Deposits Having Maturity Over 12 Months From  2.08.3  -     -   

 Repor�ng Date 

 Interest Accrued - On Bank Deposits   -     -   

 Total   -     -   

2.06   Other Non Current Assets   (` in Lakhs)

 Par�culars  As at  As at  
    31.03.2025 31.03.2024

 Capital Advance   

 Capital Advance-Related Party   -     -   

 Advances Other Than Capital Advance   

 Security Deposit Considered Goods- Unsecured  121.56  121.56 

 Prepaid Expenses-Non Current  1.21  2.41 

 Advance Income Tax (Net Of Provision)  216.71  52.50 

 Total  339.48 176.47

   

2.07 Trade Receivables   (` in Lakhs)

 Par�culars  As at  As at  
    31.03.2025 31.03.2024

 Trade Receivable Considered Good -Secured   -     -   

 Trade Receivable Considered Good -Unsecured (Related Party)   943.19   1,300.64 

 Trade Receivable Considered Good -Unsecured   -     236.00 

 Trade Receivable Which Have Significant Increase In Credit Risk   -     -   

 Trade Receivable -Credit Impaired (Related Party)   403.28   398.77 

 Less:  1,346.47   1,935.41 

 Allowance For Expected Credit Losses  (403.28) (398.77)

 Total  943.19 1,536.64 

2.07.1 Trade receivables ageing schedule for the FY 2024-25   (` in Lakhs)   

Par�culars Not due Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment     

Less than
6 months

6 months -
1 Year

1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than
3 Years

Total

Undisputed Trade receivables -considered good   -     914.59   -     -     28.60   -     943.19 

Undisputed Trade Receivables-which have
significant increase in credit risk  -     -     -     -     -     -     -   

Undisputed Trade Receivables-credit impaired  -     -     -     10.08   93.17   300.03   403.28 

Disputed Trade Receivables– considered good  -     -      -     -     -    -

Disputed Trade Receivables – which have   -     -     -     -     -     - -    
significant increase in credit risk

Disputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired  -     -     -     -     -     -     -   

Total       

   914.59   -     10.08   121.77   300.03   1,346.47   

 Unbilled Revenue Assets       1,128.49 

 Total       2,474.96 
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Par�culars Not due Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment     

Less than
6 months

6 months -
1 Year

1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than
3 Years

Total

Undisputed Trade receivables-considered good   -     780.59   220.55   195.10   340.40   -     1,536.64 

Undisputed Trade Receivables-which have   -     -     -     -     -     -    -  
significant increase in credit risk

Undisputed Trade Receivable-Credit Impaired  -     -     10.08   65.59   16.87   306.23   398.77 

Disputed Trade Receivables– considered good  -     -     -     -     -     -     -   

Disputed Trade Receivables – which have   -     -     -     -     -     -    -

significant increase in credit risk -   

Disputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired  -     -     -     -     -     -     -   

Total  -     780.59   230.63   260.70   357.27   306.23   1,935.42 

 Unbilled Revenue Assets        1,135.70 

 Total        3,071.12 

Trade receivables ageing schedule for the FY 2023-24

2.08  Cash And Bank Balances   (` in Lakhs)

 Par�culars  As at  As at  
    31.03.2025 31.03.2024

2.08.1 Cash & Cash Equivalents  

 Bank Balances In :  

     Current Accounts   18.04   13.61 

     Deposits #   2,314.75   938.52 

 Total   2,332.79   952.13 

2.08.2 Other Bank Balances  

 Deposits ##   5,357.42   6,964.48 

 Total   5,357.42   6,964.48 

   

2.08.3 Bank Balances More than 12 Months Maturity (Note 2.05)  

 Deposits ###   -     -   

 Total   -     -   

 Total Cash & Bank Balances   7,690.21   7,916.61 

   

  # Includes flexi deposit and deposits having maturity within 3 months from the date of acquisi�on.  

 ## a) Having maturity over 3 months from the date of acquisi�on and upto 12 months from repor�ng date.  

      b) Includes restricted cash and bank balances of ₹ 36.97 Lakhs (previous year ₹ 35.00 Lakhs) margin  

          on account of bank balance held as money deposits against guarantees issued by banks  

 ### Having maturity over 12 months repor�ng date.

(` in Lakhs)
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2.09 Other Current Financial Assets    (` in Lakhs)

 Par�culars Note No.  As at  As at  
     31.03.2025 31.03.2024

 Interest Accrued  on:     

 Bank Deposits Having Maturity:

  Within 3 Months From the Date of Acquisi�on    -    - 

  Over 3 Months From the Date of Acquisi�on and Upto 12   26.12   2.54 
  Months From Repor�ng Date

 Recoverable From Related Par�es   350.58   350.58  154.19   79.24 

 Allowance For Expected Credit Losses-Others  -  -    (74.95) 

 Recoverable From Non Related Par�es   -     3.03 

 Unbilled Revenue 2.35   1,128.49   1,135.70 

 Total    1,505.19  1,220.51 

2.10 Other Current Assets    (` in Lakhs)

 Par�culars Note No.  As at  As at  
     31.03.2025 31.03.2024

 Prepaid Expenses    5.41   12.54 

 Staff Advance    -     -   

 Total    5.41  12.54 

2.11 Equity Share Capital     (` in Lakhs)  

 Par�culars Note No.  As at  As at  
     31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

2.11.1 Authorised      

 1,00,00,00,000 (Previous Year 1,00,00,00,000 ) Equity Shares of ` 10/- Each  1,00,000.00   1,00,000.00  

       

2.11.2 Issued, Subscribed And Fully Paid-Up      

 10,50,00,000 (Previous Year 10,50,00,000) Equity Shares of ` 10/- Each  10,500.00   10,500.00  

     10,500.00   10,500.00  

2.11.3 Reconcilia�on Of Number Of Equity Shares

   No. of (` in Lakhs) No of (` in Lakhs) 
   Shares  Shares 

 Opening Balance   10,50,00,000  10,500.00 10,50,00,000   10,500.00  

 Add/(Less) During the Year  -     -     -     -    

 Closing Balance  10,50,00,000   10,500.00   10,50,00,000   10,500.00  

2.11.4 Rights, Preferences And Restric�ons A�ached To Equity Shares      

 The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ̀  10 each. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per 
share held in case poll is demanded by the members in accordance with the provisions of the companies act, 2013. In the 
event of liquida�on, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company a�er 
distribu�on of all preferen�al amounts, in propor�on to their shareholding.      
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     As at  As at  
     31.03.2025 31.03.2024

2.11.5 Equity Shares held by Holding    No. of Shares No. of Shares   
 Company & its Nominees 

 Rites Ltd.    5,35,50,000   5,35,50,000  

2.11.6 Equity Shares held by Each    No. of Shares No. of Shares

 Shareholder More Than 5% of Shares  (% Shareholding ) (% Shareholding )  

 Rites Ltd    5,35,49,970   5,35,49,970  

     (50.99%) (50.99%) 

 Ministry of Railways   5,14,49,980   5,14,49,980  

     (48.99%) (48.99%) 

2.11.7 Fully Paid up Aggregate Number Of Equity Shares Allo�ed By Way of Bonus Shares during the year of Five Years  
Immediately Preceeding Balance Sheet Date:       

 The company had issued 350,00,000 equity shares of ` 10/- each as fully paid bonus shares in the financial year 2020-
21 in the ra�o of one equity share of ` 10/- each for every two equity shares held.      

2.11.8 Shareholding Of Promoters:-      

 Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

 S.No. Promoter Name End of the year  Beginning of the year % Chance
    No. of % of Total N o. of  % of Total During the 

    Shares Shares  Shares Shares year
 1 RITES LTD.  5,35,49,970  50.99  5,35,49,970 50.99  -   
 2  Ministry of Railways 5,14,49,980  48.99  5,14,49,980  48.99  -   

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 - 2025REMC LIMITED
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2.12  Other Equity     (` in Lakhs) 

 Par�culars    As at    As at 
     31.03.2025  31.03.2024

2.12.1  Reserve & Surplus   

           General Reserve*    5,078.12   5,078.12 

           Retained Earning    6,687.57   7,261.48 

 Total     11,765.69   12,339.60 

 *The general reserve represents amount kept by the company out of its profit for future purposes. It is not earmarked 
for any specific purpose.   

2.12.2 Retained Earning    (` in Lakhs) 

 Par�culars    As at    As at 
     31.03.2025  31.03.2024

 Opening Balance    7,261.48   7,959.13 

 Add: Profit for the Year as per Statement of Profit &  Loss    7,931.09   8,122.35 

 Less: Final Dividend Paid    (2415.00) (3150.00)

 Less: Interim Dividend Paid during  the Year   (6090.00) (5670.00)

 Closing Balance    6,687.57   7,261.48 
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2.13    Deferred Tax Liabili�es (Net)    (` in Lakhs)

 Par�culars Note No.   As at    As at 
     31.03.2025  31.03.2024 

 Expected Credit Loss Of Financial Assets  2.27   (101.50) (137.95)

 Reversal of DTL as on 01.04.2023    -    (61.01)

 Difference of Deprecia�on As Per Income Tax Act And   2.27    2,835.26   3,383.09 

 Companies Act 

 Total   2733.76 3184.13

2.14  Trade Payables     (` in Lakhs) 

 Par�culars Note No.   As at    As at 
     31.03.2025  31.03.2024 

 Creditors For Supplies And Services    

 Micro & Small Enterprises  2.39   0.07   -   

 Other Than Micro & Small Enterprises (Related Party )    114.58   112.23 

 Other Than Micro & Small Enterprises (Others)    318.08   227.46 

 Total    432.73   339.69 

 Current trade payable includes unbilled payable of ` 270.39 Lakhs (PY ` 218.38 Lakhs)

2.14.1  Trade Payable Ageing Schedule for the FY 2024-25    (` in Lakhs)      

 Par�culars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment     

   Not due L ess than  1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
     1 Year

 (I) MSME  -     0.07   -     -     -     0.07 

 (ii) Others  -     162.27   -     -     -     162.27 

 (iii)  Disputed Dues-MSME  -     -     -     -     -     -   

 (iii)  Disputed Dues-Others  -     -     -     -     -     -   

 Total  -     162.34   -     -     -     162.34

 Unbilled Payable       270.39 

 Total       432.73 

 Trade Payable Ageing Schedule for the FY 2023-24     

 (` in Lakhs)

 Par�culars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment     

   Not due L ess than  1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
     1 Year

 (i) MSME  -     -     -     -     -     -   

 (ii) Others  -     121.31   -     -     -     121.31 

 (iii) Disputed Dues-MSME  -     -     -     -     -     -   

 (iii) Disputed Dues-Others  -     -     -     -     -     -   

 Total  -     121.31   -     -     -     121.31 

 Unbilled Payable       218.38 

 Total       339.69 



2.15  Other Current Financial Liabili�es     (` in Lakhs) 

 Par�culars Note No.  As at  As at 

     31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

 EMD/Security Deposit    53.81   43.49 

 Other Payable of Other than MSME    -     262.73 

 Total    53.81   306.22 

   

2.16  Other Current Liabili�es     (` in Lakhs) 

 Par�culars Note No.  As at  As at 

     31.03.2025 31.03.2024

 Advances received from customer    11.80   -   

 Statutory Liabili�es    153.03   263.32 

 Total    164.83   263.32 
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2.17    Revenue From Opera�ons     (` in Lakhs) 

 Par�culars Note No.  Year Ended  Year Ended 

     31.03.2025  31.03.2024 

 Sale of Services     

 Consultancy Fee (Gross)   13,052.99    14,147.13  

 Less: Goods & Service Tax (GST)   2,143.18    2,296.13  

 Consultancy Fee (Net)    10,909.81    11,851.00

 Consultancy Fee (Unbilled Revenue) 2.35   1,023.17    996.78

 Power Genera�on     

 Sale of Electrical Energy - Electricity    1,348.45    1,782.41 

 Sale of Electrical Energy - Electricity  2.35   105.32    138.92 

 (Unbilled Reveune)

 Total     13,386.75    14,769.11 

    

2.18    Other Income     (` in Lakhs) 

 Par�culars  Note No.  Year Ended  Year Ended 

       31.03.2025 31.03.2024

 Interest Earned on:     

           -  Deposits With Bank     544.35   346.30 

 Rental Income    24.00  16.00 

 Miscellaneous Income*     91.81  196.68 

 Total     660.16   558.98 

 * Sale of tender document, Penal�es/Compensa�on received, profit on sale of Fixed assets etc.

2.19  Fee for service obtained      (` in Lakhs) 

 Par�culars Note No.  Year Ended Year Ended 

     31.03.2025 31.03.2024

 Man-month expense    1,179.98   1,080.99 

 Other Consultancy Charges    191.65   81.49 

 Total    1,371.63   1,162.48 
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2.20  Finance Cost     (` in Lakhs) 

 Par�culars Note No.  Year Ended  Year Ended 

      31.03.2025 31.03.2024

 Interest Others*    16.02   -   

 Total    16.02   -   

 *Interest Others includes interest on income tax of ₹ 16.02 Lakhs (PY Nil)    

2.21  Genera�on Expenses     (` in Lakhs) 

 Par�culars Note No.  Year Ended  Year Ended 

     31.03.2025 31.03.2024

 Tranmission, Wheeling & Sldc Charges    500.21   645.06 

 Opera�on & Maintenance    354.54   347.41 

  Total    854.75 992.47

 Note: Revision in transmission charges & other related charges etc. are accounted for in the year in which revision is no�fied by the respec�ve 
regulatory commission. Transmission charges includes ` (-) 12.15 Lakhs (PY ` 82.68 Lakhs) due to revision as no�fied by the regulator.    

2.22  Deprecia�on & Amor�sa�on Expenses      (` in Lakhs) 

 Par�culars Note No.  Year Ended  Year Ended 

     31.03.2025 31.03.2024

 On Property Plant & Equipments 2.01 821.90 816.09

 On Right of Use 2.02 4.21 4.22

 On Investment Property 2.03 13.52 9.04

 On Intangible Assets 2.04 78.02 92.63

 Total    917.65 921.98

2.23  Other Expenses     (` in Lakhs) 

 Par�culars Note No.  Year Ended  Year Ended 

     31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

 Legal & Professional Expenses    98.82   162.99 

 Office Expenses     37.09   35.76 

 Travelling Expenses    21.50   24.29 

 Auditors' Remunera�on 2.24  3.45   3.29 

 Power & U�li�es   12.67   12.29 

 Consultancy Charges   0.64   0.56 

 Prin�ng & Sta�onery   7.74   3.42 

 Insurance   12.87   19.73 

 Rates & Taxes   24.62   37.55 

 Postage & Telecommunica�on   4.79   5.16 

 Internal Audit Fee   0.48   0.48 

 Bank Charges   0.52   0.89 

 Corporate Social Responsibility   177.12   124.16 

 Impairment Loss For Financial Assets-Bad Debts  54.45    -     -   

  Less: Provision Existed Against The Bad Debts 54.45    

 Car Hire Charges    19.07   13.72 

 Impairement of Doub�ul Debts/Recoverable  30.88    24.28   226.91 

 Less: Provision Existed Against New Provision Required 6.60   

 Miscellaneous Expenses (Sponsorship, Mee�ng Expense, Etc.)   29.99   17.53 

 Total   475.65   688.73 
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2.24  Auditors' Remunera�on   (` in Lakhs) 

 Par�culars Note No.  Year Ended  Year Ended 

     31.03.2025 31.03.2024

 Statutory Audit Fee    1.70   1.48 

 Tax Audit Fee    0.90   0.87 

 Limited Review Fees    0.85   0.75 

 Total     3.45   3.10 

 Auditors' Out Of Pocket Expenses    -    0.19 

    

2.25  Income Tax Expense     (` in Lakhs) 

 Par�culars Note No.  Year Ended  Year Ended 

     31.03.2025 31.03.2024

 Current Tax Expense    

 Current Year 2.27   2,681.75   3,069.80 

 Total Current Tax Expense (A)    2,681.75   3,069.80 

 Deferred Tax Expenses    

 Deferred Tax    (450.34) (245.05)

 Mat Credit En�tlement/Availed    -     391.30 

 Total Deferred Tax Expense (B)    (450.34)  146.25 

 Income Tax Expense (A)+(B)    2,231.41   3,216.05

2.26 Disclosures as per Ind AS-1 on Presenta�on of Financial Statements are as follows:

 a) Subsequent Event-Dividend

  The Company has proposed a sum of ` 1753.50 Lakhs (` 1.67 per share) to 1050 Lakhs equity shares as a 
final dividend for FY 2024-25 subject to approval of shareholders in the Annual General Mee�ng. If 
approved, the dividend would result in a cash ou�low of ̀  1753.50 Lakhs.

2.27 Indian Accoun�ng Standard (Ind AS 12), Disclosures on Income Taxes are as follows:

 The Company has opted to exercise the op�on permi�ed under sec�on 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 
(Applicable for company having turnover less than ` 400 Crore) as promulgated by the GOI vide the Taxa�on 
Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 from the FY 2024-25 to which the tax rate of 22% plus surcharge & HEC is 
applicable.

 Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises:   

(` in Lakhs)

 Par�culars Year Ended Year Ended

   31.03.2025 31.03.2024

 Income Tax Expenses  

  - Current Taxes  2681.75 3069.80

  - Deferred Tax (Net) (450.34) 146.25

 Net Income Tax Expenses 2231.41 3216.05

 En�re Deferred Tax for the current year ended March 31st, 2025, and Previous Year ended March 31, 2024, 
relates to origina�on and reversals of temporary �ming differences.
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 a) Reconcilia�on of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory 
income tax rate is summarized below:  (` in Lakhs)

 Par�cular Year Ended  Year Ended 

   31.03.2025 31.03.2024

 Profit Before Income Taxes on Normal Business    10,162.50  11338.40

 Enacted Tax Rates in India on Normal Income 25.168% 29.12%

 Enacted Tax Rates in India on Normal Income (under MAT provision) N.A. 17.47%

 Computed Expected Tax Expense 2557.70 3301.74

 Tax Effect due to change in Tax Rate (432.13) -

 Effect of Non-Deduc�ble Expenditures (NDE) 50.52 34.99

 Tax effect due to non-taxable income - -

 Tax effect due to earlier period taxes* 2.58 -

 Tax Reversal and Others 52.74 (120.68)

 Current Tax Expense 2231.41 3216.05

 *Tax effect due to earlier period Taxes are primarily on account of short provision of the earlier period, which is ascertained, upon 
filing of tax return and comple�on of assessments. The comple�on of assessment is related to Assessment Year 2024-25 (FY 2023-
24).

 b) The following table provides the details of income tax assets and liabili�es as of March 31, 2025, and 
March 31, 2024:  (` in Lakhs)

 Par�cular  As at 

   31.03.2025 31.03.2024

 Income Tax Assets 216.71 52.50

 Current income tax liabili�es (2733.76) (3184.13)

 Net Current Income Tax Assets / (Liability) at the end (2517.05) (3131.63)

 c) The gross movement in the current income tax asset/ (liability) for the year ended March 31, 2025,  
and the previous year ended March 31, 2024, are as follows:  (` in Lakhs)

 Par�cular   As at 

   31.03.2025 31.03.2024

 Net current income tax asset/(liability) at the beginning (3131.63) (2753.22)

 Income Tax paid- (Net of Refund) 2845.99 2837.64

 Interest receivable on IT refund - -

 Current income tax expense (2231.41) (3216.05)

 Net Current Income Tax Asset/(Liability) at the end (2517.05) (3131.63)
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 d) The tax effects of significant temporary differences that resulted in deferred income tax assets and 
liabili�es are as follows:  (` in Lakhs)

 Par�cular    As at 

   31.03.2025 31.03.2024

 Deferred Income Tax Assets:

 Provision for expected credit risk 101.50 137.95

 Reversal of DTL as on 01-04-2023 - 61.01

 Total Deferred Income Tax Assets - I 101.50 198.96

 Mat Credit En�tlement - -

 Total Assets Including MAT Credit 101.50 198.96

 Deferred Income Tax Liabili�es:

 Property Plant & Equipment, Furniture & Fixtures,  2835.26 3383.09

 (Deprecia�on difference)

 Total Deferred Income Tax Liabili�es – II 2835.26 3383.09

 Deferred Income Tax Assets a�er set- off - - 
Deferred Income Tax Liabili�es a�er set-off 2733.76 3184.13

 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabili�es have been offset wherever the company has a legally 
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabili�es and where the deferred tax assets 
and deferred tax liabili�es relate to income taxes levied by the same taxa�on authority.

 The ul�mate realiza�on of deferred income tax assets is dependent upon the genera�on of future taxable 
income during the periods in which the temporary differences become deduc�ble. Management considers 
the scheduled reversals of deferred income tax liabili�es, projected future taxable income, and tax planning 
strategies in making the assessment.

 Based on the level of historical taxable income and projec�ons for future taxable income over the periods in 
which the deferred income tax assets are deduc�ble, management believes that the Company will realize the 
benefits of those deduc�ble differences. The amount of deferred income tax assets considered realizable 
could be reduced in the near term if es�mates of future taxable income during the carry forward period are 
reduced.

 The gross movement in the deferred income tax account for the current year March 31, 2025, and the previous 
year ended March 31, 2024, are as follows: -

(` in Lakhs)

 Par�cular Year Ended  Year Ended 

   31.03.2025 31.03.2024

 Net deferred income tax asset/(liability) at the beginning (3184.13) (3037.89)

 Credit/(Change) rela�ng to temporary differences 450.34 (146.25)

 Adjustment for Rounding off 0.03 -

 Net Deferred Income Tax Asset/(Liability) at the end (2733.76) (3184.13)

 e) The composi�on of deferred liabili�es rela�ng to temporary differences during the Year ended March 
31, 2025, is primarily on account of property plant and equipment.
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2.28 Indian Accoun�ng Standards (Ind AS) 23, Disclosures on Borrowing Cost are as follows:

  During the current year, the company has incurred interest cost of ̀  Nil (Previous Year ̀  Nil Lakhs)

2.29 Indian Accoun�ng Standard (Ind AS)24, Related Party Disclosures are as follows: -

  RELATED PARTY: -

 (a) Holding Company 

  Name  Country  Holding as on

    31.03.2025  31.03.2024

  RITES Ltd. India 51%  51%

 (b) Ministry of Railways

  Name Country  Holding as on   

    31.03.2025  31.03.2024

  Indian Railways India 49%  49%

 (c) Key Managerial Personnel- RITES LIMITED (Holding Company)
  Chairman & Managing Director (Chief Execu�ve Officer)
  Shri Rahul Mithal (DIN: 07610499)
  Whole Time Directors
  Shri Arun Kumar Singh (DIN: 09747776) - Director (Projects)
  Dr. Deepak Tripathi (DIN: 10090267) - Director (Technical)
  Shri Krishna Gopal Agarwal (DIN: 10239667) - Director (Finance) 

  Government Nominee Directors
  Shri Shailendra Singh (DIN: 07083410)
  Shri Sandeep Jain (DIN: 09435375)

  Non-Execu�ve (Independent) Directors
  Shri Laxman Tammanna Tapashi (DIN: 01838521) (up to 08.11.2024)
  Dr. Godawari Mishra (DIN: 09394545) (up to 08.11.2024)
  Dr. Dineshananda Goswami (DIN: 09394294) (up to 22.10.2024)
  Shri Likha Togu (DIN: 09470640) (up to 13.01.2025)

  Chief Financial Officer
  Shri Krishna Gopal Agarwal - Director (Finance)

  Company Secretary
  Shri Ashok Mishra

 (d) Key Managerial Personnel of the company
  Chairman
  Shri Rahul Mithal (DIN: 07610499)

  Directors
  Shri Ajeet Kumar Srivastava (DIN: 08187918) (up to 04.04.2024)
  Shri Manish Gupta (DIN:07327439) (up to 28.05.2024)
  Shri Krishna Gopal Agarwal (DIN: 10239667)
  Smt. Tarini Baswal (DIN:10476023) (up to 30.11.2024)
  Shri Anurag Kapil (DIN: 06640383) (w.e.f.  24.04.2024)
  Shri Gajendra Kumar (DIN:10652448) (w.e.f. 03.06.2024)
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  Shri Prem Singh Meena (DIN: 10855590) (w.e.f. 01.12.2024)

  Chief Execu�ve Officer (CEO)

  Smt. Veena Sinha (up to 31.12.2024)

  Shri Sanjay Singh (from 01.01.2025 to 11.03.2025)

  Shri Rizwan Ahmad Jamali (from 11.03.2025 to 15.04.2025)

  Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

  Shri Anjeev Kumar Jain (up to 28.10.2024)

  Shri Rakesh Kumar Gupta (w.e.f.28.10.2024)

  Company Secretary 

  Shri Ranjan Kumar Tiwary 

 (e) Transac�ons and Balance with Related Par�es

  Outstanding balances from the related par�es are un-secured, which are due to an ordinary course of 
business and are being realized within a reasonable �me.

  i) Holding company

   Transac�ons with Holding Company        

(` in Lakhs)

 Par�culars Year Ended   Year Ended

    31.03.2025  31.03.2024

 Fee for services obtained (Management Contract) Man-Month 1188.42 1086.90

 Salary Re-imbursement of CEO, CFO and Company Secretary  248.71 224.03

 Reimbursable Expense 9.45 9.49

 Dividend Paid 4337.55 4498.20

 Capital Advance - 29.87

 Rental Income 24.00 16.00

 Balances with Holding Company   (` in Lakhs)

 Par�culars As at  As at
   31.03.2025 31.03.2024

 Trade Payable 112.01 107.11

 Reimbursable 2.57 5.12

 Equity Share Capital                                                                5355.00 5355.00

 
  ii) Ministry of Railways

   Transac�ons with the Ministry of Railways    (` in Lakhs)

 Par�culars Year Ended   Year Ended
    31.03.2025  31.03.2024

 Revenue  

 - Consultancy 11885.09  11254.38

 - Power Genera�on 1453.77  1921.33 

 Advances Recoverable 271.35  161.54

 Dividend Paid 4167.45  4321.80
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 Balances with Ministry of Railways   (` in Lakhs) 

 Par�culars As at As at 
   31.03.2025 31.03.2024

 Trade Receivable   

 - Consultancy  1142.43 1489.12

 - Power Genera�on 204.04 204.04 

 Advances Recoverable 350.58 154.19

 Equity Share Capital 5145.00 5145.00

 iii) Transac�ons with Key Management Personnel:

  The CEO, CFO & Company Secretary are the employees of the holding company i.e., RITES Ltd and they have been 
deputed in the subsidiary company. The salary & other benefits viz. PF, pensions etc. of the CEO, CFO & Company 
Secretary are being paid directly by RITES Ltd. (holding company) a�er deduc�on of statutory dues e.g., TDS under 
Income Tax Act, PF under Employee Provident Fund Act etc. For rendering service to subsidiary company, fees are 
charged at man-month rate basis.  (` in Lakhs)

 Par�culars Year Ended  Year Ended 
   31.03.2025 31.03.2024

 Salary Re-imbursement of CEO, CFO and Company Secretary 248.71 224.03 

 iv) Government related en��es 

  The Company is a subsidiary of Central Public Sector Undertaking (CPSU) controlled by the Central Government by 
holding the majority of shares (refer note no 2.11.6). Pursuant to paragraph 25 & 26 of Indian Accoun�ng Standard 
24, en��es over which the same Government has control or joint control or, significant influence, then repor�ng 
en�ty and other en��es shall be regarded as related party.

  The Company has made various transac�ons with the Ministry of Railways and with en��es being controlled or 
jointly controlled or having significant influences of Ministry of Railways. The transac�ons with them are disclosed 
under Note No.2.29 (e) (ii).

2.30 Indian Accoun�ng Standard (Ind AS) 33, Disclosures on Earning per Share (EPS) are as follows:   

  Par�culars Year Ended  Year Ended 
   31.03.2025 31.03.2024

 A Net Profit for the year (` in Lakhs) 7931.09 8122.35

 B Amount available for Equity Shareholder (` in Lakhs) 7931.09 8122.35

 C Weighted average number of Equity Shares (No’s) 10,50,00,000 10,50,00,000

 D Earnings Per Share (Basic & Diluted) (B)/(C)  7.55 7.74

 E Face value per equity share `10/- `10/-

2.31 Indian Accoun�ng Standard (Ind AS) 36, Disclosures on Impairment of Assets are as follows:

 The company has carried out the assessment on impairment of assets in terms of Indian Accoun�ng standard (Ind AS) 36, 
Impairment of Assets and management does not perceive any impairment in the value of the carrying amount of PPE, 
Intangible Assets and ROU Assets.

2.32 Indian Accoun�ng Standard (Ind AS) 37, Disclosures on Provisions, Con�ngent Liabili�es and Con�ngent Assets are 
as follows:

 Con�ngent liabili�es and Commitments to the extent not provided for include:

 (i) Con�ngent Liabili�es: 

  (a) Claim against the company not acknowledged as debt- ̀ Nil (Previous Year ̀  Nil)

  (b) Other money for which the company may be con�ngently liable: - On account of wheeling & Transmission
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  charges for 26 MW windmill plant of company at Jaisalmer, an amount of ₹ 161.55 Lakhs (Previous Year ₹ 161.55 
Lakhs) for which Company may be con�ngently liable to Rajasthan state u�li�es.

 (ii) Commitment.

  Es�mated amount of contract remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for as at 31.03.2025 
is ` Nil (Previous Year ` Nil)

 (iii) Con�ngent Assets: 

  The company has installed its 26 MW Windmill Plant at Jaisalmer, Rajasthan for u�liza�on of energy generated from 
Windmill Plant by WCR/NWR for a period of 25 years in accordance with the Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) 
signed between West Central Railways (WCR) and Company. The Windmill Plant was commissioned on 16.10.2015 
and since then energy generated from Windmill Plant was being con�nuously u�lized by Indian Railways through 
WCR up to 09.01.2017 at three Trac�on Sub Sta�ons (TSS) in Rajasthan State connected as a consumer of Rajasthan 
DISCOM i.e., Jaipur Vidyut Vitran Nigam limited (JVVNL).

  With effect from 10.01.2017, open access status was permi�ed to Indian Railways as deemed distribu�on licensee in 
the state of Rajasthan. Accordingly, Railways started taking power at Six TSSs in Rajasthan as a deemed distribu�on 
licensee through open access route and accordingly accountal/methodology for u�liza�on of energy generated by 
Windmill Plant had to be changed from consumer mode to Deemed Distribu�on licensee Mode. U�liza�on of wind 
energy by WCR under Deemed Distribu�on Mode had started with effect from 27.04.2017 and during transi�on 
period i.e., from 10.01.2017 to 26.04.2017 energy generated by Windmill Plant was fed into Rajasthan State Grid and 
for this period accountal for Wind energy had not been considered by RRVPNL/JVVNL. Accordingly, the TSSs ini�ally 
taking power from 26 MW Wind Power Plant were disconnected as a Consumer of JVVNL and connected with 
RRVPNL as licensee and WCR is contes�ng that payment to REMCL for the month of January’17 to April’17 which is 
withheld as wind energy for the above period and has not been set off. 

  In this regard, a pe��on was filed in Rajasthan Electricity Regulatory Commission (RERC) for realiza�on of the wind 
energy charges during this period (i.e., 10.01.2017 to 26.04.2017) as this power was fed into the Rajasthan State 
Grid. As per RERC order dt.05.11.2018, “The commission is of the considered view that the pe��oner (REMCL) is not 
en�tled for Adjustment of energy wheeled from its CPP a�er termina�on of WBA”. Accordingly, the pe��on was 
disposed off. Aggrieved by the above RERC order dated 05.11.2018, Company filed an appeal before APTEL on 
20.12.2018. The last hearing was held on 28.03.2023. Next hearing date is awaited.

  In present circumstances, there is uncertainty regarding realiza�on of revenue therefore, revenue amoun�ng to ₹ 
680.64 Lakhs for the period 10.01.2017 to 26.04.2017 has been postponed and not recognized.

2.33 Indian Accoun�ng Standards (Ind AS) 108, Disclosures on opera�ng segments are as follows:

 Opera�ng segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial informa�on is available 
which is being evaluated regularly by the Chief Opera�ng Decision Maker (CODM) in deciding how to allocate resources 
and assessing performance. The company’s chief opera�ng decision maker is the Chief Execu�ve Officer and Chairman.

 a) The company has iden�fied two opera�onal reportable segments based on opera�ons being carried out which 
are as under: -  

   Power Genera�on•

   Consultancy•

 b) The company en�re opera�on is within geographical region of India.

 c) The accoun�ng principles used in the prepara�on of the financial statements are consistently applied to record 
revenue & expenditure in individual segments, as set out in the note of material accoun�ng policies. 

 d) Revenue & direct expenses in rela�on to segments are allocated based on items that are individually iden�fiable to 
that segment while the remaining costs are categorized as unallocated expense as the underlying services are used 
inter-changeably.

 e) Opera�onal Segment
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Descrip�on  Year Ended 31.03.2025 Year Ended 31.03.2024

   Power  Consultancy  Total Power Consultancy Total
   Genera�on Services  Genera�on Service 

Revenue   1453.77 11932.98 13386.75 1921.33 12847.78 14769.11

Iden�fiable opera�ng expenses 1494.46 1315.25 2809.71 1644.33 1250.81 2895.14

Segmental profit/(Loss) from opera�ons (40.69) 10617.73 10577.04 277.00 11596.97 11873.97

Add: Interest Income*   544.35   346.30

Add: Other Income **   115.81   212.68

Less: Un-allocable Finance Cost****   16.02   -

Less: Un-allocable other Expenses    1058.68   1094.55

Net Profit Before Tax   10162.50   11338.40

Less: Income Tax (including Deferred Tax)   (2231.41)   (3216.05)

Net Profit A�er Tax   7931.09   8122.35

Addi�onal Informa�on:    

Deprecia�on & amor�za�on 613.11 181.61 794.72 614.79 184.28 799.07

Deprecia�on- Un-allocable   122.93   122.91

Non-cash expenses other than    24.28 - - 226.91

deprecia�on & amor�za�on

Reversal of Impairment losses - - - - - -

SEGMENT ASSETS & LIABILITIES

PPE   9461.20 429.91 9891.11 10070.10 525.96 10596.06

Right of Use Assets 65.42 - 65.42 69.63 - 69.63

Intangible Assets - 141.44 141.44 - 219.46 219.46

Other Assets  232.28 2316.94 2549.22 273.02 2612.65 2885.67

Total Segmental Assets 9758.91 2888.28 12647.19 10412.75 3358.07 13770.82

Add: Un-allocable Assets- PPE***   4481.69   4583.84

Add: Un-allocable Assets other than PPE***   8521.94   8578.30

Total Assets    25650.82   26932.96

Non-Current Liabili�es - - - - - -

Current Liabili�es 184.67 212.11 396.78 242.48 44.61 287.09

Total Segmental Liabili�es 184.67 212.11 396.78 242.48 44.61 287.09

Add: Un-allocable Liabili�es***   2988.34   3806.27

Total Liabili�es    3385.12   4093.36

* Interest income includes interest on bank deposits and income tax refund etc.
** Other income includes sale of tender documents, and Penal�es/compensa�on received etc.
*** Un-allocable assets and liabili�es including current and non-current are common in nature for all and cannot be allocated to a specific 

segment.
**** Un-allocable Finance cost includes Interest U/s 234 A/B/C charged as per the Income Tax Act-1961.

Note: -No Impairment and its reversal have been recognized in other Comprehensive Income (OCI) during the Year ended 31.03.2025 and 
Year ended 31.03.2024.

 f)  Out of total Opera�ng Revenue of ` 13386.75 Lakhs (Previous Year ` 14,769.11 Lakhs), Revenue of
` 13338.86 Lakhs (Previous Year ̀  13175.72 Lakhs) is derived from a single customer (i.e. Indian Railways)

2.34 Disclosures on Indian Accoun�ng Standard (Ind AS) 107, Financial Instruments are as follows:

 a) Financial Instruments by category:

  The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories wise as on 31st March 2025 are as 
under:

(` in Lakhs)
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Par�culars  Total carrying Amor�zed Financial assets/liabili�es at Financial assets/liabili�es at  

   value Cost  fair value through profit or loss fair value through OCI

     Designated     Mandatory Designated Mandatory
     upon ini�al   upon ini�al
     recogni�on   recogni�on

Financial Assets:

Cash and Bank Balance 7690.21 7690.21 - - - -

Trade Receivables 943.19 943.19 - - - -

Other Financial Assets 1505.19 1505.19 - - - -

Total   10138.59 10138.59 - - - -

Financial Liabili�es:

Trade Payables  432.73 432.73 - - - -

Other Financial Liabili�es 53.81 53.81 - - - -

Total   486.54 486.54 - - - -

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories wise as on 31st March 2024 are 
as under:

(` in Lakhs)

Par�culars  Total carrying Amor�zed Financial assets/liabili�es at Financial assets/liabili�es at  

   value Cost  fair value through profit or loss fair value through OCI

     Designated     Mandatory Designated Mandatory
     upon ini�al   upon ini�al
     recogni�on   recogni�on

Financial Assets:

Cash and Bank Balance 7916.61 7916.61 - - - -

Trade Receivables 1536.64 1536.64 - - - -

Other Financial Assets 1220.51 1220.51 - - - -

Total   10673.76 10673.76 - - - -

Financial Liabili�es:      

Trade Payables   339.69 339.69 - - - -

Other Financial Liabili�es 306.22 306.22 - - - -

Total   645.91 645.91 - - - -

(` in Lakhs)

 b)  Fair value hierarchy and valua�on technique

 To provide an indica�on about the reliability of method used in determining fair value, the company has 
classified its financial instruments into three levels prescribed under the Indian Accoun�ng Standard (Ind AS- 
113) on fair value measure.

 Level 1: Quoted prices in ac�ve markets for iden�cal assets or liabili�es.

 Level 2: Fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an ac�ve market is determined using 
valua�on techniques and observable Inputs for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly 
(i.e., derived from prices).

 Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabili�es that are not based on observable market data (observable inputs).

 a) Fair value of financial assets & liabili�es measure at Amor�zed cost as on March 31, 2025, are as follows:
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Par�culars Carrying Value as at  Fair Value as at  Level
   31.03.2025 31.03.2025

Financial Assets   

Trade Receivables* 943.19 943.19 III

Other Financial Assets* 1505.19 1505.19 III 

Financial Liabili�es:   

Trade Payables* 432.73 432.73 III

Other Financial Liabili�es* 53.81 53.81 III

b)     Fair value of Investment property measure at cost as on March 31, 2025, is as follows:

Par�culars Carrying Value as at  Fair Value as at  Level
   31.03.2025 31.03.2025

Investment property 587.68 779.00 II

  * The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, other current financial assets, and financial   
liabili�es are considered to be same as their fair value due to their short-term nature.

 a)  Fair value of financial assets & liabili�es measure at Amor�zed cost as on March 31, 2024, are as follows:

Par�culars Carrying Value as at  Fair Value as at  Level
   31.03.2024 31.03.2024

Financial Assets   

Trade Receivables* 1536.64 1536.64 III

Other Financial Assets* 1220.51 1220.51 III

Financial Liabili�es:   

Trade Payables* 339.69 339.69 III

Other Financial Liabili�es* 306.22 306.22 III

 b)  Fair value of Investment property measure at cost as on March 31, 2024, are as follows:

Par�culars Carrying Value as at  Fair Value as at  Level
   31.03.2024 31.03.2024

Investment property 601.20 765.00 II

  *The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, other current financial assets, and financial 
liabili�es are considered to be same as their fair value due to their short-term nature.

 c) Financial Risk Management

  Financial Risk Factors

  The financial risk factors are as under:

(` in Lakhs)

(` in Lakhs)

(` in Lakhs)

(` in Lakhs)
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 (i)  Market Risk

   Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market prices such as Currency Risk and Interest rate risk. The Company operates within PAN 
India and all its transac�ons are in Indian rupees, therefore company does not have exposure to currency 
risk.

  Since the company does not have any term loan as on March 31, 2025. Hence, the company does not 
perceive any interest rate risk. Similarly, the company placed its surplus fund in Bank FDRs with fixed rate, as 
such the company does not have exposure to interest risk on its financial assets.   

 (ii) Credit Risk

  Credit Risk refers to the risk of default on its obliga�on by the counterparty resul�ng in a financial loss. 
Primarily exposure to the credit risk at the end of current Year and previous Years is from trade receivables 
amoun�ng to ̀  943.19 Lakhs (Previous Year ̀  1536.64 Lakhs) and unbilled revenue amoun�ng to ₹ 1128.49 
Lakhs (Previous Year ` 1135.70 Lakhs) which are typically unsecured. Credit risk is being managed by the 
company through con�nuously monitoring the outstanding dues from the customers. Further, the 
company has impaired as a prudent measure, the trade receivables/recoverable towards expected credit 
loss as per company accoun�ng policy to the extent of ̀  24.28 Lakhs (PY ̀  226.91 Lakhs). All receivables of 
the company are from Indian Railways & its controlled en��es and hence credit risk is bare minimum. 

  Movement of Impairment of Financial Assets  (` in Lakhs)
   Sl. Par�culars Balance at the  Provision Reversal during  Balance at the 

   beginning of the during the year the year end of the year
   year

   1 Trade & Other Receivable 473.72 24.28 94.72 403.28

  No significant credit risk on cash and Bank Balances of ` 7690.21 Lakhs (Previous Year ` 7916.61 Lakhs) is 
expected as company parks surplus funds with Schedule Banks having good credit adequacy ra�o and least 
NPA as determined by RBI and guidelines of the company. The company has parked funds in fixed/Flexi 
Deposits of ` 7672.17 Lakhs (Previous Year ` 7903.00 Lakhs) with Schedule banks with negligible credit 
risks.

 (iii)  Liquidity Risk

  The company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and bank balances and the cash flow that is generated 
from opera�ons. 

  The company has a working capital of ₹ 9492.63 Lakhs (Previous Year ₹ 9777.07 Lakhs) including cash and 
bank balances of ̀  7620.21 Lakhs (Previous Year ₹ 7916.61 Lakhs). The company believes that the working 
capital and other liquid assets are sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk 
is perceived by the Company.

  Maturi�es of Financial Liabili�es

  The table below analyses non-deriva�ve financial liabili�es of the Company into relevant maturity 
groupings based on the remaining period from the repor�ng date to the contractual maturity date. The 
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:
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  As at 31.03.2025 Total Within 1 to 2 Years 2 to 5 Years More than  
   Balance as on 1 Year   5 Years
   31.03.2025    

  Trade Payables 432.73 432.73 - - -

  Other financial liabili�es 53.81 53.81 - - - 

  As at 31.03.2024 Total Within 1 to 2 Years 2 to 5 Years More than  
   Balance as on 1 Year   5 Years
   31.03.2024    

  Trade Payables 339.69 339.69 - - -

  Other financial liabili�es 306.22 306.22 - - -

2.35 Indian Accoun�ng Standard (Ind AS) 115, Disclosures on Revenue from contract with customers are as 
follows: 

 a) The Company presents revenue net of indirect taxes in its statement of profit & loss.

 b) Significant management judgments on Revenue Recogni�on:

 Recognised amounts of contract revenues and related receivables reflect management’s best es�mate of each 
contract’s outcome and stage of comple�on which is determined based on physical progress, efforts, cost 
incurred to date bear to the total es�mated cost of the transac�on, �me spent, service performed or any other 
method that management considered appropriate. Considering the business prac�ses and category of clients, 
clauses rela�ng to surcharge for late payment are not being considered by the management.

 c) Company has contracts with customers for different services which are given below: -

  i) Sale of Power Genera�on

  ii) Consultancy Service

 d) Company has recognized revenue either on the basis of over �me or point in �me depending upon 
sa�sfac�on of performance obliga�on on transferring control of goods or services to customers. Revenue has 
been recognized by the company over �me basis if any one of the following condi�ons is met:

 • Customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits. 

 •  Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the assets is created 
or enhanced.

 •  Company’s performance does not create with alterna�ve use and company has enforceable right to 
payment for performance completed to date.

 In case, none of the above condi�on is met, revenue recognized by the company on the basis of point in �me.

 e) Disaggrega�on Revenue informa�on:

  The below presents Disaggregated Revenues from contract with customer for the year ended 31st 
March 2025 from various streams of revenue. The company believe that this Disaggrega�on best depicts 
how the nature, amount, �ming and uncertainty of our revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, 
market and other economic factor.     (` in Lakhs)

  Revenue from  Consultancy Services P ower Genera�ons  Total 
  Contracts with    Revenue
  customers Domes�c Abroad Domes�c  Abroad 

  FY 2024-25 11932.98 Nil 1453.77  Nil  13386.75

  FY 2023-24 12847.78 Nil 1921.33  Nil  14769.11

(` in Lakhs)
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 f) The company is rendering many project management consultancy services for and on behalf of clients 
where fee is due to company for professional services. 

 g) In most cases, payments from customers are linked with performance obliga�ons. Wherever on the 
repor�ng date work has been performed and payment is not due as per the contract, in such cases 
contract assets have been created. However, where payment has been received including advance, but 
performance has not been completed, in such cases contract liabili�es have been created. Advances 
received by the company for execu�on of work are in the nature of security i.e., a source of protec�on and 
are not for financing the project.

 h) Trade receivable and contract balances

  The company classifies the right to considera�on in exchange of deliverables as either receivable or 
unbilled revenue.

  Invoicing to the client is based on milestone as defined in the contract. This would result in �ming of 
revenue recogni�on being different from the �ming of billing to the customer. Unbilled revenue is 
classified as financial asset as contractual right to the considera�on is depended on comple�on of 
contractual milestone.

  Trade receivable and unbilled revenues are presented net of impairment in the Balance sheet. During the 
year, ₹ 94.72 Lakhs (PY ₹ Nil) earlier recognized as impairment loss has been reversed.

  During the year ended March 31, 2025, ₹ 1135.70 Lakhs and March 31, 2024, ₹ 1022.98 Lakhs of unbilled 
revenue as of April 1st, 2024, and April 1st, 2023, has been reclassified to Trade receivables upon billing to 
customers on comple�on of milestones.

  Balances of Receivables/Contract Assets/Contract Liabili�es are as under:

(` in Lakhs)

  Par�culars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024

  Receivables 943.19 1935.41

  Contract Assets- Unbilled Revenue 1128.49 1135.70

  Contract Liabili�es Nil Nil

 i) Company has not incurred any cost for obtaining contracts except administra�ve cost required for 
prepara�on of offers and the same is charged to statement of profit & loss.  

 j) Cost incurred in fulfilling contracts is charged to statement of profit & loss if it is not recoverable otherwise 
the same is part of unbilled revenue and unbilled assets.

2.36 Indian Accoun�ng Standard (Ind AS )116, Disclosure on Leases are as follow: - 

 a) The Company has adopted Ind AS 116- “Leases” effec�ve from 1st April 2019, applied to all lease contracts 
existed on April 1, 2019, using modified retrospec�ve method, using cumula�ve effect method and hence 
previous period informa�on has not been restated.

 b) Company as Lessee:

  The Company has taken land on sub-lease for se�ng up its 26 MW windmill plant during the FY 2015-16 
for a period of 29 years. INOX Wind Ltd is the developer of an en�re windmill plant having a total capacity 
of 554 MW and out of which 26 MW i.e., 13 Wind Towers each of 2MW capacity developed on 13 hectares 
of land belongs to REMCL. The en�re wind plant was developed under the Rajasthan Wind Policy under 
which the allotment of land to the Wind Power Developers was done as per the provisions of Rajasthan 
Land Revenue (Allotment of Land for se�ng up of Power plant based on Renewable Energy Sources) Rules, 
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2007 as amended from �me to �me. The en�re payment for such land was made at the �me of ini�a�on of 
the sub-lease agreement and no further payment is required to be made. 

  On transi�on, the adop�on of this standard has resulted in recogni�on of ‘Right-of-use’ assets of ₹ 90.69 
Lakhs but corresponding no lease liability aroused since the en�re lease payment was made at the �me of 
ini�a�on of lease.

  On applica�on of Ind AS-116, the nature of expenses has changed from deprecia�on on PPE in previous 
periods to deprecia�on cost for the right-to-use asset.

  The effect of Implementa�on of Ind AS-116 is insignificant on the profit before tax, profit for the period 
and earnings per share.

  (i) The following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 
2025, and March 31, 2024. (` in Lakhs)

   Par�culars Category ROU Assets
    Sub Lease Land

    As on 31.03.2025  As on 31.03.2024   

   Balance as at the beginning of the year  69.63 73.85

   Reclassified on account of adop�on of Ind AS 116  - -

   Addi�ons   - -

   Dele�on   - -

   Deprecia�on   4.21 4.22

   Balance as at the end of the year  65.42 69.63

  (i) In respect of ROU, an amount of ₹ 4.21 Lakhs has been charged by way of deprecia�on in the 
statement of profit and loss account.

  (ii) There are no provisions rela�ng to con�ngent rent.

  (iii) The company has no commitments towards Leases yet to be commenced as on 31.03.2025 and 
31.03.2024.

 a) Company as a lessor 

      During the year, the Company has entered into a lease agreement as lessor with its holding company 
(RITES Limited). The tenure of the lease agreement is 11 months from the month of August 2024. (Also 
refer Note no.2.37)

2.37 Indian Accoun�ng Standard (Ind AS) 40, Disclosure on Investment property are as follows: -

 a) Disclosure     (` in Lakhs)

  Par�culars  Year Ended  Year Ended
     31.03.2025  31.03.2024

  Rental Income  24.00  16.00

  Direct propor�onate opera�ng expenses rela�ng  1.56  0.79
 to rental Income. (Including Repair & maintenance)

  Profit before deprecia�on  22.44  15.21

  Deprecia�on for the year  13.52  9.04

  Profit from investment property  8.92  6.17
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 During the year the company leased out furnished accommoda�on area of 1634 sq. �. to earn rental income. 
Method of deprecia�on taken as Straight-line method (SLM) and rate of deprecia�on is charged as per the 
Following. 

  Investment Par�culars Rate of Deprecia�on (%)

  Building  1.67  

  Office Equipment  20.00

  Air Condi�oning  14.29

  Fixtures  20.00

 b) Fair Value

(` in Lakhs)

   Par�culars As at 31-03-2025 As at 31-03-2024

   Buildings 779.00 765.00

 Descrip�on of Valua�on Techniques used and key inputs to Valua�on on Investment Proper�es:

 Valua�on approach - Market Price Method. 

 The valua�on of the investment property was carried out by a registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of 
Companies (Registered Valuers and Valua�on) Rules, 2017.

 The Valua�on Report is based upon the market price method in which the market value is determined by its 
loca�on, ameni�es availabili�es in the area and with more of Middle-class commercial cum office use area 
coupled with enquiries from the local real estate agents and the neighborhood. Accordingly, the valuer has 
collected informa�on through their technical team during their personal inspec�on of the plot, upon the prior 
receipt of detailed par�culars of property, related documents, date and reply of queries.

2.38 The Company does not envisage any contrac�on in demand which could result in significant downsizing of its 
business opera�ons. 

2.39 Other Disclosures:

 a) Capital Management

        The Company’s objec�ve for capital management is to maximize shareholders’ value, safeguard business 
con�nuity and support the growth of the Company. The Company determines the capital requirement 
based on annual opera�ng plans and long-term and other strategic investment plans. The funding 
requirements are primarily being met through opera�ng cash flows generated.

 b) Assets and Liabili�es are classified between current and non-current considering 12 months period as 
opera�ng cycle.

 c) Informa�on on CSR expenditure

  i) Gross amount required to be spent during the year 2024-25 is ` 177.12 Lakhs (Previous Year ` 124.16 
Lakhs)

  ii) Expenditure incurred including advances on CSR during the year on:-
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  Par�culars Amount Paid Amount Yet to be Total 

    paid 

   2024-25  2023-24 2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24

  (i) Construc�on/acquisi�on Nil  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

  (ii) On purposes other than  177.12  124.16 Nil Nil 177.12 124.16

   (I) above*

   Total 177.12  124.16 Nil Nil 177.12 124.16

 *Includes the following expenditure on account of administra�ve overhead and capacity building.

 (a) Man-Month Expense -  ₹ 8.43 Lakhs (PY ₹ 5.91 Lakhs)

 (b)  Other Expense -  ₹ Nil (PY ₹ Nil)

 ** The Company has booked a CSR expenditure of ₹ Nil (PY ₹ Nil) based on the bills and u�liza�on cer�ficates 
submi�ed by the vendor and therefore included in the current liability of the company. 

 iii) Short fall other than ongoing projects of CSR-Nil (Previous Year-Nil)

 iv) Reasons for Short fall other than ongoing projects of CSR - Not Applicable

 v) Nature of CSR Ac�vi�es: During the year Company has spent CSR expenditure on the ac�vi�es of financial 
support for cardiac surgery, educa�on to under privilege children, menstrual hygiene management, se�ng up 
computer training center in school, s�tching & Tailoring Program to underprivileged women, Eye Checkup 
Camps, Distribu�on of Ra�on Kits to Pregnant women, Procurement of Ultrasound Machine for Hospital, 
Health Checkup Camps etc.

 vi) Details of Unspent CSR amount of ongoing project in compliance with the provision of sec�on 135(6) of the 
Act.  (` in Lakhs)

  Par�culars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024

  Opening provision of unspent CSR amount of ongoing project - -

  Addi�ons - -

  Dele�on - -

  Deprecia�on - -

  Balance as at the end of the year - -

 d) Details of dues to micro, small and medium enterprises as defined under the Micro and Small Enterprise 
Development Act, 2006* are given based on informa�on available with the management. (` in Lakhs)

   S.  Par�culars As at  As at 
   no.  31.03.2025 31.03.2024
   a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining  - 

   unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accoun�ng year.
    - Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 0.07
    - Interest due on above
   b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of - -     

   Sec�on 16 of the Micro and Small Enterprise Development Act,
   2006, along with the amounts of the payment made to the
   supplier beyond the appointed day during each accoun�ng year. 

(` in Lakhs)
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   S.  Par�culars As at  As at 
   no.  31.03.2025 31.03.2024
   c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay - -

   in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
    appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
    specified under Micro and Small Enterprises Development Act,
    2006
   d) The amount of interest due and remaining unpaid at the end of - -
    each accoun�ng year
   e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even - -
    in the succeeding years, un�l such date when the interest dues
    as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose
    of disallowance as a deduc�ble expenditure under Sec�on 23 of
    Micro and Small Enterprise Development Act, 2006.  

  The Company iden�fy supplier registered under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 
2006, by obtaining confirma�ons from all suppliers at the �me of issue of tender. Informa�on has been 
collated only to the extent of informa�on received.

 e) Balances shown under trade receivable, advances and trade payables are subject to confirma�on / 
reconcilia�on/ adjustment, if any. The company has been sending le�ers/ e-mails for confirma�on to par�es. 
However, the Company does not expect any material dispute with respect to the recoverability/payment of 
the same. 

 

 f) CWIP Ageing Schedule for FY 2024-25
          (` in Lakhs)

   Par�culars Amount in Capital Work-in-progress for a period of
    Less than 1  1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3  Total

  Year   Years
   Projects in Progress - - - - -
   Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -     
   Total - - - - -

  CWIP Ageing Schedule for FY 2023-24    (` in Lakhs)

   Par�culars  Amount in Capital Work-in-progress for a period of
    Less than 1  1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3  Total

  Year   Years
   Projects in Progress - - - - -
   Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
   Total - - - - -
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 g) Intangible Assets Under Development Ageing Schedule for the FY 2024-25 
          (` in Lakhs)

   Par�culars Amount in Capital Work-in-progress for a period of
    Less than 1  1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3  Total

  Year   Years
   Projects in Progress - - - - -
   Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
   Total - - - - -

  Intangible Assets Under Development Ageing Schedule for the FY 2023-24  (` in Lakhs)

   Par�culars  Amount in Capital Work-in-progress for a period of
    Less than 1  1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3  Total

  Year   Years
   Projects in Progress - - - - -
   Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
   Total - - - - -

 h) Capital Work in Progress Comple�on Schedule as on 31.03.2025 in case comple�on is overdue or has exceeded 
its cost.     (` in Lakhs)

  Par�culars  Amount in Capital Work-in-progress for a period of
    Less than 1  1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3  Total

  Year   Years 
   Projects in Progress - - - - -
   Na�onal Energy Management  - - - - -
   Centre (NEMC) 
   Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
   Total - - - - -

  Capital Work in Progress Comple�on Schedule as on 31.03.2024 in case comple�on is overdue or has exceeded 
its cost.

     (` in Lakhs)

  Par�culars  Amount in Capital Work-in-progress for a period of
    Less than 1  1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3  Total

  Year   Years 
   Projects in Progress - - - - -
   Na�onal Energy Management  - - - - -
   Centre (NEMC) 
   Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
   Total - - - - -
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 i) Intangible Assets under development Comple�on Schedule as on 31.03.2025 in case comple�on is overdue or 
has exceeded its cost.

          (` in Lakhs)

   Par�culars Amount in Capital Work-in-progress for a period of
    Less than 1  1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3  Total

  Year   Years
   Projects in Progress     
   Na�onal Energy Management  - - - - -
   Centre (NEMC)
   Projects temporarily suspended Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
   Total - - - - -

  Intangible Assets under development Comple�on Schedule as on 31.03.2024 in case comple�on is overdue 
or has exceeded its cost.

(` in Lakhs)

   Par�culars A mount in Capital Work-in-progress for a period of
    Less than 1  1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3  Total

  Year   Years
   Projects in Progress     
   Na�onal Energy Management  - - - - -
   Centre (NEMC)
   Projects temporarily suspended Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
   Total - - - - -

 j) Detail of Immovable property not held in the name of REMCL: Not Applicable.

 k) Disclosure of Ra�os:

Ra�os Numerator Denominator As at
31.03.2025

As at
31.03.2024

Variance (%) Reason for variance

Current Ra�o

Debt-Equity Ra�o
Debt Service Coverage 

Ra�o

Return on Equity
Ra�o (%)

Inventory turnover 
ra�o

Trade Receivables 
turnover ra�o

Trade payables 
turnover ra�o

Current Assets

Debt
Earnings Available for 
debt services; (PAT+ 

Deprecia�on+ 
interest+ loss on sale 

of fixed assets)

PAT

 NA

Net credit sales 
(Excluding Unbilled 
Revenue and GST) 

Net credit purchase 
(Fees for service 

obtained+ salary Re-
imbursement+ 

genera�on expenses+ 
Other Expenses-CSR 
exp-Provision for DD

Current Liabili�es

Total Equity
Interest + principal 

Repayment

Average Shareholder 
Fund (Total Equity as 
on 31.03.2025+ Total 

Equity as on 
31.03.2024)/2

NA

Average Account 
Receivable (Net of 
Credit Impaired)

Average Trade 
Payable

15.57
 
-
-

35.17

-

9.89

7.12

11.75

-
-

35.03

-

5.14

8.19

32.51%

0.40%

-

92.41%

-13.06%

Be�er liquidity 
over the last year.  

-

-

-

Be�er realiza�on 
over previous year

Decrease in credit 
purchase. 
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Ra�os Numerator Denominator As at
31.03.2025

As at
31.03.2024

Variance (%) Reason for variance

Net capital turnover 
ra�o

Net profit ra�o (%)
Return on Capital 

employed (%)

Net Sales (Total 
Income)

PAT
EBIT

Working Capital (Current 
Assets-Current Liabili�es)
Net Sales (Total Income) 

Capital Employed 
(Tangible Net worth+ 

Total Debt+ Deferred Tax

1.48

56.46
40.71

1.57

52.99
43.57

-5.73%

6.55%
-6.56%

-

-
-

2.40 Recent pronouncements:

 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) no�fies new standards or amendments to the exis�ng standards under 
Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Rules as issued from �me to �me. For the year ended March 31, 
2025, MCA has not no�fied any new standards or amendments to the exis�ng standards applicable to the 
Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Rahul Mithal

Chairman
DIN: 07610499

Sd/-
Krishna Gopal Agarwal

Director
DIN: 10239667 

Sd/-
Bhupender Singh Bodh
Chief Execu�ve Officer

Sd/-
Rakesh Kumar Gupta
Chief Financial Officer

M. No.: FCA 99030

Sd/-
Ranjan Kumar Tiwary
Company Secretary
M. No.: ACS 28116

As per our report of even date a�ached.
For Dinesh Mehta & company

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 000220N

Sd/-
(Deepak Malhotra)

Partner
M. No.: 502386

UDIN: 25502386BMOUJA6363 

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 06-05-2025
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION
143 (6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF REMC 
LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

The prepara�on of financial statements of REMC Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 in 
accordance with the financial repor�ng framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is 
the responsibility of the management of the Company. The Statutory Auditor appointed by the 
Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Sec�on 139 (5) of the Act is responsible for expressing 
opinion on the financial statements under Sec�on 143 of the Act based on independent audit in 
accordance with the standards on audi�ng prescribed under Sec�on 143(10) of the Act. This is stated 
to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 06 May 2025.

 I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary 
audit of the financial statements of REMC Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 under Sec�on 
143(6)(a) of the Act. This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to 
the working papers of the Statutory Auditor and is limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory 
Auditor and company personnel and a selec�ve examina�on of some of the accoun�ng records.

 Based on my supplementary audit, I would like to highlight the following significant ma�er 
under Sec�on 143(6)(b) of the Act which has come to my a�en�on and which in my view is necessary 
for enabling a be�er understanding of the financial statements and the related Audit Report:

A. Comment on Independent Auditor's Report
A reference is invited to Para No. 3 (g) (i) of the Independent Auditor's Report on Legal and Regulatory 
requirements wherein it has been stated that the Company does not have any pending li�ga�on as on 
31 March 2025.
The above statement is deficient to the extent that the Company had a long standing dispute with 
RRVPNL/JVVNL for realisa�on of revenue from wind energy for the period from 10 January 2017 to 26 
April 2017, as disclosed in Note 2.32 of the financial statements of the Company.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Sd/-
(Teg Singh)

Principal Director of Audit
Railway Commercial, New Delhi

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 01.07.2025
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